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VISION AND MISSION
VISION
The Australian community has confidence that agricultural and
veterinary chemicals available in Australia are safe to use.

MISSION
To regulate agricultural and veterinary chemicals to protect the
health and safety of people, animals and crops, the environment
and trade, and support Australian primary industries.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REPORT AND OUTLOOK
This has been a busy and challenging year across the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary
Medicines Authority (APVMA).
Combined with our regular responsibilities and following the passage of legislation in
late June 2013, we focused significant effort on updating our systems and processes,
and assisting industry and stakeholders to get ready for the legislative reforms that will
commence on 1 July 2014.
To provide greater certainty for industry, we reviewed and revised our entire suite of regulatory
guidance material to bring it into line with the new laws. We made a draft version available to
industry for comment in January 2014, and a final version was published in mid-May 2014.
Face-to-face information and training sessions were delivered to around 600 people. These
sessions provided practical assistance for industry on how to get ready for the changes, and
were also a great opportunity for the APVMA to receive timely and relevant feedback about
proposed systems and processes.
Continuing our commitment to improve the way we do things at the APVMA, and to make
it easier for industry to interact with us, this year we built and delivered new online services
and a new website. This means that applications for approval and registration of chemicals,
and payments of fees and levies can now be done through an integrated and secure online
system. Our new case management system delivers more efficient management of both
applications and enquiries.
An independent review of our registration processes has informed a program of business
improvements across the organisation and also resulted in the development of an exciting
new project that will enable us to better match regulatory effort to regulatory risk. Over time,
we expect to implement ‘lighter touch’ approaches to applications assessed as being of lower
regulatory risk. This work is groundbreaking, and promises to reduce the regulatory burden on
a significant section of the agricultural and veterinary chemical industry.
During this period of reform and improvement, we have continued to deliver on our core
business, with more than 2500 applications finalised over the year. Our Chemical Review
Program resulted in 261 regulatory actions; cancellation of 2 active constituent approvals,
11 product registrations and 118 product labels; and variation of 130 label approvals.
Engagement with other government agencies and our international counterparts continued
to inform our decision-making in 2013–14. Continuing our scientific leadership, we published a
literature review of neonicotinoid insecticides, hosted a symposium on endocrine-disrupting
chemicals and continued our work on regulatory matters relating to nanomaterials.
We have another full year ahead of us, and there is still much to be done.
Our commitment to regulatory excellence and a strong business improvement program
will continue in 2014–15 as we work towards making the APVMA a contemporary
world-class regulator.
I am pleased to present this annual report of our work in 2013–14.
Kareena Arthy
Chief Executive Officer
September 2014

vii

CHAPTER 1
ORGANISATION
OVERVIEW

CORPORATE PROFILE
The Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority (APVMA) is the independent
statutory authority responsible for the assessment, registration and regulation of
agricultural and veterinary chemicals (generally referred to as pesticides and veterinary
medicines) in Australia. We administer and manage the National Registration Scheme
for Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals, which sets out the regulatory framework for
managing these chemicals in Australia. The APVMA sits within the portfolio of the Minister
for Agriculture, the Hon. Barnaby Joyce MP.
More than 11 000 pesticide or veterinary medicine products are registered in Australia.
Australia’s system for managing pesticides and veterinary medicines is a risk management
system that provides a systematic, scientific, evidence-based approach to decision-making
and operations.
We evaluate the safety and performance of chemicals intended for sale in Australia to
ensure that the health and safety of people, animals, crops and the environment are
protected. Also, registered products must not unduly jeopardise Australia’s trade with
other countries.
Our work supports primary industries—agriculture, forestry, horticulture and aquaculture—
by allowing the supply of safe, effective animal health and crop protection products.
Our work also supports consumers by ensuring that household and garden pesticides
and pet products are safe and effective.
Our role extends beyond registration of pesticides and veterinary medicines. We license and
audit veterinary manufacturers to ensure adherence to APVMA-prescribed manufacturing
standards. We manage an Adverse Experience Reporting Program that is designed to
ensure early detection of unforeseen problems with registered chemicals. We also monitor
the market for compliance, and review and take regulatory action on registered pesticides
and veterinary medicines when concerns are identified.

LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK
The APVMA is established under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration)
Act 1992 (Administration Act). The Administration Act sets out the role of the APVMA,
as an independent statutory authority, for undertaking the responsibilities conferred on it
by the states and territories under the National Registration Scheme for Agricultural and
Veterinary Chemicals.
APVMA functions and powers are conferred by the Administration Act, the Agricultural
and Veterinary Chemicals Code Act 1994 (Agvet Code Act) and the Agricultural and
Veterinary Chemicals Code (Agvet Code), which is set out in a schedule to the Agvet
Code Act. The Agvet Code makes provision for the evaluation, registration and control
of agricultural chemicals and veterinary medicines, and related matters. In 2013–14,
the APVMA implemented a range of reforms introduced through the Agricultural and
Veterinary Chemicals Legislation Amendment Act 2013, which will commence on 1 July
2014, to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of these regulatory arrangements.
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FUNCTIONS AND POWERS
The APVMA is responsible for assessing and registering pesticide and veterinary medicine
products proposed for supply and use in Australia, and for controlling them up to the point
of retail sale. (The states and territories are responsible for regulating and managing the use
of pesticides and veterinary medicines once they are sold.)
The functions of the APVMA, set out in s. 7 of the Administration Act, are to:
• assess the suitability for sale in Australia of active constituents for proposed or
existing chemical products, registered chemical products, and labels for containers for
chemical products
• provide information to the Australian Government and its agencies, and the states
and participating territories, about approved active constituents for proposed or
existing chemical products, registered chemical products and approved labels for such
products, and cooperate with Australian Government agencies on matters relating to the
management and control of chemical products
• keep records and statistics of approvals and registrations it has granted, and permits and
licences it has issued under the Agvet Code
• evaluate the effects of the use of chemical products in the states and participating
territories
• cooperate with the Australian Government and its agencies, and the states and
participating territories, to facilitate a consistent approach to the assessment and
control of chemicals
• cooperate with the Australian Government and its agencies, and the states and
participating territories, to develop codes of practice, standards and guidelines for, and
to recommend precautions to be taken in connection with, the manufacture, export,
import, sale, handling, possession, storage, disposal and use of chemical products
• collect, interpret, disseminate and publish information relating to chemical products
and their use
• encourage and facilitate the application and use of results of evaluation and testing of
chemical products
• exchange information relating to chemical products and their use with overseas and
international bodies that have similar functions to those of the APVMA
• when requested by the minister, or on its own initiative, report to or advise the minister
on any matter relating to chemical products or arising in the course of the performance
of the APVMA’s functions
• encourage and facilitate the introduction of uniform national procedures for controlling
the use of pesticides and veterinary medicines

Chapter 1—Organisation overview
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• fund and cooperate in a program designed to ensure that active constituents for
proposed or existing chemical products, registered chemical products and labels for
containers for chemical products comply with the Agvet Code, and the Agricultural and
Veterinary Chemicals Code Regulations 1995.
In accordance with s. 10 of the Administration Act, the Australian Government minister
responsible for administering pesticide and veterinary medicine legislation may direct
the APVMA (in writing) in relation to its functions or powers under Australian, state or
territory laws. The APVMA must comply with any such direction. No such direction was
given in 2013–14.

FUNDING
The APVMA is a cost-recovered agency. Registrants pay application fees to register new
products and active constituents, amend a current registration, or apply for a permit.
An annual fee is payable each year to renew the registration of a product. Registrants also
pay an annual levy based on the sales (and other disposals) of their registered products.
Levies are imposed under the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products Levy
Imposition (General) Act 1994, the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products Levy
Imposition (Excise) Act 1994 and the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products Levy
Imposition (Customs) Act 1994. Levies are collected under the Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemical Products (Collection of Levies) Act 1994. Levy rates are prescribed in the
Regulations to this Act.
The APVMA’s income for 2013–14 was $28.275 million, a decrease of $2.137 million
(7.03 per cent) from 2012–13 (see Chapter 4).
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
AND STRUCTURE
The APVMA management structure (Figure 1) supports effective operation, communication
and strategic understanding at all levels of the organisation.

Organisational chart

Advisory
Board

Chief
Executive
Officer

Audit
Committee

Veterinary
Medicines
Program

Veterinary Medicines Registration
Veterinary Residues
Pharmaceutical Chemistry
Manufacturing Quality and Licensing
Case Management and Administration

Pesticides
Program

Pesticides Registration
Pesticides Residues
Pesticides Chemistry
Minor Use
Chemical Review and Adverse Experience Reporting Program

Corporate
Services
Program

Regulatory
Strategy and
Compliance
Program

Legal
Program and
Strategic
Coordination

Finance and Administration
Human Resources
Information Services
Information Technology Operations and IT Security
Information Technology Application Development
Public Affairs and Communications
Quality Management System
Chief Regulatory Scientists
Compliance
Scientific Assessment Services

Deputy General Counsel
Practice and Procedures Project
Strategic Coordination

Figure 1 Organisation structure as at 30 June 2014
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The APVMA executive team is responsible for business and compliance performance.
It oversees the development of key corporate plans and strategies, monitors and reviews
organisational performance and risk, and ensures that the APVMA meets its regulatory
obligations. The collective skills and experience of the executive and APVMA staff are used
to develop and consider strategic initiatives and operational issues.
The executive leadership team comprises the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), five executive
directors and two chief regulatory scientists.

Kareena Arthy
Chief Executive Officer
The CEO is responsible for APVMA governance and
management, including the exercise of the APVMA’s
powers and functions. The CEO consults with the Advisory
Board and key stakeholders to set the organisation’s
vision, objectives and strategies to meet its legislative
responsibilities. The CEO approves the APVMA’s strategic,
financial and operational plans and budgets; monitors
financial and operational performance; and oversees
program performance. The CEO leads the agency’s
engagement efforts, particularly its engagement with key
international agencies.

Tony de la Fosse BA GradDipHRM MBA
GAICD
Executive Director, Corporate Services Program
The Executive Director, Corporate Services Program,
manages finance and administration, human resources,
information services, public affairs, and information and
communication technologies (ICT; including ICT operations
and application development). Key responsibilities include
providing timely and accurate financial data, and preparing
financial plans, budgets and strategies that maximise the
APVMA’s ability to deliver quality services with the funds
available. The position is also responsible for the library,
records management, the archive system, risk management
and e-commerce.
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Stefanie Janiec BCom (Acctg&BusLaw) LLB
LLM
General Counsel and Executive Director, Legal and
Strategic Coordination Program
The General Counsel and Executive Director, Legal and
Strategic Coordination Program, provides and oversees the
provision of legal advice and support to the CEO and staff
on all aspects of the APVMA’s regulatory, administrative and
corporate functions. The position also assists in managing
legal issues and risks affecting the operation of the APVMA,
and facilitates the coordination of advice, briefings and
reports regarding policy development, regulatory matters
and operational issues from a whole-of-agency perspective
for the minister, CEO and broader agency.

Dr Raj Bhula
Executive Director, Pesticides Program
The Executive Director, Pesticides Program, manages
the evaluation, registration and review of pesticides.
Responsibilities include pesticides chemistry, pesticides
residues, chemical review and the Adverse Experience
Reporting Program. The position is responsible for
determining whether registered chemicals continue to meet
contemporary standards, and for continuous improvement
of the efficiency and effectiveness of the registration and
review processes.

Dr Jan Klaver
Acting Executive Director, Compliance and Regulatory
Support Program
The Executive Director, Compliance and Regulatory Support
Program, is responsible for ensuring that manufacturers and
suppliers of pesticides and veterinary medicines comply with
Australian registration requirements up to, and including,
the point of retail sale. The position also has responsibility
for obtaining scientific assessment services from partner
government agencies, engaging with international agencies
and supporting the work of the chief regulatory scientists.
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Dr Allen Bryce BVSc MVPHMgt MANZCVS
GradDipPubSecExecMan CIIBCL
Executive Director, Veterinary Medicines Program
The Executive Director, Veterinary Medicines Program,
manages the evaluation, registration and review of veterinary
medicines. Responsibilities include registration and granting
of permits for use of veterinary medicines; administration
of manufacturing quality and licensing systems for
veterinary medicines; assessment of veterinary medicines,
including veterinary residues, pharmaceutical chemistry,
manufacturing quality and licensing; and management of
applications and enquiries for pesticides and veterinary
medicines. The position is also responsible for ongoing
review of existing veterinary products to determine whether
they continue to meet contemporary standards, and
continuous improvement of the efficiency and effectiveness
of the registration and review processes, including adherence
to time frames.

Dr Les Davies
Chief Regulatory Scientist, Pesticides
The Chief Regulatory Scientist, Pesticides, is responsible for
quality assurance of the pesticides regulatory framework and
standards, and for leading the provision of scientific advice
on pesticides.

Dr Phil Reeves FANZCVS
Chief Regulatory Scientist, Veterinary Medicines
The Chief Regulatory Scientist, Veterinary Medicines, is
responsible for quality assurance of the veterinary medicines
regulatory framework and standards, and for leading the
provision of scientific advice on veterinary medicines
and nanotechnology.
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CHAPTER 2
PERFORMANCE
AGAINST
STRATEGIES

STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK AND
REPORTING
The APVMA corporate plan 2012–15 identifies four objectives:
• Objective 1: Deliver the benefits of more efficient regulation to business and the
community
• Objective 2: Be transparent, consistent and predictable in delivering our regulatory
services and decisions
• Objective 3: Focus efficiency and effectiveness measures on the protection of human,
animal and plant health, the environment and trade
• Objective 4: Be respected and trusted for the regulatory decisions we take.
The APVMA Operational plan 2013–14 identified eight strategies to achieve the corporate
plan objectives and the APVMA’s outcome (Figure 2):
• Strategy 1: Integrate government reforms into core business
• Strategy 2: Conduct robust, risk-based, scientific evaluations to support sound
regulatory decisions
• Strategy 3: Identify and reconsider existing chemicals of regulatory concern
• Strategy 4: Identify and resolve noncompliance
• Strategy 5: Identify and manage emerging regulatory issues
• Strategy 6: Engage stakeholders and regulatory partners to add value to our work
• Strategy 7: Conduct our business efficiently and effectively
• Strategy 8: Enhance performance through our people.
Strategies 1–5 are our core business strategies, while Strategies 6–8 are supportive
enabling strategies.
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‘Protection of the health and safety of people, animals,
the environment, and agricultural and livestock industries
through regulation of pesticides and veterinary medicines.’

OUTCOME

OBJECTIVE
1
Deliver the benefits
of more efficient
regulation to business
and the community

STRATEGY
4
Identify
and resolve
non compliance

OBJECTIVE
2

OBJECTIVE
3

Be transparent,
consistent and predictable
in delivering our
regulatory services
and decisions

Focus efficiency and
effectiveness measures on
the protection of human,
animal and plant health,
the environment
and trade

STRATEGY
2

STRATEGY
1
Integrate
government
reforms into
core business

Conduct robust,
risk-based,
scientific evaluations
to support sound
regulatory decisions

STRATEGY
3

OBJECTIVE
4
Be respected
and trusted for
the regulatory
decisions
we take

Identify and reconsider
existing chemicals
of regulatory concern

STRATEGY
5
Identify
and manage emerging
regulatory issues

STRATEGY
6

STRATEGY
7

Engage stakeholders
and regulatory partners
to add value to
our work

Conduct our
business efficiently
and effectively

STRATEGY
8
Enhance
performance
through our people

Figure 2 APVMA objectives and strategies
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This report
This annual report assesses our performance against the eight strategies. Under each
strategy are listed the initiatives and activities that are designed to achieve the strategy, and
the performance measures for each. For example:

Strategy 1—Integrate government reforms into core business
Initiative/activity—Embed revised APVMA regulatory guidelines into APVMA
systems and processes
Performance measures:
• Draft compendium in place by January 2014, for stakeholder consultation, awareness
raising and education
• Compendium content finalised by April 2014 for further communication and training
A summary table provides an overall assessment for each performance measure, and
accompanying text provides detail.

Variation from the APVMA Portfolio Budget Statement
There have been no variations to the Portfolio Budget Statement in 2013–14.

SUMMARY OF PERFORMANCE
AGAINST STRATEGIES
The APVMA is a client-focused service agency. In 2013–14, we worked to prepare industry
for the impacts of legislative reform, and continued to improve our processes to ensure that
we are a contemporary and world-class regulator.
Strategy 1—Integrate government reforms into core business. The Agricultural and
Veterinary Chemicals Legislation Amendment Act 2013 will commence on 1 July 2014.
The legislative reforms aim to increase the efficiency and effectiveness of the APVMA, and
to make chemical assessment and review more predictable. In 2013–14, the APVMA worked
to prepare the organisation and its stakeholders for implementation of the reforms. We have
developed draft regulatory guidelines in consultation with industry, and have developed and
delivered comprehensive training and communications to industry and APVMA staff.
Strategy 2—Conduct robust, risk-based, scientific evaluations to support sound
regulatory decisions. Before pesticides and veterinary medicines can be registered for
sale and use, we evaluate them to ensure that they can be used safely and effectively. In
2013–14, we approved and registered a large number of pesticides and veterinary medicines,
and we have adhered to statutory timelines in our processes. We received 1942 and finalised
1870 applications for pesticide products (96 per cent within the statutory time frame), and
received 997 and finalised 1187 applications for veterinary medicine products (90 per cent
within the statutory time frame).
In December 2013, we reviewed the APVMA’s application of the Joint Food and Agriculture
Organization of the United Nations (FAO) and the World Health Organization (WHO) Expert
Committee on Food Additives (JECFA) approach to recommending maximum residue limits
(MRLs) for veterinary medicines, with the help of four internationally renowned experts.
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The experts made recommendations aimed at strengthening the APVMA’s evaluation of
veterinary medicine residues; implementation of these recommendations will begin later
in 2014.
Strategy 3—Identify and reconsider existing chemicals of regulatory concern.
The APVMA reviews and reconsiders approved active constituents, registered products,
or labels of pesticides and veterinary medicines if credible new data suggest that current
use may pose previously unknown risks to human health, animal or crop safety, the
environment or trade, or suggest product ineffectiveness. Chemical reviews in 2013–14
included 2,4-D high-volatile esters, diazinon, dichlorvos, dimethoate, fenthion, molinate
and sheep ectoparasiticides. As a result of reviews, the APVMA undertook 261 regulatory
actions; cancelled 2 active constituent approvals, 11 product registrations and 118 product
labels; and varied 130 label approvals.
We also investigate reports of adverse events associated with registered pesticides or
veterinary medicines. These adverse events can include threats to human or animal health,
nontarget crop or plant damage, environmental damage or lack of efficacy. In 2013–14,
we assessed and classified 2138 reports of suspected adverse events, none of which
required significant regulatory action.
Strategy 4—Identify and resolve noncompliance. Noncompliance with the Agricultural
and Veterinary Chemicals Code Act 1994 may relate to unregistered products, supply of
restricted chemical products to unauthorised users, unapproved labels, unfounded claims
in advertising or other media, or active constituents that do not conform to APVMA
standards. We actively monitor advertising, retail and online supplies to assess compliance,
and encourage industry and the public to report potential noncompliance. We also
license and audit veterinary manufacturers to ensure adherence to APVMA-prescribed
manufacturing standards. In 2013–14, APVMA-authorised auditors audited 103 licensed
Australian veterinary manufacturers.
In 2013–14, we received 243 reports of alleged noncompliance and continued to
investigate a number of cases from 2012–13. We finalised 156 allegations and 9 recall
events. One brief of evidence has been submitted and accepted for prosecution by the
Commonwealth Director of Public Prosecutions. We conducted field investigations,
including Operation Catch in 2013—a nationwide sampling of 2,4-D chemical products
and active constituents from formulators, manufacturers and retail stores. Results of the
operation were generally satisfactory.
Strategy 5—Identify and manage emerging regulatory issues. International regulatory
science is continually updated by new findings, processes and policies. We engage with
other government agencies and our international counterparts to identify emerging issues
and inform our decision-making. We collaborate on international projects and participate
in expert groups such as the Joint Meeting on Pesticide Residues (administered by the FAO
and WHO) and JECFA (on veterinary drugs).
In 2013–14, we examined a range of regulatory issues. Following consultation with
stakeholders, we completed and published a review of the use of neonicotinoid insecticides
in Australia and whether they present more of a risk to bee health than other pesticides.
We also published a review of glyphosate and birth defects, organised a symposium on
endocrine-disrupting chemicals, and commissioned a review of pesticides and Parkinson’s
disease. We are also examining the issue of nanopesticides and veterinary nanomedicines.

Chapter 2—Performance against strategies
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We are nearing completion of a report of regulatory considerations applicable to
agricultural and veterinary nanomaterials, and are part of a project being conducted by
the International Union of Pure and Applied Chemistry to develop guiding principles for a
globally harmonised ecological risk assessment methodology for nanopesticides.
Strategy 6—Engage stakeholders and regulatory partners to add value to our work.
We aim to involve stakeholders in our decision-making and promote confidence in our
decisions. Our stakeholders include our regulatory partners, registrants and manufacturers
of pesticides and veterinary medicines, farmers, veterinary practitioners, researchers,
educators and the general public. Communication activities during 2013–14 focused on
informing and educating industry about the legislative reforms and their application.
We produced web-based and printed information for a range of audiences, and conducted
training sessions on the impact of the reforms. More than 400 people attended information
sessions in Adelaide, Brisbane, Canberra, Melbourne, Perth and Sydney during February and
March 2014, and an industry workshop was held on 29 April 2014. We also held a Science
Communication Symposium so that staff from the member agencies of the Regulatory
Science Network, including APVMA staff, could learn more about science communication.
A major project in 2013–14 has been the redevelopment of our website. More than
3000 web pages and around 10 000 downloadable documents were analysed for
migration, review, deletion or archive. The new website, including the regulatory guidelines,
will be launched on 1 July 2014.
Advisory Board meetings were held in July, September and December 2013, and February
and April 2014. An industry workshop for all key stakeholder groups was held in April 2014
to prepare for the implementation of legislative reforms and to discuss strategic issues
relating to changes to APVMA business processes.
Strategy 7—Conduct our business efficiently and effectively. We aim to maintain a
high standard of operation for all our business systems, including reporting, resource and
financial management, and information and communication technologies (ICT). Our quality
management system regularly audits our performance and processes to look for ways to
improve them.
In 2013–14, we developed a new web-based portal, which includes an online application
system to guide applicants through the application process for registering pesticides and
veterinary medicines. We also launched an online tool to assist applicants and registrants
to submit their product labels. New internal systems were launched, including a web-based
application management portal, and an electronic document and records management
system. These systems will allow electronic applications to be processed more efficiently,
providing fewer opportunities for error and reducing administrative delays.
Strategy 8—Enhance performance through our people. We had 167 staff at 30 June 2014.
We aim to increase the capability of our staff through support and training. Our Learning
and Development Strategy links learning and development activities with business needs
by engaging staff in the design of internal training. In 2013–14, a full-time Learning and
Development Manager was engaged to implement the strategy. We also value and support
staff health, safety and wellbeing, and conduct a number of health and wellbeing initiatives
throughout the year.
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At a glance
2012–13

2013–14

Applications received for product registration, variation to
registration

2062

1942

Applications finalised (excludes those withdrawn at
preliminary assessment)

1864

1622

Percentage of applications finalised within the statutory
time frame (target 90%)

95%

96%

Applications received for product registration, variation to
registration or label approval

913

997

Applications finalised (excludes those withdrawn at preliminary
assessment)

782

981

Percentage of applications finalised within the statutory
time frame (target 90%)

89%

90%

Pesticides

Veterinary medicines

Registered chemicals
Review reports published

7

4

a compromises of regulatory actions taken—0 affirm active
constituent approvals, 2 cancel active constituent approvals,
0 affirm product registrations, 11 cancel product registrations,
222 vary label approvals, 203 cancel product labels

167

438

b compromises of regulatory decisions made—4 suspend active
constituent approvals, 1 continue active constituent approval
suspension, 1 revoke active constituent approval suspension,
2 suspend product registrations, 34 continue product registration
suspensions, 10 revoke product registration suspensions, 0
suspend product labels, 56 continue product label suspensions, 9
revoke product label suspensions

66

117

2935

1821

27%

90%

Allegations of noncompliance received

241

243

Allegations finalised

179

156

Recall actions taken

16

9

Monitoring visits conducted

56

49

5

3

20

16

Adverse experience reports
Reports of suspected adverse experiences assessed and classified
Reports finalised within 90 days from date of receipt
Noncompliance

Communication
International visits to APVMA
Attendance and presentations at conferences and meetings
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STRATEGY 1—INTEGRATE GOVERNMENT
REFORMS INTO CORE BUSINESS
The Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Legislation Amendment Act 2013 received royal
assent on 29 June 2013, for commencement on 1 July 2014. The main aim of the reforms
captured in the legislation is to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of registration and
review processes.

EMBED REVISED APVMA REGULATORY GUIDELINES INTO APVMA
SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES
Performance measures

Progress

Draft compendium in place by January 2014, for stakeholder
consultation, awareness raising and education

Achieved

Compendium content finalised by April 2014 for further communication
and training

Achieved (in May, to
allow further industry
consultation)

The APVMA developed new guidance material, business processes and information
technology systems to embed the new legislative requirements into our systems, and
provide greater predictability and transparency for applicants.
The APVMA’s regulatory guidelines provide details of how the relevant agricultural and
veterinary chemicals legislation is enacted by the APVMA, and how pesticides and veterinary
medicines can be registered in Australia. The guidelines, which are designed as a web-based
resource, were published in January 2014 for public consultation. The consultation period was
to close at the end of March 2014, but was extended into April 2014 at the request of industry.
As a result, and to allow sufficient time to properly take into account feedback from industry,
the APVMA delayed release of the updated version of the guidelines until May 2014.
The regulatory guidelines are supported by eight legislative instruments, which were
developed in consultation with industry from April 2014 to June 2014. The legislative
instruments cover requirements for obtaining pre-application assistance and submitting an
application, as well as efficacy and specific product standards.
Work instructions for APVMA staff, based on the regulatory guidelines, were developed
and implemented. A range of external and internal information technology systems were
developed to support the online submission and management of applications. A centralised
point of contact for all enquiries was established, and a new case management system was
designed and implemented in preparation for 1 July 2014.

ENHANCE TRANSPARENCY OF APVMA OPERATIONAL PRACTICES,
POLICIES AND GUIDELINES
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Performance measures

Progress

All relevant operational information published under the Information
Publication Scheme according to the APVMA agency plan

Achieved

Relevant guidelines (including the Risk Compendium) published
online to improve transparency of APVMA policies and procedures
for stakeholders

Achieved
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The APVMA ensures that all information we publish is accurate and up to date at the
time of publication, and endeavours to review the accuracy of the register of information
in accordance with the agency plan for the implementation of the Information
Publication Scheme.
The regulatory guidelines were published online in May 2014 following public consultation
(see above). The new guidelines are designed as a web-based product to facilitate their
ongoing review and improvement.

SUPPORT INDUSTRY READINESS TO COMPLY WITH NEW
REGULATORY FRAMEWORKS
Performance measures

Progress

Reform communication strategy developed by end July 2013, and
activities undertaken in accordance with the strategy

Achieved

Detailed industry support material in place and seminars conducted with
relevant stakeholders before commencement of new legislation

Achieved

New case management system developed and piloted, ready for full
implementation by 1 July 2014

Achieved

The APVMA developed and delivered a comprehensive training and communication
strategy to help industry to prepare for the implementation of the legislative reforms
(see case study).
A new case management system was developed and piloted during 2013–14. The new
system and processes were ready for implementation on 1 July 2014 and will be further
developed in 2014–15. Case management will deliver an efficient means of tracking,
administering and managing applications from submission to completion, to ensure that
legislative time frames are achieved. The case management system also encompasses a
single point of contact for clients for email correspondence or telephone enquiries.

IMPLEMENT CHANGES ARISING FROM THE 2013 AMENDMENTS TO
THE APVMA’S GOVERNING LEGISLATION IN PREPARATION FOR
COMMENCEMENT ON 1 JULY 2014
Performance measures

Progress

Reforms implemented in accordance with time frames

Achieved

Throughout 2013–14, the APVMA implemented the necessary changes to guidance
material, business processes and information technology systems to give effect to the
legislative reforms commencing on 1 July 2014. This included engaging with industry and
relevant government agencies at national, and state and territory levels.

ENSURE STAFF ARE AWARE OF CHANGES AND ARE CAPABLE OF
DELIVERING THE REFORM OBJECTIVES
Performance measures

Progress

All staff trained before the commencement of the new legislation

Achieved

Staff development has been a key priority for the APVMA during 2013–14, to ensure that
the organisation is prepared for implementation of the legislative reforms (see case study).
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CASE STUDY
Training for reform
Training for industry has been a critical learning and development project in the
implementation of the legislative reforms. The Learning and Development area has actively
worked with line managers and subject matter experts to develop training options that are
tailored to the needs of our external stakeholders.
More than 400 people attended information sessions held in Adelaide, Brisbane, Canberra,
Melbourne, Perth and Sydney during February and March 2014. APVMA staff presented
an overview of the changes in key areas and then took questions from the audience.
The format, deliberately designed to allow plenty of time for questions, was positively
received by participants.
Feedback from these sessions was used to develop and implement a training program,
which aimed to ensure that all key stakeholders are confident and informed about the
changes taking place in the operation of the APVMA.
Detailed industry support material was developed and used for industry training on the new
reforms, which was conducted on 2–3 June and again on 12–13 June. The feedback received
from participants in this training was very positive, with 93.75 per cent of participants
confirming that the training improved their readiness for the upcoming legislative changes.
Training topics covered were:
• application processes
• evaluation and determination
• fees and charges
• permits
• adverse experience reporting
• noncompliance powers
• using the portal.
The training workshops are supported by a suite of e-learning modules, which are available
through the APVMA website. The first of these modules is pre-application assistance.
Staff development was also a key priority for the APVMA during 2013–14, to ensure that
the organisation is prepared for implementation of the legislative reforms. Our Legislative
Reform Training suite has been implemented using a three-tier approach: T1—high-level
overview of key changes and processes, T2—exploring and understanding new technical
processes, and T3—on-the-job training in new practices and procedures. Nontechnical
subjects were also incorporated, to help staff manage their work more efficiently, balance
work–life commitments and develop themselves as leaders.
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HEADING LEVEL 2
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• minor use applies to situations usually involving low acreage, small portions
• crops or animal species that are not covered by the product label emergency use for
situations such as outbreaks of exotic pests and diseases
• research allows chemical products to be used in research trials of varying sizes
• purposes, such as determining the suitability of a product for a new use or generating
data necessary to register a product
• export allows the permit holder to possess and supply an unregistered chemical
• an unapproved active constituent for export purposes only.

Heading Level 3
Empos maionse ndist, eremporion raeribuste volore di nis secturio conet, et accum ut aut
volesto cones molor sum res dolupta tempore storro elibust et etum que qui temporem.
Et quis di nis sin consed et aut lautasp editas mo ipsam, as aut arumquod que et ipsaess
intiument molore volupta dolupie niminimpor arciunt ma quis doluptatios.

Table 2

Table Description

Target or initiative

Progress

A range of new e-learning modules will be released in 2014–15.
Target: Ensure no significant audit findings
Target:

Deliver 5–8 awareness-raising activities

Achieved
Rescheduled for
2013–2014

Initiative: Develop an online presence for the Regulatory guidelines

Deferred

Initiative:	Develop an awareness-raising program for operational impact
of reform for stakeholders

Deferred

Fugia serum as se sa consequunt, quiduciam facculla venimet, volorectus exceaquis eriore
perios atiossunt, cum estis verspedit ani od quatur, quia vit quo expland ucimporum rerio.
Nam eruntum repudae et eiciatus intiunt omniment etusdamet et volorem.
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Industry training held in Canberra
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STRATEGY 2—CONDUCT ROBUST,
RISK-BASED, SCIENTIFIC EVALUATIONS
TO SUPPORT SOUND REGULATORY
DECISIONS
Our scientific evaluations are based on robust, risk-based methods. Registrations and
approvals of pesticides and veterinary medicines are only granted if we are satisfied that
the evidence indicates that these chemicals can be used safely and effectively. We review
the latest international science and regulatory information to inform our decisions. We also
help applicants to navigate the regulatory processes, and work to improve our internal
processes to support decision-making.
We have two separate evaluation programs: the Pesticides Program and the Veterinary
Medicines Program. Activities in these programs are supported by the development of
information materials, new business processes and training.

MAKE QUALITY, TIMELY DECISIONS ON REGISTRATION, ACTIVE
APPROVAL AND PERMIT APPLICATIONS
Performance measures

Progress

Time frame performance met for applications received before
commencement of new legislation:

Achieved

• 90% of product registrations

94%

• 60% of active approvals

80%

• 85% of permits

90%

Work practices reviewed to ensure alignment with legislative
requirements, and staff trained appropriately

Achieved

Enhanced peer-review processes implemented

Achieved

Our pesticides and veterinary medicines evaluation programs ensure that chemicals
intended for sale in Australia are safe and effective (see ‘Highlights: new products for
agricultural and animal health’). We generate quarterly performance statistics for the
programs, which are analysed for trends such as the number of applications received, the
number in progress and the percentage finalised within statutory time frames. When trends
are negative with respect to our targets, we investigate and take action to address the
causes. Quarterly statistics are summarised on the APVMA website.
Work practices continued to be reviewed and developed to ensure that they are aligned
with the legislative reforms. Staff training on the new legislative framework and practices
has been under way since early 2014.
Two new positions—Health Assessment Coordinator and Environmental Assessment
Coordinator—were created. The Health Assessment Coordinator provides technical
oversight of toxicology, and work health and safety assessments, which are generally
done by the Office of Chemical Safety in the Australian Government Department of
Health The Environmental Assessment Coordinator provides technical oversight of
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environmental assessments, which are generally done by the Chemical Assessments
Section in the Australian Government Department of the Environment. These positions
have played an important role by peer-reviewing assessments conducted for the APVMA,
especially those with more difficult or contentious issues.

Pesticides evaluation
Product applications
We received 1942 applications for product registration, variation to registration or label
approval for pesticide products in 2013–14. This is 5.8 per cent less than in the previous year
(Table 1). By the end of 2013–14, approximately 6.5 per cent more applications were still in
progress than at the end of the previous year.

Table 1

Applications for pesticide product registration or variation, 2013–14

Applications

2012–13

2013–14

% change

Number of applications in progress at beginning
of period

1028

1039

1.8

Applications received

2062

1942

–5.8

Applications finalised

2054

1870

–9.0

Number of applications in progress at end of period

1039

1107

6.5

Note: Statistics include 248 applications received that were, in screening, either withdrawn by the applicant,
treated as withdrawn or rejected. Although the APVMA did not accept these applications for evaluation, they
are regarded as finalised.

Product finalisations
Our target in 2013–14 was to finalise 90 per cent of applications for pesticide products
within the statutory time frame. We completed 1870 applications, 96 per cent within the
statutory time frame (Table 2).
The average elapsed time for the 20 finalised applications falling into the 13–15-month
category is reported as 35.6 months. This figure is heavily influenced by applications
for new products that required the generation of additional data during the course
of assessment.
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Table 2

Pesticide product finalisations, 2013–14
2012–13

Class of
application

2013–14

Total
finalised

Total
finalised

Finalised
in time
frame

Finalised
in time
frame
(%)

Average
clock time
to finalise
(months)

Average
elapsed time
to finalise
(months)

1

17

17

100

NA

3.7

1490

1241

1223

99

1.6

3.7

186

209

189

90

4.6

11.3

6–8 months

86

78

71

91

6.5

12.8

9–12 months

80

57

48

84

9.3

19.4

13–15 months

17

20

13

68

16.1

32.3

1864

1622

1561

96

NA

NA

Modular
2–3 months
5 months

Total

modular = no fixed time frame or fee; NA = not applicable
Note: Statistics do not include 248 applications received that were, in screening, either withdrawn by the
applicant, treated as withdrawn or rejected. Although the APVMA did not accept these applications for
evaluation, they are regarded as finalised.

Permits and minor use
Permits may be considered by the APVMA for four purposes:
• minor use—applies to situations usually involving low acreage, small portions of highacreage crops, or animal species that are not covered by the product label
• emergency use—for situations such as outbreaks of exotic pests and diseases
• research—allows chemical products to be used in research trials of varying sizes for
scientific purposes, such as determining the suitability of a product for a new use or
generating data necessary to register a product
• export—allows the permit holder to possess and supply an unregistered chemical
product or an unapproved active constituent for export purposes only.
In 2013–14, we received 487 applications and finalised 438 permits, of which 90 per cent
were completed within the statutory time frame. Of the permits finalised, approximately
42 per cent were for minor use, 13 per cent were for research purposes, 3 per cent were for
emergency uses, and the remaining 42 per cent were for export purposes and renewal of
existing permits.
Of the minor use and emergency use permits issued during the year, horticultural crops
remained the largest sector seeking approvals (71 per cent of all issued permits). Vegetables
made up 35 per cent of total permits issued; fruits and nuts, 29 per cent; and non–food
producing crops, such as ornamentals, nursery stock, turf, essential oils, pyrethrum and
poppies, 7 per cent.
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Other sectors and purposes that were issued minor use permits included broadacre
crops (10 per cent), environmental and noxious weeds (10 per cent), invertebrate pests
(5 per cent), vertebrate pests (2 per cent) and plantation forestry (2 per cent).

Veterinary medicines evaluation
Product applications
We received 997 applications for product registration, variation to registration or label
approval for veterinary medicine products in 2013–14. This is 9.2 per cent more than in
the previous year (Table 3). By the end of 2013–14, 2.1 per cent more applications were
still in progress than at the end of the previous year. This is the result of more complex
applications requiring technical assessment: although there was a 13 per cent reduction in
the number of applications finalised with short (2–3 month) time frames, from 564 to 491,
the number of more complex (5+ months) applications finalised increased by 24 per cent,
from 233 to 289.

Table 3	Applications for veterinary medicine product registration or variation,
2013–14
Applications

2012–13

2013–14

% change

Number of applications in progress at beginning
of period

811

828

2.1

Applications received

913

997

9.2

Applications finalised

782

1187

51.8

Number of applications in progress at end of period

828

640

–22.7

Note: Statistics include 206 applications received that were, in screening, either withdrawn by the applicant,
treated as withdrawn or rejected. Although the APVMA did not accept these applications for evaluation, they
are regarded as finalised.

Product finalisations
Our target in 2013–14 was to finalise 90 per cent of applications for veterinary medicines
within the statutory time frame. We finalised 1187 applications, 52 per cent more than for
the previous year, with 90 per cent of these within the statutory time frame (Table 4).
The average elapsed time for the 19 finalised applications in the 13–15-month category
is reported as 40.6 months. This figure is heavily influenced by the finalisation of some
longstanding applications.

26

APVMA Annual Report 2013–14

Table 4

Veterinary medicine product finalisations, 2013–14
2012–13

Class of
application

2013–14

Total
finalised

Total
finalised

Finalised
in time
frame

Finalised
in time
frame
(%)

Average
clock time
to finalise
(months)

Average
elapsed time
to finalise
(months)

0

0

NA

NA

NA

NA

2–3 months

491

696

668

96

1.1

5.6

5 months

170

173

155

90

4.9

11.7

6–8 months

44

55

24

44

10.1

22.2

9–12 months

49

38

25

66

10.9

27.4

13–15 months

26

19

12

63

20.7

40.6

782

981

884

90

NA

NA

Modular

Total

modular = no fixed time frame or fee; NA = not applicable
Note: Statistics do not include 206 applications received that were, in screening, either withdrawn by the
applicant, treated as withdrawn, or rejected. Although the APVMA did not accept these applications for
evaluation, they are regarded as finalised.

Permits and minor use
In 2013–14, we received 181 permit applications and finalised 152 permits, of which
91 per cent were completed within the statutory time frame.
Permit renewals accounted for 43 per cent of permits issued. The largest proportion
(39 per cent) of the new permits issued were for research purposes. Export permits
accounted for 11 per cent, and minor use permits 7 per cent.
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HIGHLIGHTS
New products for agriculture and animal health
This year has seen a significant number
of approvals and registrations for new
pesticides and veterinary medicines, and
major extensions of use (Table A). These
new products have significantly expanded
the range of products available to farmers
and veterinary practitioners to reduce
pests, and to prevent and treat disease.
The data on 13–18-month assessments are
an indicator of innovative products for
which there is new chemistry.
New products for agriculture

• a herbicide containing the active
constituent terbuthylazine for control
and suppression of weeds in wheat,
barley and oats

• an insecticide containing the active
constituent sulfoxaflor for control of
insect pests in broadacre, vegetable and
fruit crops
• an insecticide containing the active
constituent cyromazine for use in
mushroom production
• an insecticide containing the active
constituent emamectin to control insect
pests in pulses

New products for animal health registered
this year, based on active constituents
not previously registered in veterinary
medicines in Australia, included:
• a vaccine for pigs to aid in prevention
of infection with porcine circovirus
type 2 (PCV-2), viraemia and PCV-2
transmission, and in the control of
PCV-associated disease
• a vaccine to aid in control of
reproductive losses, including abortions,
due to Campylobacter infection in sheep
• a product to treat hyperthyroidism and
hyperthyroidism-associated clinical signs
in cats
• a product to aid in management of
overweight and obesity in adult dogs.

Number of 13–18-month finalisations, 2009–14
2009–10

2010–11

2011–12

2012–13

2013–14

Pesticides

11

13

23

17

20

Veterinary medicines

8

5

18

26

19

19

18

41

43

39

Total
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• the insecticide deltamethrin
incorporated within netting material
for use in bed nets for the control of
mosquitoes

New products for animal health

• a herbicide containing the active
constituent prosulfocarb in combination
with metolachlor for control of grass and
broadleaf weeds in potatoes

Table A

• an insecticide containing the active
constituent spinetoram for control of
insect pests in sweet corn

• a fungicide containing the active
constituent tebuconazole for use as a
pruning wound dressing on apple and
cherry trees.

New pesticides and major extensions for
agriculture approved this year include:

• an insecticide containing the active
constituent cyantraniliprole in

combination with thiamethoxam for
control of Argentine stem weevil larvae,
scarab beetle larvae, and armyworm and
cutworm caterpillars in turf
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SUPPORT PROVISION OF HIGH-QUALITY APPLICATIONS
Performance measures

Progress

Tools developed to promote online submission of applications and data

Achieved

Current electronic application and registration system replaced with a
web-based system

Achieved

Examination undertaken of new models to better support minor use

Deferred

Processes implemented to provide formalised pre-application assistance
to applicants

Achieved

Two courses run for applicants and consultants on application preparation

Achieved

During 2013–14, a range of new application tools were developed to support industry and
assist in its application processes.
We implemented a new electronic decision-support tool, which will enable potential
applicants to determine whether their agricultural chemical product requires registration.
This system is already available for veterinary medicines applications but is now being
extended to agricultural chemical applications.
A new web-based portal was developed to provide a ‘one stop shop’ for applicants and
others who need to interact with the APVMA. The portal contains a new decision tree
and online application system that will allow applications to be submitted electronically in
accordance with the new legislation.
The decision tree will guide applicants through the application process and the choices
they need to make about their application. The online application system will allow
applicants to easily lodge their applications and supporting data. The new e-lodgement
process will be more efficient, provide fewer opportunities for errors, reduce delays in
the receipt of applications and improve APVMA administrative processes. Applicants will
also be provided with a range of real-time information on the status of their applications
through a new interface called My Portal. The new system will integrate with the new
regulatory guidelines. A new e-label facility will allow applicants to submit their draft
labels electronically. These new systems were developed and tested in 2013–14, and will be
launched on 1 July 2014.
We also developed a new secure web-based agency portal that will allow application data
to be securely shared with the Australian Government Department of the Environment
and the Office of Chemical Safety within the Department of Health, for the purposes
of assessment.
A new electronic document and records management system was successfully
implemented in April 2014. The new system is key to the APVMA’s move to electronic
submissions, allowing the very large amounts of data the APVMA processes each year to
be managed digitally.
In 2013–14, we redeveloped our public information search facility (called PubCRIS).
The previous web-based form has been improved and now scales to the mobile device from
which it is accessed. Additional product information for stopped, cancelled and expired
products is now included. Search results can be downloaded and manipulated in software
such as Excel. A new search interface for PubCRIS will be developed in early 2014–15.
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New internal information and communication technology systems are being progressively
rolled out that will allow electronic applications to be processed more efficiently, providing
fewer opportunities for error and reducing administrative delays. A new internal portal has
been developed and will offer new functionality, such as case management (see ‘Support
industry readiness to comply with new regulatory frameworks’ in Strategy 1). The move
to digital information will facilitate a range of further productivity improvements across
the APVMA.
The Australian Government has committed $8.0 million over four years to help farmers
improve their access to minor uses of agricultural and veterinary chemicals from 2014–15.
The program, to be led by the Department of Agriculture, aims to develop tools and
processes to help farmers access agvet chemicals, while still ensuring the protection of
human health and the environment. The APVMA deferred internal work on minor use to
ensure that it aligns with this new initiative.

ADOPT ENHANCED REGULATORY STANDARDS AND FRAMEWORKS
FOR EVALUATIONS
Performance measures

Progress

Analysis of VICH international guidelines undertaken to determine their
suitability for adoption in Australia, and at least two guidelines adopted

Achieved

Expert panels established and used for at least two science quality issues

Achieved

New arrangements put in place to register biological products independently
of biosecurity requirements

Achieved

Ensure changes to regulatory frameworks and standards are applied across
the APVMA and advisory agencies

Achieved

In 2013–14, we adopted 14 guidelines from the VICH (International Cooperation on
Harmonisation of Technical Requirements for Registration of Veterinary Medicinal
Products) and 12 guidelines from the World Association for the Advancement of
Veterinary Parasitology.
We have established and worked with expert panels on the APVMA’s application of the
JECFA approach to recommending MRLs for veterinary medicines (see case study below),
and on nanopesticides (see case study in Strategy 5).
A new process has been implemented to enable finalisation of registrations and permits
for applications that are deficient only because an Agriculture Biosecurity permit has not
yet been granted. In such cases, registrations may be granted or permits issued with a
condition that the product may only be supplied once the Agriculture Biosecurity permit
has been granted. This change has improved the efficiency of the APVMA assessment
process and will mean faster registrations or issuance of permits for affected products.
In 2013–14, we implemented a new regulatory framework and standards that reflect the
legislative reforms. (See ‘Embed revised APVMA regulatory guidelines into APVMA systems
and processes’ in Strategy 1).
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DEVELOP REGULATORY FRAMEWORK TO SUPPORT SPRAY DRIFT
POLICY
Performance measures

Progress

Draft consultation framework published by January 2014

Not achieved

Consultation completed by June 2014

Not achieved

The spray drift project commenced in mid-September 2013. The milestones for the project
were adjusted so that the scientific aspects of the review could be addressed first, to guide
communication strategy requirements. As a result, the framework is not expected to be
finalised for consultation until 2014–15.
In December 2013, we formed a working group of technical experts from national, state
and territory government agencies to collaborate and discuss the regulatory implications of
scientific advances in spray drift research. We also engaged with expert international spray
drift regulators and researchers, culminating in a workshop in Brisbane run by the National
Working Party on Pesticide Application in June 2014.

FINALISE ARRANGEMENTS FOR CONTROL OF LABELS IN
THE MARKETPLACE
Performance measures

Progress

Revised arrangements for control of market labels in place by June 2014

Achieved

The regulation of product labels is an important part of our work, ensuring that accurate
use and safety information is provided to chemical users. The APVMA approves product
labels as part of the product registration process. In June 2014, we launched an online tool
to assist applicants and registrants to maintain their product labels. The tool simplifies the
application process into an online form that has much of the content preformatted. Labels
are complex and consist of multiple parts; an applicant is now able to highlight just the
parts of the label proposed for change. This saves time for the applicant, and will make
assessment of label applications easier and more efficient for APVMA staff.

REVIEW APPLICATION OF JOINT EXPERT COMMITTEE ON FOOD
ADDITIVES METHODOLOGY FOR SETTING MAXIMUM RESIDUE LEVELS
FOR VETERINARY MEDICINES
Performance measures

Progress

Review undertaken by March 2014

Achieved

A meeting was held at the APVMA on 10–11 December 2013 to review the APVMA’s
application of the JECFA approach to recommending MRLs for veterinary medicines (see
case study). The meeting also considered certain matters relating to veterinary medicine
residues that fall outside the scope of JECFA’s work, including the assignment of slaughter
withholding periods and export slaughter intervals. In addition, practical measures to inform
the development of best practice in Australia for the regulation of veterinary chemicals
used in food-producing species were discussed. A meeting report and recommendations,
and phased implementation of the program will occur in 2014–15.
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CASE STUDY
Striving for best practice in the evaluation of veterinary medicine
residues in food
The regulation of pesticides and veterinary medicines in Australia has a long history.
By 1945, all states had legislation in place requiring pesticides and veterinary medicines
to be registered before sale. The determination of maximum residue limits (MRLs) for
pesticides and veterinary medicines for use in Australia commenced in 1961. (The MRL is
the maximum concentration of a residue resulting from the registered use of an agricultural
or veterinary chemical that is legally permitted or recognised as acceptable in or on
food.) In 2006, Australia aligned with international practice when the APVMA decided to
adopt the Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives (JECFA) approach for
determining MRLs for veterinary medicines.
In December 2013, a meeting was held at the APVMA to review the APVMA’s application
of the JECFA approach to recommending MRLs for veterinary medicines. Four experts
participated in the meeting as independent expert advisers: Dr Dieter Arnold from
Germany, Professor Alan Boobis from the United Kingdom, Dr Art Craigmill from the United
States and Emeritus Professor Jock McLean from Australia. All are internationally renowned
for their expertise in the fields of toxicology and/or residues of veterinary medicines in
animal-derived foods.
Animal Medicines Australia Limited (formerly Animal Health Alliance [Australia]) and the
Veterinary Manufacturers and Distributors Association were invited to lodge submissions
for consideration by the experts; one submission was received. In addition, representatives
of four animal health companies accepted invitations from the APVMA to discuss their
concerns relating to the current Australian system directly with the panel.
The visiting experts made recommendations aimed at strengthening the APVMA’s
evaluation of veterinary medicine residues. The recommendations involve four areas:
workflows, evaluating risk, communicating risk, and resources. A report describing the
meeting’s conclusions and recommendations will be published in 2014–15.
During their visit, the experts also presented a training session to staff from the
APVMA, the Office of Chemical Safety and Food Standards Australia New Zealand.
The training addressed issues at the cutting edge of toxicology and residues of
veterinary medicines in food, including
physiological-based pharmacokinetics,
population pharmacokinetics, and a new
approach for assessing dietary exposure
to veterinary medicines in food, as trialled
at the 78th meeting of JECFA held in
November 2013.
Implementation of the recommendations
and the training will assist the APVMA as it
strives for best practice in the evaluation of
veterinary medicine residues in food.
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CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT OF RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORKS
UNDERPINNING DECISION-MAKING
Performance measures

Progress

Research undertaken into best-practice risk management approaches by
science-based regulators

Ongoing

Risk assessment practices and procedures reviewed to ensure best practice

Ongoing

The APVMA contributed to a Food Standards Australia New Zealand workshop on risk
management, at which each agency considered regulatory approaches to the management
of risk.
The United States Environmental Protection Agency 2012 crop re-entry calculator (for safe
re-entry of workers into pesticide-treated crops) was assessed for its validity to Australian
pesticide use situations; it was deemed suitable to replace the previous re-entry calculator
(the 2000 version).
Also in 2013–14, international experts reviewed the APVMA’s application of the JECFA
approach for determining MRLs for veterinary medicines (see case study above).
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HIGHLIGHTS
of APVMA risk management research
Environmental exposure modelling
We have continued work on a project to
develop catchment-specific environmental
exposure methods.
Traditionally, simple models have been
used to estimate pesticide levels that
might occur in water bodies as a result
of run-off or spray drift. In recent years,
Australian state government agencies have
made catchment-specific environmental
datasets (rainfall, stream and river flows,
landform slopes, etc.) freely available on
the internet. It is now possible to use these
data to conduct more complex regulatory
environmental risk assessments that better
reflect real-world conditions.
To develop these assessment methods, we
have compiled datasets and developed
methodology for run-off risk calculations
and buffer zone determinations for
pesticide use in dryland cropping regions
of Australia. The methodology has been
discussed with the Australian Government
Department of the Environment, and with
state and territory representatives on the
Registration Liaison Committee. The next
step is to publish the methodology on
our website and seek comment from
the regulated industry and the public
on technical issues, before considering
further development of the methodology
as a regulatory tool in environmental
risk assessment.
Pesticide Handler Exposure Database
We are investigating ways to better
estimate exposure of workers when they
handle and use pesticides. The aim of this
project is to improve estimates of exposure
of pesticide users when actual exposure
data are not available from measurements
made during a scientific trial.
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The Office of Chemical Safety (OCS) in
the Australian Government Department
of Health (which conducts public and
work health and safety assessments on
pesticides and veterinary medicines for the
APVMA) uses a database called P-HED
(Pesticide Handler Exposure Database)
to estimate worker exposure to pesticides
for a range of mixing and application
practices. A United States taskforce is
currently measuring dermal and inhalation
exposure of agricultural workers applying
pesticides by different methods to a range
of crops. Once generated, these new data
will replace or extend older datasets in
P-HED in an exposure dataset called the
Agricultural Handler Exposure Database
(A-HED).
The Chief Regulatory Scientist, Pesticides,
has been liaising with representatives of
the chemical crop protection industry to
work out the best way for the Australian
regulatory system to access and use
proprietary data in A-HED as the data
become available.
Crop re-entry calculator
We are updating the re-entry calculator
for workers re-entering pesticide-treated
crops.
The OCS has been using the 2000 version
of the United States Environmental
Protection Agency re-entry risk calculator
to estimate the likely transfer of pesticides
from sprayed crops to workers reentering the crop. An updated version of
the calculator was published in 2012.
We have reviewed the changes made in the
calculator and established its suitability for
Australian use, and chemical registrants are
now submitting re-entry calculations based
on the 2012 calculator.

STRATEGY 3—IDENTIFY AND
RECONSIDER EXISTING CHEMICALS OF
REGULATORY CONCERN
We review existing chemicals to assess any new information that raises concerns about the
use of the chemicals, and take regulatory action to mitigate identified risks.

MONITOR REGULATORY AND SCIENTIFIC DEVELOPMENTS AND
ADVERSE EXPERIENCES, AND INITIATE REVIEWS WHEN WARRANTED
Performance measures

Progress

Issues identified and considered; responses developed and reported as needed

Achieved

Annual summary of adverse experience reports published

Not achieved

In 2013–14, we have researched and liaised with other regulatory agencies about a range of
current issues (see ‘Highlights of APMVA research’).

Adverse Experience Reporting Program
The APVMA’s Adverse Experience Reporting Program (AERP) assesses reports of adverse
events associated with registered pesticides or veterinary medicines when used according
to the approved label directions. An adverse event can be any undesirable experience—
such as damage to human or animal health, or the environment—that arises from the use
of the chemical. The AERP facilitates regulatory action that may be necessary to ensure
the continued safety, quality and effectiveness of registered products. The AERP has two
components: the AERP Vet for registered veterinary medicines and the AERP Ag for
registered agricultural chemicals.
Under s. 161 of the Agvet Code, product registrants have a legal obligation to report to the
APVMA any adverse events from the use of their registered product. In addition, anyone
can voluntarily report an adverse experience to the APVMA, including veterinarians, animal
owners, farmers, gardeners, agronomists, health workers, state and territory authorities, and
members of the public.
The AERP assesses and classifies adverse experience reports relating to:
• human health, including users or members of the public
• animal health
• nontarget crop or plant damage
• lack of efficacy
• residue violations
• environmental damage.
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HIGHLIGHTS
of APVMA research
Neonicotinoid insecticides and bees
A regulatory stakeholder workshop—to
consider bee protection goals, testing
requirements for insecticides with respect
to possible effects on bees, and label
warnings and use instructions—was held at
the APVMA on 24 July 2013. Following this
workshop and consultation with a range
of stakeholders, we completed a review
of the use of neonicotinoid insecticides in
Australia and whether they present more of
a risk to bee health than other pesticides.
This review was published on our website
on 19 February 2014 (archive.apvma.gov.
au/news_media/chemicals/bee_and_
neonicotinoids.php). It summarised the
current state of research on neonicotinoids
and their regulatory status in other
jurisdictions, made recommendations to
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increase our understanding of bee health
issues in Australia and reduce the risks to
bees from the use of these insecticides,
and outlined options available to the
APVMA if new information suggests that
further regulatory action to reduce the
environmental risks of neonicotinoids is
warranted.
Following publication of this report, the
Chief Regulatory Scientist, Pesticides, and
the Chief Executive Officer were invited
to appear before the Canadian Senate’s
Standing Committee on Agriculture
and Forestry, which is examining the
importance of bees and bee health in the
production of honey, food and seed in
Canada. This took place via a video link on
7 May 2014.
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The APVMA may take various actions in response to its assessment and classification of an
adverse experience report. These actions include:
• suspending and/or cancelling the registration of a product
• amending the conditions of a product registration, such as requiring changes to label
instructions or warnings
• reviewing the active constituent of a product under the APVMA’s Chemical Review
Program
• referring the matter to state control-of-use authorities for action
• undertaking educational and promotional activities.
In 2013–14, we assessed and classified 2138 reports of suspected adverse experiences
relating to pesticides and veterinary medicines:
• AERP Ag—We assessed 74 adverse experience reports relating to pesticides; 38 per
cent involved impacts on crops or target areas, 3 per cent involved lack of effect,
5 per cent involved environmental or nontarget effects, and 54 per cent involved
human health issues.
• AERP Vet—We assessed 2064 adverse experience reports relating to veterinary
medicines; 81 per cent involved animal safety, 15 per cent involved lack of efficacy and
4 per cent involved human health issues. Numerous enquiries were also received from
veterinarians and members of the public.
Based on these reports and assessments, the AERP provided feedback to various areas
of the APVMA and relevant state agencies to assist them in making compliance, quality
assurance, registration, review and licensing decisions. In 2013–14, no adverse experience
reports required significant regulatory action.
We also launched a new online reporting system to facilitate more effective reporting
by stakeholders. This upgrade has improved our data-gathering potential, the quality of
reports and user satisfaction.

SELECT AND TAKE ACTION ON REGISTERED CHEMICALS WHEN
CONCERNS ARE IDENTIFIED AND VALIDATED BY THE APVMA
Performance measures

Progress

At least six chemical review decisions completed

Achieved

Number of Adverse Experience Reporting Program reports requiring
significant regulatory action less than 1%

Achieved

99% compliance with maximum residue limits of agvet chemicals in food
commodities (as reported in the National Residue Survey)

Achieved

Regulatory decisions
The APVMA has the authority to reconsider approved active constituents (the component
of the pesticide or veterinary medicine product that is responsible for its physiological
or pharmacological action), registered products or labels if credible new data suggest
that current use may pose previously unknown risks to human health, animal or crop
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safety, the environment or trade, or suggest product ineffectiveness. If this happens, the
APVMA can initiate a reconsideration process to assess the identified risk and determine
whether changes are needed to ensure that the product can continue to be used safely
and effectively. Chemicals prioritised for review are listed in the priority candidate review
list (apvma.gov.au/node/10876). The possible regulatory decisions at the completion of a
review are no changes (affirmation), changes to approval or registration (variation), or no
further approval or registration (cancellation).
The APVMA undertook 438 regulatory actions following chemical reviews in 2013–14.
These were:
• affirm active constituent approvals (0)
• cancel active constituent approvals (2)
• affirm product registrations (0)
• cancel product registrations (11)
• vary label approvals (222)
• cancel product labels (203).
The APVMA also has the authority to suspend registrations or approvals for a specified
period. Instructions for use are issued when there is an immediate concern that can be
managed in the short term. Suspensions can also be put in place to allow for relevant trial
work to generate results needed for consideration or to provide additional information
within specific time frames. In 2013–14, 117 regulatory decisions were made. These were:
• suspend active constituent approvals (4)
• continue active constituent approval suspensions (1)
• revoke active constituent approval suspensions (1)
• suspend product registration (2)
• continue product registration suspensions (34)
• revoke product registration suspensions (10)
• suspend product labels (0)
• continue product label suspensions (56)
• revoke product label suspensions (9).

Chemical review outcomes
The outcomes of chemical reviews in 2013–14 include the following:
• 2,4-D high-volatile esters (HVE)—In August 2013, the APVMA cancelled selected
2,4-D HVE active constituent approvals, product registrations and associated label
approvals (2 active constituent approval cancellations, 4 active constituent approval
suspensions, 14 active constituent approval voluntary cancellations, revocation of the
suspension of 1 active constituent approval, 11 product registration cancellations, 82 label
approval cancellations, 111 new product label approvals). This completed part 1 of the
review of 2,4-D following the publication in July 2013 of the annex to the APVMA’s
Preliminary review findings (environment) part 1: 2,4-D esters volume 1: review summary.
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• Diazinon—In October 2013, the APVMA suspended the registration of the product
Southern Cross Gold OP Spray-on Off-Shears Sheep Lice Treatment and its associated
label approval.
• Dichlorvos—In September 2013, the APVMA revoked the suspension of one product for
the purpose of approving a new label as part of an application to vary the instructions
for use of the product. The new label is consistent with the regulatory decisions made
in the dichlorvos final review report and regulatory decision, published in March 2011.
In October 2013, the APVMA continued the suspension of the registrations and label
approvals of six dichlorvos products used for grain protection.
• Dimethoate—In September 2013, the suspension of certain dimethoate products was
continued until 5 October 2014 (continuation of 16 product registration suspensions,
continuation of 48 label approval suspensions, revocation of 9 product registration
suspensions, 9 new product label approvals, 27 label approval cancellations, 3 voluntary
label approval cancellations).
• Fenthion—In October 2013, the suspension of fenthion home garden and horticultural
products and labels was continued until October 2014. In May 2014, the fenthion
preliminary review findings were published for a three-month public consultation phase,
along with the environmental, updated work health and safety, and veterinary residues
assessment reports.
• Molinate—In January 2014, the APVMA released the molinate preliminary review findings
report for a three-month public consultation phase.
• Sheep ectoparasiticides (multiple active constituents)—In June 2014, the APVMA
published the review findings report for sheep ectoparasiticides and finalised the review
(94 product label approval cancellations, 94 new product label approvals).
Other chemical outcomes include:
• Naphthalene—In 2013–14, the registration of one mothball product containing
naphthalene and its accompanying label were voluntarily cancelled.
• Quintozene—In 2013–14, the suspension of 1 quintozene active constituent approval and
10 product registrations was continued, pending the provision of chemistry data on the
concentration of dioxins in the active constituent.

Ongoing reviews
Nineteen chemicals remain under review:
• 2,4-D low-volatile esters
• chlorpyrifos
• diazinon
• dimethoate
• diquat
• fenamiphos
• fenitrothion
• fenthion
• fipronil
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• macrolide antibiotics
• maldison (malathion)
• methidathion
• methiocarb
• molinate
• neomycin
• omethoate
• paraquat
• polihexanide
• procymidone.

Maximum residue limits of agvet chemicals in food commodities
The Portfolio Budget Statement target of 99 per cent compliance with MRLs in food
commodities for pesticides and veterinary medicines has been achieved. Compliance
is monitored and reported by the National Residue Survey section of the Australian
Government Department of Agriculture.
In 2013–14, we evaluated pesticide residue data for 37 applications for product registration
and 130 applications for permits. Including variations resulting from chemical review
activity, we made 698 variations to the APVMA MRL standard. For veterinary medicines,
we evaluated residue data for 13 applications for product registration and 4 applications for
permits. We made 4 variations to the APVMA MRL standard. We also made 12 amendments
to the Australia New Zealand Food Standards Code, resulting in 436 MRL variations, 310 of
which were associated with uses approved under permit.
We also continued to implement harmonisation initiatives with other Australian
Government and international agencies. The Japanese Positive List is a project initiated
in 2006–07 by the Australian Government Department of Agriculture, with support from
relevant industry organisations. The project has provided information to the Japanese
Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare to support the establishment of MRLs in Japan,
based on Australian use patterns and registrations. In 2013–14, we provided information to
Japanese authorities regarding MRLs for 16 pesticides and veterinary medicines.

INFORM STAKEHOLDERS OF REGULATORY ACTIVITY ON REGISTERED
CHEMICALS
Performance measures

Progress

Participation in, or delivery of, review-related stakeholder forums

Achieved

It is important that we communicate with the chemical industry and chemical users
about our decision-making, both to ensure that they are up to date with any changes
and to receive input to our decisions. In 2013–14, we conducted an extensive program
of stakeholder engagement:
• July 2013—We held various stakeholder meetings to discuss the 2,4-D review and
particularly the issue around dioxins; stakeholders included CropLife, the National
Farmers’ Federation and product registrants.
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• September 2013—The Chemical Review Manager gave a presentation to the NSW
Groundsprayers Association annual conference in Dubbo on the Chemical Review
Program and the AERP.
• October 2013—The Registration Liaison Committee was updated on the latest
developments within the Chemical Review Program. A specific update was provided
on the progress of the fenthion review, including the proposed extension of the current
suspension, removal of use of fenthion on stone fruit (with the exception of cherries,
plums and nectarines) and changes to withholding periods in light of new residues data.
• October 2013—The Chemical Review Manager gave a presentation at a workshop on
consumer product risk assessment that was organised by the Australian Competition
and Consumer Commission. The presentation focused on the risk analysis tools used
in the postmarket surveillance of pesticides and veterinary medicines, and covered
chemical review, the AERP and compliance.
• October 2013—We held teleconferences with grower groups regarding the continuation
of the suspension of certain fenthion products and the removal of uses on stone fruit.
• January 2014—We met with approval holders and product registrants to discuss the
paraquat review.
• February and March 2014—We met with stakeholders to discuss the molinate review.
• February 2014—We met with approval holders and product registrants to discuss the
maldison review.
• February 2014—The Chemical Review Manager gave a presentation to a ChemCert
accreditation workshop in Port Macquarie.
• March 2014—Staff from the chemical review team gave a presentation on chemical
reviews at the Pesticide Working Group Meeting in Townsville.

MORE PROACTIVE PLANNING OF CHEMICAL REVIEWS
Performance measures

Progress

Work plans developed and published for chemicals under review, from
January 2014

Deferred

Because of the significant number of active reviews that the APVMA is progressing, we
did not start any new reviews in 2013–14. We will prepare work plans for any new reviews
started after 1 July 2014.
Transitional arrangements in place until the end of 2014–15 will require the preparation of
work plans for any of the above active chemical reviews that have not been completed
by 1 July 2015. States and territories are being updated each quarter on the progress and
estimated milestone completion periods for all active chemical reviews.
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STRATEGY 4—IDENTIFY AND
RESOLVE NONCOMPLIANCE
Noncompliance with the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code Act 1994 may relate
to unregistered products, supply of restricted chemical products to unauthorised users,
unapproved labels, unfounded claims in advertising or other media, or active constituents
that do not conform to APVMA standards. We actively monitor advertising, retail and
online supplies to assess compliance, and encourage industry and the public to report
potential noncompliance.
All reports and detections of potential breaches of the agvet legislation are subject to
an initial assessment to ascertain their priority for further compliance and enforcement
action. This assessment typically includes a preliminary examination and analysis of the
noncompliance report or allegation to determine the likelihood that a breach of the
legislation has occurred, and to assess its seriousness and likely consequences. If possible,
the APVMA acts to prevent noncompliance and encourage ongoing and future compliance.
Based on the outcome of the initial assessment and the legislation, we determine the
appropriate level of intervention, if any. Depending on the results of the initial assessment,
we may elect to:
• not pursue the matter further
• seek more information from the person or company that reported the noncompliance, as
well as the marketplace or the entity that the noncompliance report relates to
• proceed with a detailed investigative action.

IMPLEMENT A RISK-BASED STRATEGY FOR COMPLIANCE
Performance measures

Progress

Strategy developed by June 2014

Achieved

New powers from reforms ready to implement

Achieved

Intelligence-led approach integrated into compliance activities by
December 2013

Achieved

The APVMA has been preparing for administration of a significantly different compliance
and enforcement regime as part of the legislative reforms. Our risk-based strategy to
compliance and enforcement was developed as part of the new regulatory guidelines, and
launched with their publication in January 2014.
In 2013–14, we developed the regulatory guidelines and guidance materials for our staff, and
delivered training to ensure that all APVMA inspectors are ready to deliver our
risk-based compliance strategy (see ‘Embed revised APVMA regulatory guidelines into
APVMA systems and processes’ in Strategy 1).
See ‘Support Department of Agriculture initiatives on quality assurance of imported
chemicals’ in Strategy 5 for a report on the APVMA Agrochemical Intelligence Project.
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MANAGE OUR SYSTEMS, PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES TO SUPPORT
A PROACTIVE COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT REGIME
Performance measures

Progress

90% of consents to import processed within 14 days of receipt

Achieved

Upgrade of compliance systems completed by December 2013

Achieved

Permit audit strategy developed and implemented by June 2014

Achieved

Consents to import unregistered or unapproved chemicals may be issued by the APVMA
when a legitimate reason exists for a person or a company to have possession of the
chemicals in Australia. Common reasons for needing to import unregistered chemical
products include for research or chemical trials, and for special veterinary applications such
as in zoos. In 2013–14, we assessed 777 applications and issued 739 consents to import.
Of these, 526 were issued to allow importation for use under an APVMA small-scale trial
permit, 71 were associated with specific permit applications, four were issued for products
pending registration, 138 were issued to veterinarians, and 42 were either not approved or
found to be unnecessary.
In 2013–14, 95 per cent of applications were processed (issued) within 14 days of receipt.
The average time taken to issue consent was five days.
Following testing of a new case management system last year, all compliance
administrative and case work is now managed within the new APVMA electronic document
and records management system (see ‘Support provision of high-quality applications’ in
Strategy 2).
Permit audits now form part of our risk-based compliance strategy. Audits help to evaluate
whether APVMA-imposed conditions are effective in their role of protecting human
and animal health, agriculture, the environment and trade. In 2013–14, we developed
communication materials and internal guidance documents for the conduct of compliance
audits; these are available on our website (apvma.gov.au/node/11021). We undertook four
audits to check compliance with APVMA-issued permits. Our initial focus was on permits
issued within the previous 12 months. Audits were desk based and involved examination of
documentary information. The audit process informs us about the level of compliance with
APVMA conditions, the quality of our conditions with regard to ease of comprehension and
enforceability, and the systems in place to measure and improve regulatory compliance.
All APVMA investigative staff hold qualifications and have relevant work experience that
accords with the Australian Government Investigations Standards (2011). In 2013–14, two
staff members completed a Certificate IV in statutory compliance qualification. Compliance
staff also attended training in administrative law and interviewing techniques.
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TARGET COMMUNICATION ACTIVITIES TO SIGNIFICANT EMERGING
NONCOMPLIANCE ISSUES
Performance measures

Progress

A new communication strategy finalised by September 2013 and activities
delivered according to the strategy

Achieved

Increased stakeholder awareness of identified issues

Achieved

In 2013–14, we prepared a communication strategy about how we will inform industry and
the general public about what is required to comply with the requirements of the Agvet
Code. A key part of the strategy involves the proactive use of information activities, to
disseminate information to industry members and the community.
We monitor allegations of noncompliance to determine where campaign responses may be
appropriate, looking at the number of complaints received about a particular product type
or activity, and the number of noncompliant entities that are likely to be engaging in that
behaviour. Our monitoring of the market (the physical market and internet trade) provides
supporting data to guide these activities.
In 2013–14, we took numerous opportunities to raise awareness of the work that we do.
Staff made presentations to foreign visitors, industry and overseas regulators. We also
worked with our co-regulators in the fields of environment and health, undertaking site
inspections, product recalls and enforcement actions.
We updated publicly available information to assist stakeholders to comply with current
and new legislation. We clarified the ongoing responsibilities of parties who hold approvals,
registrations, permits and licences, as part of the information about legislative reforms
(apvma.gov.au/node/67). We also provided updated information about permit auditing and
updated advice about our response to advertising complaints.

IMPROVE VOLUNTARY COMPLIANCE AND DETER NONCOMPLIANCE
Performance measures

Progress

Establish baseline level awareness of compliance responsibilities by December
2013 as the basis of future surveys

Deferred

Our implementation activities associated with the legislative reforms that commence on
1 July 2014 included information on the compliance responsibilities of product registrants.
We deferred our intended baseline survey of registrants’ awareness to align with the start
of the new legislation, to obtain a more meaningful baseline result that could be used over a
number of years.
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UNDERTAKE EFFECTIVE RISK-BASED ENFORCEMENT
Performance measures

Progress

100% of allegations of noncompliance risk-assessed and prioritised

Achieved

100% of identified high-priority allegations investigated

Achieved

Field investigations validate accuracy of risk assessment and
prioritisation process

Ongoing

Six significant regulatory actions undertaken due to noncompliance with
registration requirements

Five undertaken

Matters are risk-assessed upon receipt. Risk assessments may be reviewed throughout
investigation of a matter as further information becomes available.
In 2013–14, we received 243 reports of alleged noncompliance and continued to
investigate a number of cases from 2012–13. We finalised 156 allegations and 9 recall
events. One brief of evidence has been submitted and accepted for prosecution by
the Commonwealth Director of Public Prosecutions. This matter is currently before the
courts and is not expected to conclude until later in 2014. At the close of business on
30 June 2014, 62 matters remained subject to compliance action, and 6 voluntary recalls
were in progress.
In early 2013–14, the APVMA finalised monitoring of a voluntary recall of an unregistered
insecticide product that was being distributed nationally through two major retailers.
The APVMA negotiated for the removal of the product from retail sale with the supplier of
the product. The two retailers ensured the removal of approximately 1300 packets of this
unregistered chemical product from about 230 stores nationally.
In early 2014, we assisted the Australian Customs and Border Protection Service in Perth
to identify of a chemical substance suspected of being an agricultural chemical product.
The chemical product had been detected during routine Customs screening, and there
was concern that it may pose safety risks if delivered to the importer. The substance was
described by the importer as a luminous powder or pigment, which originated from China.
The APVMA sampled the substance and submitted it for testing, the results of which
indicated that it was not an agricultural chemical product and did not pose a safety risk.
As a result, Customs released the chemical substance to the importer.
In mid-2014, an APVMA inspector participated in a major operation with the Western
Australian Police, the Australian Federal Police and other law enforcement authorities.
Although no contraventions of the agvet laws were detected, our inspector provided
assistance and advice in relation to chemical products stored at various premises.
The APVMA also continued to build its intelligence links with other national and
international regulators. In response to information about the potential importation
of an unregistered agricultural chemical, the APVMA issued an information notice to
other government regulators, resulting in information being obtained that is assisting
further enquiries.
In 2013–14, the APVMA undertook a number of field inspections relating to alleged
contraventions of the agvet laws. Inspectors used these opportunities to provide up-todate information about the agvet reforms to the various people with whom they engaged.
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An APVMA good manufacturing practice (GMP) audit led to concerns that some
manufacturing steps were being performed by a third party who did not hold an APVMA
manufacturing licence. Monitoring visits were conducted to review documentation at all
involved premises. This led to the recommendation for a further audit of the APVMA licence
holder and compliance action with respect to the third party.
In late 2013, the APVMA undertook Operation Catch, a nationwide sampling of 2,4-D
chemical products and active constituents from formulators, manufacturers and retail
stores. Field teams were directed to specific sites to conduct sampling based on analysis of
available intelligence. Analysis focused on examination of active levels in chemical products
and the presence of dioxin impurities. Samples were analysed at the National Measurement
Institute. As a result of the targeted sampling, 48 samples relating to 28 products and
8 approved active constituents were analysed. Records were also requested from approval
holders and registrants. The results were provided to the Chemical Review Program in
support of the current review of 2,4-D.

UNDERTAKE EFFECTIVE INSPECTION, AUDITING AND ENFORCEMENT
ACTIVITIES FOR GOOD MANUFACTURING PRACTICE AND THE
MANUFACTURERS’ LICENSING SCHEME
Performance measures

Progress

100% of GMP noncompliance assessed and prioritised

Achieved

The Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme was established in 1994 to assure and build
confidence in the quality of veterinary medicines manufactured and supplied in Australia.
To obtain and maintain a licence under the scheme, manufacturers must demonstrate
adherence with the APVMA-prescribed manufacturing standards, including the Australian
code of good manufacturing practice for veterinary chemical products.
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We authorise auditors, including auditors from other specified authorities (in particular, the
Therapeutic Goods Administration—TGA), to periodically audit manufacturers to confirm
compliance with APVMA guidelines.
Registrants of veterinary medicine products manufactured overseas must provide
assurance that their products comply with manufacturing standards that are comparable
to the APVMA GMP requirements applying to Australian-based manufacturers. We
recognise certificates from a number of overseas authorities that are considered to have
manufacturing standards and enforcement processes equivalent to those in Australia. In
other cases, overseas manufacturing sites are audited by APVMA-authorised auditors.
In 2013–14, APVMA-authorised auditors conducted 103 audits of licensed Australian
veterinary manufacturers, meeting the annual target of 100–110 for combined APVMA
and TGA audits. The TGA conducted 29 of these audits on behalf of the APVMA.
APVMA-authorised auditors conducted 27 audits of foreign manufacturers who
manufacture veterinary medicines for the Australian marketplace. We reviewed all
audit reports, monitored progress with corrective actions, and finalised 149 audits after
corrective actions were deemed satisfactory.
Evidence of GMP compliance was assessed as part of the product registration process for
755 manufacturing sites. This is an increase of 15 per cent from the previous year, and an
increase of 50 per cent from 2011–12. As at 30 June 2014, 204 veterinary manufacturers
were licensed by the APVMA or had applications pending, which is comparable to recent
years. Single-step manufacturers represented the largest percentage of manufacturers by
category of product (Table 5).

Table 5	Veterinary manufacturers licensed or being assessed for a licence, by
category, as at 30 June 2014
Category

Percentage of manufacturers

Category 1: Sterile and immunobiological products

40

Category 2: Nonsterile medicines other than categories
3 and 4

64

Category 3: Ectoparasiticides

6

Category 4: Feed supplements and premixes

20

Category 6: Single-step manufacturers (including packaging
and labelling, analysis and testing)

74

Note: Category 5 was reserved at the commencement of the scheme and is not currently used.

We impose conditions on all new licences, and may vary conditions on existing licences, for
veterinary medicine manufacturers to aid compliance and overcome delays in responding
to identified noncompliances. In 2013–14, we issued 54 notices of intent to suspend or
cancel licences, refuse applications or impose conditions for manufacturers. Annual licence
fees increased on 1 July 2013, which led to a large number of notices of intent to cancel
being issued for overdue fee payments.
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The APVMA continued to facilitate the export of veterinary chemical products through
the issue of certificates for GMP compliance. Thirty-seven export certificates were issued
with the GMP compliance statement (ss. 69D and 70 of the Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992), and five certificates were issued by the APVMA
under the Mutual Recognition Agreement on Conformity Assessment between Australia
and the European Community.

IMPROVE DECISION-MAKING ON THE APPLICATION OF COERCIVE
POWERS THROUGH A NEW ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE
Performance measures

Progress

Committee established and operating effectively

Achieved

Level of enforcement action considered appropriate during after-action reviews

Achieved

In 2013–14, we established an Enforcement Committee that provides senior executive
oversight of critical decisions on compliance and enforcement matters. The committee
enables strategic consideration of cases, promotes the effective allocation of resources,
and supports a coordinated approach to compliance and enforcement across all APVMA
program areas.
The committee comprises APVMA executive directors, an independent member from the
National Industrial Chemicals Notification and Assessment Scheme, and representatives
from the APVMA Public Affairs and Legal programs. Meetings involve consideration of
minutes prepared by case officers that summarise investigative actions and recommend
further actions for all compliance cases. A summary of received and closed allegations is
also tabled for the committee’s information. In 2013–14, the committee met six times and
was consulted about 11 investigative matters for consideration; 5 matters were taken to the
Enforcement Committee multiple times to ensure continuity of oversight through the life of
the compliance actions.
All enforcement actions were endorsed as appropriate by the Enforcement Committee.
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STRATEGY 5—IDENTIFY AND MANAGE
EMERGING REGULATORY ISSUES
We proactively manage emerging regulatory issues that may affect our policies and
processes. We engage with other government agencies and our international counterparts
to identify emerging issues, and support our implementation of international best practice
in risk assessment of pesticides and veterinary medicines.

ASSESS AND MANAGE SIGNIFICANT EMERGING REGULATORY ISSUES
Performance measures

Progress

Regulatory Strategy Group meets quarterly to identify emerging issues and
oversee work to address issues

Not achieved

Effective relationships with national and international regulatory counterparts
and relevant agreements in place with national and international counterparts

Achieved

Stakeholder satisfaction for issues management initiatives

Achieved

The Regulatory Strategy Group was disbanded following establishment of the Enforcement
Committee and revised operation of the executive leadership team.
The APVMA currently has active working relationships with many international agencies
and overseas regulators. We participate in international forums on key regulatory matters
and emerging issues, and monitor regulatory actions in other jurisdictions and consider
their relevance for Australia.
We work collaboratively on various international projects and activities, including:
• global joint reviews of pesticides and veterinary medicines
• expert meetings such as the Codex Alimentarius Commission, the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development, and the VICH (International Cooperation
on Harmonisation of Technical Requirements for Registration of Veterinary Medicinal
Products)
• developing international standards through participation in expert committees, such as
the FAO/WHO Joint Meeting on Pesticide Residues and JECFA (on veterinary drugs)
• treaty-related activities under the Mutual Recognition Agreement on Conformity
Assessment between Australia and the European Community
• Stockholm and Rotterdam international treaty obligations (through providing advice
to the Australian Government Department of Agriculture and Department of the
Environment)
• international activities on development and harmonisation of data requirements, risk
assessment methodologies and risk management approaches, such as the VICH
• regional capacity building and training on compliance, risk assessment and
registration processes.
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The APVMA has memoranda of understanding with global regulatory counterparts,
including:
• United States Food and Drug Administration
• European Commission
• New Zealand Ministry for Primary Industries
• New Zealand Food Safety Authority
• Pest Management Regulatory Agency in Health Canada
• Taiwan Food and Drug Administration
• Veterinary Drugs Directorate of the Veterinary Program of Health Canada
• United Kingdom Veterinary Medicines Directorate
• United Kingdom Chemicals Regulation Directorate.
The chief regulatory scientists also maintain contact with regulatory staff in the United
States Environmental Protection Agency, the United States Food and Drug Administration’s
Centre for Veterinary Medicine, the European Quality Nano Regulatory Expert Group,
the Canadian Pest Management Regulatory Agency, the European Medicines Agency,
the German Federal Institute for Risk Assessment, and the New Zealand Environmental
Protection Authority.
We received a number of international visits in 2013–14, including:
• international experts from Germany, the United Kingdom and the United States for
the review of the APVMA’s use of the JECFA approach to recommending MRLs for
veterinary medicines (10–11 December 2013)
• an Indian delegation from the Department of Animal Husbandry, Dairying and Fisheries
to discuss the APVMA’s GMP compliance assessment schemes (15 January 2014)
• a representative from ASTM International (previously known as the American Society for
Testing and Materials) to discuss the assessment of adjuvants for spray drift reduction
(5 May 2014).
APVMA executive and staff participated in a range of national and international
conferences and meetings (Table 6).
In 2013–14, the APVMA pursued a range of issues management initiatives. Many of these
are outlined elsewhere in this report (eg legislative reform in Strategy 1, chemical review
outcomes in Strategy 3). We engaged with stakeholders to ensure that their views were
considered in regulatory decision-making.
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52

Conferences and meetings, 2013–14

Date

Event and location

Presentation or
participation

Who

6–8 August
2013

5-day series of
government and public
meetings, Taiwan

Presented ‘The APVMA’s
approach and management
solutions for minor uses’, at
the invitation of the China
Productivity Centre and the
Chinese Bureau of Animal
and Plant Health Inspection
and Quarantine

Manager, Minor Use
Pesticides

24–30 August
2013

Codex Committee on
Residues of Veterinary
Drugs in Food, United
States

Participated

Manager, Residues
Veterinary Medicines

27 August
2013

University of Sydney,
Sydney

Presented ‘Chemical
residues in food production
animals’ (two lectures)

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Veterinary
Medicines

2 September
2013

University of Adelaide,
Adelaide

Presented ‘Residues of
veterinary drugs’

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Veterinary
Medicines

12 September
2013

7th Annual Conference
of the Society for Risk
Analysis, Canberra

Presented ‘Finding common
ground: establishment
of a Regulatory Science
Network’

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Veterinary
Medicines

17–26
September
2013

WHO/FAO JMPR
Residues and Toxicology
panels, Geneva,
Switzerland

Participated

Manager, Chemical
Review; Senior
Evaluator, Pesticides
Residues

4 October
2013

Charles Sturt University,
Wagga Wagga

Presented ‘Chemical
residues in foods of animal
origin’ (two lectures)

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Veterinary
Medicines

7–11 October
2013

OECD Registration
Steering Group and Risk
Reduction Steering Group
Joint Meeting, Paris

Participated

Executive Director,
Pesticides; Manager,
Minor Use Pesticides

16 October
2013

Endocrine-Disrupting
Chemicals: Science and
Regulation, Canberra

Presented the introductory
talk and chaired the
meeting

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Pesticides

24–25
October 2013

1st Frontier Industrial
Forum, China

Chaired ‘Frontier of
nanoscience and
nanotechnology’; presented
‘Nanopesticides and
veterinary nanomedicines
—the possibilities and
challenges’

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Veterinary
Medicines

10–15
November
2013

29th VICH Steering
Committee meeting,
Auckland

Participated

Executive Director,
Veterinary Medicines
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Date

Event and location

Presentation or
participation

Who

19 November
2013

PharmPro Production
Group, Sydney

Presented ‘Reform update
and scheduling audits’

Manager,
Manufacturing
Quality and
Licensing

26 November
2013

Regulatory Science
Network: Science
Communication
Symposium, Canberra

Chair and introductory
speaker

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Veterinary
Medicines

Presented on
communicating science
at the APVMA

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Pesticides

19 March 2014

Pet Food Industry
Association of Australia
General Meeting, Canberra

Presented ‘APVMA auditing
and AS 5812’

Manager,
Manufacturing
Quality and
Licensing

1 April 2014

Biopesticides Working
Group, Paris

Participated

CEO; Executive
Director, Pesticides

2 April 2014

Feed Ingredients and
Additives Association of
Australia General Meeting,
Canberra

Presented ‘Manufacturing
standards required by
FIAAA, FAMI-QS and the
APVMA’

Manager,
Manufacturing
Quality and
Licensing

2–3 April 2014

OECD Working Group on
Pesticides, Paris

Participated

CEO; Executive
Director, Pesticides

9 April 2014

Neonicotinoids and Other
Insecticides: Research and
Stewardship Symposium

Presented ‘Risks to bees
from neonicotinoid
insecticides’

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Pesticides

5–10 May 2014

46th Codex Committee
on Pesticide Residues,
China

Participated

Executive Director,
Pesticides

7 May 2014

Canadian Senate Standing
Committee on Agriculture
and Forestry

Questioned in regard to
bee health and the use of
neonicotinoid insecticides in
Australia

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Pesticides;
CEO

20 June 2014

FSANZ Workshop on Risk
Management

Participated and presented
‘Approaches to risk
management at the
APVMA’

Chief Regulatory
Scientist, Pesticides

23–27 June
2014

30th VICH Steering
Committee meeting,
Brussels

Participated

Executive Director,
Veterinary Medicines

CEO = Chief Executive Officer; FAO = Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations; FSANZ =
Food Standards Australia New Zealand; JMPR = Joint Meeting on Pesticide Residues; OECD = Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development; VICH = International Cooperation on Harmonisation of
Technical Requirements for Registration of Veterinary Medicinal Products; WHO = World Health Organization
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CONTRIBUTE TO HIGH-LEVEL FORUMS RELATING TO REGULATION
OF AGRICULTURAL AND VETERINARY CHEMICALS
Performance measures

Progress

Contributions made to the Regulatory Science Network, the Regulators’
Forum, the Agvet Chemical Regulation Committee and other relevant forums

Achieved

The APVMA works closely with other regulatory agencies in Australia, especially through
regular meetings and activities of the Regulatory Science Network (see ‘Highlight: what is
the Regulatory Science Network?’). The network provides a forum at which the APVMA
can hear about risk management approaches in other science-based Australian regulatory
agencies. The APVMA plays a significant role in driving this initiative.
The APVMA is also active in the Regulators’ Forum, which is made up of the heads of seven
agencies: the APVMA, the Australian Government Department of Agriculture, the Australian
Radiation Protection and Nuclear Safety Agency, Food Standards Australia New Zealand,
the National Industrial Chemicals Notification and Assessment Scheme, the Office of the
Gene Technology Regulator, and the Therapeutic Goods Administration. The forum meets
quarterly, with a focus on risk assessment, workforce planning, public awareness and
confidence, and addressing cross-agency issues. The APVMA Chief Executive Officer is an
observer on the Agvet Chemical Regulation Committee.
As a member of the Regulatory Science Network, the APVMA participated in a Science
Communication Symposium, which provided an opportunity for staff from the APVMA and
other member agencies to learn from science and communication specialists about how to
effectively communicate with colleagues about risk, and how to communicate regulatory
science decisions to the general public (see case study).
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CASE STUDY
Regulatory Science Network’s Science Communication Symposium
In 2013, staff within the Regulatory Science Network (RSN) member agencies expressed
a strong desire to gain a better understanding of how to communicate regulatory science.
The RSN responded by hosting a Science Communication Symposium in Canberra;
130 people from Australia and New Zealand attended the event. The symposium provided
an opportunity for agency staff to learn more about science communication from both
scientists and communication specialists.
One of the keynote speakers was Professor Mark Burgman from the University of
Melbourne, who gave an enthralling presentation titled ‘Uncertainty in expert judgement:
implications for risk communication’. As a result of Professor Burgman’s presentation,
options are now being explored for the RSN agencies to undertake tailored training in
expert group consultation and decision-making methods so that these tools might be
applied to regulatory science.
The other keynote speaker was Ms Donna Edman from the Strategic Counsel, who
presented ‘The case for engaging: why regulatory agencies have a duty to communicate
beyond technical audiences’. A key message from the presentation was that regulatory
agencies that ignore the need to effectively communicate their science to external
audiences do so at their peril.
Speakers and panellists—from the APVMA, the Australian Government Department of
Agriculture and Department of the Environment, the Australian Radiation Protection and
Nuclear Safety Agency, Food Standards Australia New Zealand, the National Industrial
Chemicals Notification and Assessment Scheme, the Office of the Gene Technology
Regulator, and the Therapeutic Goods Administration—addressed issues relating to
communication of science both within and external to regulatory agencies.
The feedback received from attendees indicated that the symposium was a resounding
success.

Professor Mark Burgman

Dr Phil Reeves

Donna Edman
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SUPPORT DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE INITIATIVES ON QUALITY
ASSURANCE OF IMPORTED CHEMICALS
Performance measures

Progress

Substandard Agrochemical Intelligence Project completed

Achieved

The APVMA Agrochemical Intelligence Project aimed to collect information to develop
a better understanding about the supply of illegal agricultural chemicals to Australia, to
enable the strategic allocation of compliance resources in the future.
In particular, the project aimed to:
• identify risk areas, and develop a series of import risk profiles that can be used for
establishing alerts for enforcement action at the border or immediately post-border
• proactively engage with international partners to reduce and restrict illegal chemical
production and trade to Australia
• establish processes, tools and templates, and undertake capacity building for a new
intelligence function within the APVMA.
The project is complete and a report has been prepared. The key output of the project has
been the development of a methodology that will augment our ability to detect shipments
of concern. A secondary project will continue to test and validate the methodology
throughout 2014–15. The project reviewed a number of previous compliance case studies
to identify areas of compliance concern and provide a useful picture of agrochemical
supply chains.
The APVMA strengthened its intelligence-led approach to operations, such as the targeting
and delivery of Operation Catch at the end of 2013 (see ‘Undertake effective risk-based
enforcement’ in Strategy 4). We also developed a valuation-based method, based on our
ongoing assessment of Customs import data.
We have increased our liaison and engagement with Australian and international
partner agencies to share information relating to any known or suspected importation
of illegal agricultural chemicals. International partners are also committing resources
to pursuing proactive approaches to identify, reduce and restrict the illegal trade in
agricultural chemicals.
All noncompliance reports are risk-assessed by the APVMA. We use information from
within the APVMA and from other government agencies to inform further actions.
The APVMA has put in place a range of measures to improve our ability to detect
illegal chemicals.
A number of intelligence briefings for law enforcement personnel have been compiled and
distributed to APVMA and partner regulatory staff. Targeted at inspectors and authorised
officers, these briefings provide the current status of issues and further information to assist
partner agencies to work with APVMA inspectors. Sharing of such information with partner
agencies has garnered positive comments.
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LEAD WORK ON IMPLICATIONS OF NANOTECHNOLOGY ON THE
REGULATION OF AGRICULTURAL AND VETERINARY CHEMICALS
Performance measures

Progress

Interagency symposium held by March 2014

To be held
October 2014

Report on regulatory considerations for agvet nanotechnology by June 2014

Not achieved

Nanotechnology is the manipulation of matter on an atomic or molecular scale to develop
new chemical products. Nanotechnology holds enormous promise for the agricultural
and animal husbandry sectors. However, there are some concerns about the potential
safety risks of nanomaterials to human health and the environment. It is important,
therefore, that the regulatory framework for nanopesticides and veterinary nanomedicines
ensures that these materials can be responsibly introduced into Australian agriculture and
animal husbandry.
The existing regulatory framework for conventional chemicals is expected to be used in the
regulation of nanomaterials for the foreseeable future. Over time, however, the framework
will evolve as new information on limitations in current risk assessments becomes available.
We are nearing completion of a report on regulatory considerations applicable
to nanomaterials intended for use in Australian agriculture and animal husbandry.
Chapters of the report address the reformed legislative environment; technical aspects,
including physicochemical characteristics and manufacture; and the potential impact of
nanomaterials on human health and the environment.
Consultation on a final draft report is scheduled to commence in September 2014, and
will culminate at a nanotechnology symposium in late October 2014. The report (which
will be available in early 2015) and symposium will heighten awareness of nanotechnology
and its regulation in the agricultural and animal husbandry sectors. They represent major
milestones of a project that will inform the development of a rational regulatory framework
for nanopesticides and veterinary nanomedicines in Australia.
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Table 2

Table Description

Target or initiative

Progress

Target:

Ensure no significant audit findings

Achieved

Target:

Deliver 5–8 awareness-raising activities

Rescheduled for
2013–2014

Initiative: Develop an online presence for the Regulatory guidelines

Deferred

Initiative:	Develop an awareness-raising program for operational impact
of reform for stakeholders

Deferred

Fugia serum as se sa consequunt, quiduciam facculla venimet, volorectus exceaquis eriore
perios atiossunt, cum estis verspedit ani od quatur, quia vit quo expland ucimporum rerio.
Nam eruntum repudae et eiciatus intiunt omniment etusdamet et volorem.
Dr Rai Kookana and Dr Phil Reeves
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INVESTIGATE THE REGULATION OF ENDOCRINE-DISRUPTING
CHEMICALS BY OTHER REGULATORS
Performance measures

Progress

Symposium held by October 2013

Achieved

Outcomes and APVMA response published by December 2013

Achieved

A successful symposium, Endocrine-Disrupting Chemicals: Science and Regulation, was
held in Canberra on 16 October 2013 (see ‘Highlights of APVMA research’ in Strategy 3).

INVESTIGATE WHAT REGULATORY ACTION MAY BE REQUIRED TO
PROTECT POLLINATOR HEALTH FROM USE OF AGRICULTURAL
CHEMICALS
Performance measures

Progress

Workshops for regulatory stakeholders and broader stakeholder consultation
held by September 2013

Achieved

Outcomes reported by December 2013

Ongoing

In 2013–14, we held a stakeholder workshop on bees and neonicotinoid insecticides
(see ‘Highlights of APVMA research’ in Strategy 3).
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STRATEGY 6—ENGAGE STAKEHOLDERS
AND REGULATORY PARTNERS TO ADD
VALUE TO OUR WORK
We aim to involve stakeholders in our decision-making, and promote confidence in our
processes and decisions. Our stakeholders include our regulatory partners, registrants and
manufacturers of pesticides and veterinary medicines, farmers, veterinary practitioners,
researchers, educators and the general public.

DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT NEW COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY,
INCLUDING STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT MODEL AND
IMPLEMENTATION OF REFORMS
Performance measures

Progress

Strategy developed by September 2013 and activities undertaken in
accordance with strategy

Achieved

Communication activities during 2013–14 were intensive. They focused on informing and
educating industry about the legislative reforms, and assisting industry to prepare for
application of the reforms.
As part of the reform communication strategy, a stakeholder engagement model was
developed to inform our approach. We proactively engaged with industry and government
stakeholders and our own staff to provide timely, accurate and accessible information
about the reforms.
Some of the highly successful activities that were implemented for stakeholders were
as follows:
• We reviewed our entire suite of regulatory guidance material to bring it into line with the
new laws, and increase its accessibility and ease of use by providing it as online content.
This included a period of industry consultation on the information, and testing of the
online resource.
• Face-to-face information sessions were held in early 2014 in Melbourne, Adelaide, Perth,
Brisbane, Sydney and Canberra. These were attended by more than 400 stakeholders,
who took the opportunity to find out more about the legislative reforms.
• Two training workshops were held in Canberra in June 2014 to give practical assistance
to industry before the commencement of the reforms. The workshops were attended by
190 stakeholders.
We produced regular web-based and printed information for a range of audiences.
We also conducted detailed briefings, face-to-face forums and meetings to ensure that
the following key stakeholders were kept informed:
• the Australian Minister for Agriculture
• the Australian Government Department of Agriculture
• partner agencies under the National Registration Scheme
• the APVMA Advisory Board
• industry representative bodies.
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DEVELOP AND DEPLOY SUITABLE TOOLS AND RESOURCES TO
ALLOW STAFF TO COMMUNICATE MORE CONSISTENTLY AND
EFFICIENTLY WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Performance measures

Progress

Web-based content management system implemented

Achieved

New intranet in place

Achieved

Visual identity and language style guides updated

Achieved

The APVMA implemented the Drupal content management system with the launch of a
new intranet in October 2013. This allows a more efficient publishing process, increased
communication between staff, and more robust management of content to ensure
consistency and accuracy. The same content management system has been used for the
new APVMA website, which will be launched on 1 July 2014.
We updated our visual identity in 2013. Our key corporate products, including the
regulatory guidelines website and the Operational plan 2012–13, carry the new identity.
The language and style guide was updated and published in December 2013.

DEVELOP NEW CASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AND CLIENT SERVICE
CHARTER
Performance measures

Progress

New system and charter in place by June 2014

Partly achieved

The new case management system and processes are ready for implementation on 1 July
2014 (see ‘Support industry readiness to comply with new regulatory frameworks’ in
Strategy 1).
A new charter will be developed in line with the new client service model, which created the
concept of the first point of contact. The new service charter will be developed in the first
half of 2014–15.

REDEVELOP WEBSITE WITH AN ONLINE PRESENCE FOR THE RISK
COMPENDIUM
Performance measures

Progress

New website launched in early 2014

Due July 2014

Website meets relevant government online and accessibility standards

Achieved

The APVMA website redevelopment project reached a key milestone on 29 January 2014
with the publication of the new website for the regulatory guidelines (previously known
as the Risk Compendium). The regulatory guidelines website is a subsite of the APVMA’s
general website, accessible by a link from the home page (apvma.gov.au) until the launch of
the new website on 1 July 2014.
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The content and website for the regulatory guidelines were open for public consultation
from 29 January to 11 April 2014. Submissions on the regulatory guidelines were invited
to address:
• comprehensiveness—level of detail and information provided
• usability—including navigation, information design, content structure, user experience
and system responsiveness
• readability—ease of reading and understanding
• errors—factual errors, grammatical/typographical errors and incorrect links.
We received 19 submissions from agricultural and veterinary medicine industry associations,
chemical companies, regulatory consultants and product users. In response to these,
significant improvements were made to the navigation and usability of the website, and a
new version went live on 19 May 2014.
Redevelopment of the general website commenced in earnest in February 2014
with a comprehensive content audit. More than 3000 web pages and around
10 000 downloadable documents were analysed for migration, review, deletion or archive.
The new website, incorporating the regulatory guidelines, will be launched on 1 July 2014.
The new website conforms substantially to the web content accessibility guidelines.
Although a small number of accessibility issues are yet to be addressed, the APVMA has
committed to fully conforming by December 2014.

SEEK INPUT ON STRATEGIC ISSUES FROM THE APVMA
ADVISORY BOARD
Performance measures

Progress

Four Advisory Board meetings held by June 2014

Achieved

See Appendix A for details of the APVMA Advisory Board and issues considered at
meetings in 2013–14.

IMPLEMENT NEW INDUSTRY CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE
ARRANGEMENTS, INCLUDING THE USE OF SPECIAL-PURPOSE
WORKING GROUPS
Performance measures

Progress

At least two industry forums undertaken

Achieved

Stakeholders satisfied with consultative arrangements

Achieved

The APVMA continues to engage with industry through targeted consultation and
meetings on a range of matters, including the Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme, to ensure
input to APVMA corporate planning activities, and consideration of current or emerging
strategic issues. We are also considering how we will approach our formalised industry
consultative arrangements in the future.
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We held an industry workshop for all key stakeholder groups on 29 April 2014. The main
areas of focus were preparation for implementation of legislative reforms with effect from
1 July 2014 and business re-engineering to support the strategic direction of the APVMA
over the next three years.
The new web-based IT systems underwent extensive testing by a small group of ‘superusers’, and a wider group of registrants and applicants. Feedback from these two groups
provided invaluable information on the usability of the new systems, and how the new
applications should be designed to most effectively support the applicants who will use
the systems.
The APVMA also contributed to symposiums on neonicotinoids and endocrine-disrupting
chemicals (see ‘Highlights of APVMA research’ in Strategy 3).

ENGAGE EFFECTIVELY WITH THE STATES AND TERRITORIES ON
THE MANAGEMENT OF THE NATIONAL REGISTRATION SCHEME,
INCLUDING INCREASED INVOLVEMENT OF STATES AND TERRITORIES
IN CHEMICAL REVIEW PROCESSES
Performance measures

Progress

Two Registration Liaison Committee meetings held by June 2014

Achieved

Update on suspension and reconsideration activities provided to the Agvet
Chemical Regulation Committee twice a year

Achieved

Risk Compendium provided to states and territories for discussion

Achieved

See Appendix B for details of the Registration Liaison Committee and matters considered
at meetings in 2013–14. Committee meetings were held in October 2013 and March 2014.
The APVMA has provided quarterly updates to the Agvet Chemical Regulation Committee.
These updates have included information on the progress of all active chemical reviews,
including estimated timelines for the completion of component risk assessments, any
suspensions or cancellations, significant stakeholder issues and review finalisation.
The draft regulatory guidelines (previously known as the Risk Compendium) were
published in January 2014 to provide for a period of consultation, including with states and
territories (see ‘Embed revised APVMA regulatory guidelines into APVMA systems and
processes’ in Strategy 1).

ESTABLISH REVISED ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE PROVISION OF
ADVICE FROM ADVISING AGENCIES
Performance measures

Progress

New arrangements in place by June 2014

Not achieved

The APVMA has developed a draft memorandum of understanding with partner Australian
Government agencies for the provision of technical advice services; the draft is still under
negotiation. The memorandum reflects a whole-of-government approach to procurement
of technical and scientific advice.
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In addition to developing new funding arrangements with our partner agencies, we also
conducted an open tender for the provision of technical advice services to the APVMA.
This has developed a pool of technical personnel from which we and our partners can draw
for assistance in evaluating of applications.

WORK EFFECTIVELY WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ON
AGVET CHEMICAL ISSUES OF MUTUAL INTEREST
Performance measures

Progress

Satisfaction with level and quality of engagement

Achieved

The APVMA works collaboratively with the Australian Government Department
of Agriculture to consider proposals for further reforms to the regulation of agvet
chemicals, where these proposals are relevant to the roles and responsibilities of the
APVMA. The APVMA has introduced a more centralised approach to engaging with the
department to support the development of closer working relationships and improve
consistency in the support provided.
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STRATEGY 7—CONDUCT OUR BUSINESS
EFFICIENTLY AND EFFECTIVELY
We aim to maintain a high standard of operation for all our business systems, including
reporting, resource and financial management, and ICT. Our quality management system
regularly audits the performance and processes of systems and sections to look for ways to
improve them and our business performance.
In 2013–14, the APVMA commissioned a review into its internal business processes.
The review canvassed a range of possible changes to our business processes, including
the development of a risk-based decision framework that might allow regulatory risk to
be better aligned with regulatory effort, more streamlined processes for registration and
further improvements to the APVMA’s internal quality assurance programs. The review’s
recommendations are currently being considered by APVMA management.

ENHANCE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS TO IMPROVE
SERVICE DELIVERY
Performance measures

Progress

New payment module launched

Achieved

PubCRIS relaunched to cater for mobile device users

Achieved

An online annual returns submission facility developed by 30 June 2014

Ongoing

An online electronic registered label particulars facility launched by June 2014

Achieved

We developed a new web-based portal for applicants and relaunched PubCRIS
(see ‘Support provision of high-quality applications’ in Strategy 2).

DEVELOP OR MODIFY ICT SYSTEM TO SUPPORT CHANGES REQUIRED
FROM THE LEGISLATIVE AND BUSINESS REFORMS
Performance measures

Progress

Legacy ICT systems redeveloped to incorporate changes arising from
reform legislation

Achieved

We have developed new systems to support legislative reforms (see ‘Support provision of
high-quality applications’ in Strategy 2).

FINALISE THE ROLLOUT OF THE ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT AND
RECORDS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
Performance measures

Progress

APVMA-wide implementation by February 2014

Achieved

We implemented a new electronic document and records management system
(see ‘Support provision of high-quality applications’ in Strategy 2).
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COMMENCE REDEVELOPMENT OF THE APVMA’S CORE AGVET
CHEMICAL DATABASE
Performance measures

Progress

Migration of data to new database under way by June 2014

Achieved

The migration of data from the APVMA’s existing database to the new database is well
under way. It is expected that the project will be completed in 2014–15.

PROTECT AND MANAGE INFORMATION RESOURCES
Performance measures

Progress

Maintain ICT system up-time of 97% or greater

Achieved

No significant security incidents

Achieved

Cyber intrusions defeated before damage occurs

Achieved

Virus attacks defeated before damage occurs

Achieved

Penetration testing of ICT systems undertaken and sound report achieved

Partly achieved

Information and communication technologies
The APVMA ICT section provides security; development of business applications for
internal and external stakeholders; web services; customised solutions for mobile access
and secure interactions; design, maintenance and support of network infrastructure;
business continuity and disaster recovery planning; support for the electronic document
and records management system; and help desk support for the desktop fleet, and for
voice, smartphone, video conferencing and tablets.
In 2013–14, ICT system up-time was maintained above 97 per cent, and there were no
significant security incidents. Penetration testing conducted during the reporting year
indicated that staff would benefit from further training in ‘social engineering’–based
attacks. We are now developing online training to increase IT security awareness across
the organisation.

Information Services
Information Services manages the APVMA’s administrative files, including the archiving
and destruction of records in accordance with standards issued by the National Archives
of Australia, AS ISO 15489 1–2, the Protective Security Policy Framework (PSPF) and other
Australian Government legislation. We have put in place information security requirements,
including activities that will ensure compliance with the PSPF.
Information Services also provides library and research services to the organisation.
We have implemented a discovery service that searches all databases and journals to
which the APVMA subscribes, and have moved further towards an electronic library,
replacing traditional hard-copy books with their electronic alternatives.
Information Services is also responsible for legal deposits. In 2013–14, the APVMA fulfilled
its parliamentary reporting obligations and participated in Australian Government surveys,
as requested.
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IMPLEMENT IT, PHYSICAL, PERSONNEL AND GOVERNANCE SECURITY
POLICIES TO ALIGN TO THE PROTECTIVE SECURITY POLICY
FRAMEWORK
Performance measures

Progress

Compliance with Protective Security Policy Framework

Achieved

Data loss prevention strategy implemented, and the APVMA’s physical and
information security environment hardened

Achieved

The APVMA is compliant with the PSPF. A data loss prevention strategy was implemented
during 2013–14.

MAINTAIN AND ENHANCE EFFICIENT QUALITY SYSTEM
Performance measures

Progress

No significant ISO audit findings

Achieved

Procedure amendment requests resolved within six months

Not achieved

Quality management procedures revised to reflect changes arising
from reforms

Achieved

New document governance framework implemented by December 2013

Achieved

There were no significant International Organization for Standardization audit findings
in 2013–14. Three requests, from internal staff who act as voluntary auditors, for
procedure amendment were not finalised within the six-month target time frame. Quality
management procedures (now called work instructions) were reviewed to reflect the
changes arising from the legislative reforms. We implemented a new document governance
framework, which will be further refined in 2014–15.

COMPLY WITH GOVERNMENT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS,
LEGISLATION AND STANDARDS
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Performance measures

Progress

Audited financial statements cleared by due date

Achieved

Input to Portfolio Budget Statements submitted by due date

Achieved

Responses to government surveys, questions on notice, ministerial
correspondence and related material delivered on time and to a high quality

Achieved

No significant findings from internal and external audits

Achieved

APVMA Annual Report 2013–14

In 2013–14, the APVMA complied with all reporting requirements, legislation and standards
(see Chapter 4). Audited financial statements were cleared by the due date. We also
provided input to Portfolio Budget Statements by the due date. Responses to government
surveys, questions on notice, ministerial correspondence and related material were
delivered on time and to a high quality, and there were no significant findings from internal
and external audits.

ENHANCE ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Performance measures

Progress

Adhere to Information Publication Scheme requirements according to the
APVMA agency plan

Achieved

Comply with statutory timeframes for freedom-of-information requests

Achieved

All freedom-of-information requests have been processed in accordance with the statutory
time frames in the Freedom of Information Act 1982 (FOI Act). Where extensions of time
have been required to process any requests, the relevant statutory power has been relied
on within the FOI Act.

LAUNCH A SECURE EXTRANET FOR REGISTRANTS TO LODGE THEIR
DOCUMENTATION ONLINE
Performance measures

Progress

Secure extranet developed and lodgements available to registered users by
June 2014

Achieved

We developed a new web-based portal for applicants, including a decision tree, an online
application system and an e-label submission facility, which will allow applicants to easily
lodge their applications and supporting data (see ‘Support provision of high-quality
applications’ in Strategy 2).

ENSURE THAT COST-RECOVERY ARRANGEMENTS REFLECT APVMA
OPERATING REQUIREMENTS
Performance measures

Progress

Implement a new cost-recovery impact statement

Achieved

Support provided to the first-principles review of the APVMA’s cost-recovery
arrangements being conducted by the Department of Agriculture

Achieved

In 2013–14, the APVMA implemented a number of changes to its cost-recovery framework,
which flowed from the 2012 Cost-Recovery Impact Statement. We also provided support
to the Australian Government Department of Agriculture’s first-principles review of the
APVMA’s cost-recovery arrangements, which is expected to be finalised in 2014–15.
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STRATEGY 8—ENHANCE PERFORMANCE
THROUGH OUR PEOPLE
We recognise the importance of investing in a skilled, diverse and healthy workforce.
We aim to increase the capability of our people through support and training so that they
can carry out their duties to the best of their ability. We also value and support their health,
safety and wellbeing.
We aim to ensure that staff demonstrate APVMA values and behaviours through their
work and interaction with stakeholders, as well as adherence to the Australian Public
Service (APS) Code of Conduct. We therefore make these values explicit in staff induction
and management.

Staff profile
Tables 7–10 provide details of APS employees who were employed at the APVMA under the
Public Service Act 1999 in 2013–14.
We had 144 full-time and part-time staff at 30 June 2014. There were also 23 non-ongoing
or casual staff, bringing the total number of staff to 167 (96 female, 71 male). Staff are
located in Canberra, other than one staff member who is in Perth, Western Australia.
Table 7 shows a breakdown by position level, Table 8 shows a breakdown by employment
agreement, and Table 9 shows the salary level of different positions. Staff movements,
including recruitments, resignations, terminations and retirements (excluding internal
transfers and promotions), are shown in Table 10.
In 2013–14, the separation rate for ongoing staff was 5.56 per cent, which is a decrease on
the 9.92 per cent separation rate of the previous year.

Table 7

Staff by position level and status, 2013–14

Classification

Full-time
(ongoing)

Part-time
(ongoing)

Non-ongoing
and casual

Total

CEO

0

0

1

1

Senior executive officer

4

0

0

4

Principal scientist

2

0

0

2

EL 2

22

0

3

25

EL 1

33

4

5

42

APS 6

38

6

7

51

APS 5

10

3

0

13

APS 4

9

2

3

14

APS 3

10

1

4

15

APS 2

0

0

0

0

Trainee

0

0

0

0

128

16

23

167

Total

APS = Australian Public Service; CEO = Chief Executive Officer; EL = executive level
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Table 8	Staff employed under common law arrangement and enterprise
agreement at 30 June 2013
Classification

Australian workplace
agreements

Common law
arrangement

Commonwealth
agreement

Total

SES

0

4

0

4

Non-SES

0

2

161

163

SES = senior executive service
Note: The Chief Executive Officer is outside the above arrangements.

Table 9

Salary range by classification at 30 June 2013

Classification

Minimum ($)

Maximum ($)

EL 2

119 015

156 393

EL 1

101 410

114 197

APS 6

83 807

93 557

APS 5

80 990

85 040

APS 4

64 918

71 520

APS 3

59 050

64 463

APS 2

0

0

Trainee

0

0

APS = Australian Public Service; EL = executive level
Note: Aggregate performance-linked bonus payments to staff during 2013–14 for 106 APS2–EL2 staff were
$120 765.
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Table 10 Staff movements, 2013–14
Classification

Ongoing
separated

Nonongoing
separated

Ongoing
recruited

Nonongoing
recruited

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

Chief research scientist, grade 1

0

0

0

0

EL 2

3

1

4

3

EL 1

0

1

0

4

APS 6

3

4

2

2

APS 5

2

2

0

1

APS 4

0

2

0

0

APS 3

0

2

0

0

APS 2

0

0

0

0

Trainee

0

0

0

0

Total

9

12

6

10

CEO
Senior executive officer

APS = Australian Public Service; CEO = Chief Executive Officer; EL = executive level

PROVIDE A SAFE, SUPPORTIVE AND FAIR WORKPLACE
Performance measures

Progress

Average reportable work, health and safety incidents at or below APS average

Achieved

Accurate and timely remuneration service (100%)

Achieved

Work health and safety
As part of the work health and safety (WHS) arrangements, the APVMA:
• promotes and develops arrangements to ensure employees’ health, safety and wellbeing
at work, in accordance with the requirements of the Work Health and Safety Act 2011
• provides operational guidelines for the operation of the Health and Safety Committee
• provides mechanisms for reviewing, varying and informing employees about
arrangements, and for dealing with disputes during consultation.
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Employees may raise any WHS concerns directly with the Health and Safety Committee,
or via their health and safety representative.
The Health and Safety Committee meets regularly and deals with a variety of matters
out of session. Two health and safety representatives ensure that the APVMA work
group is consulted and informed regarding WHS matters. They also conduct quarterly
workplace inspections. No high-risk potential hazards were identified in 2013–14 from
these inspections.
Eleven reports of potential hazards, injuries or illnesses to staff from work-related incidents
were received in 2013–14, resulting in a total of two days lost due to injuries associated with
the incidents. All were relatively minor in nature and have been fully resolved. There were no
incidents requiring notification to Comcare (as the WHS regulator); however, one incident
has resulted in a claim being accepted by Comcare.

Health and wellbeing initiatives
The APVMA continued the tradition of supporting Health Week initiatives to assist staff in
the management of their health and wellbeing at work and at home. Staff were invited to
undertake on-site fitness and general health assessments with qualified health practitioners.
Additionally, the APVMA held information sessions for staff throughout the year on subjects
such as skin cancer awareness and prevention, provided free influenza vaccinations for
interested staff, and actively promoted and supported staff participation in lunchtime
exercise activities.

Remuneration services
We provided accurate remuneration services throughout the year. Continued improvements
to the payroll management and employee self-service systems provided staff with better
access to electronic application for entitlements and improved reporting capabilities.

Disability reporting
Since 1994, Australian Government departments and agencies have reported on their
performance as policy adviser, purchaser, employer, regulator and provider under the
Commonwealth Disability Strategy. In 2007–08, reporting on the employer role was
transferred to the APS Commission’s State of the service report and the Australian Public
Service statistical bulletin. These reports are available at apsc.gov.au. Since 2010–11,
departments and agencies have not been required to report on these functions.
The Commonwealth Disability Strategy has been overtaken by the new National Disability
Strategy 2010–20, which sets out a 10-year national policy framework to improve the lives
of people with disability, promote participation and create a more inclusive society. A highlevel two-yearly report will track progress against each of the six outcome areas of the
strategy and present a picture of how people with disability are faring. The first of these
reports will be available in late 2014 at dss.gov.au.
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ALIGN PEOPLE POLICIES WITH LEGISLATION AND BEST PRACTICE
Performance measures

Progress

All people policies and legislative requirements reviewed annually

Achieved

Implement changes arising from 2013 amendments to the Public Service
Act 1999

Achieved

In addition to regular and ongoing review of policy accuracy and currency, all human
resources and associated policies were reviewed to ensure compliance with the legislative
amendments to the Public Service Act 1999 that came into effect on 1 July 2013. New
procedures and guidelines regarding the application of Code of Conduct investigations
and the setting of sanctions were published, and specific guidance relating to the use and
disclosure of personal information was developed. The latter has now been superseded by
the APVMA Privacy Policy, published in March 2014, which articulates APVMA practices
supporting the Australian Privacy Principles.
The APVMA’s workplace bullying and harassment policy was updated to ensure that staff
were aware of changes implemented in January 2014, which enable individuals to report
incidents of workplace bullying and harassment directly to the Fair Work Ombudsman.
The APVMA’s Public Interest Disclosure Procedures were published online in early 2014
and describe APVMA practices for handling disclosures made under the Public Interest
Disclosure Scheme, which came into effect on 15 January 2014.

ENHANCE THE EFFECTIVENESS AND PERFORMANCE OF OUR PEOPLE
Performance measures

Progress

100% participation in performance management

Achieved

80% of recruitment processes completed within 45 days

Not achieved

A tailored executive leadership program implemented by December 2013

Achieved

Participate in relevant training offered by other regulatory agencies

Achieved

We aim to support, develop and motivate our people to grow and adapt, to assist with
meeting our corporate objectives. Our Performance Management Framework seeks to:
• change APVMA culture from one focused on outputs to one focused on outcomes
• set a consistent and equitable basis for improving performance and rewarding excellence
• link rewards and remuneration to outcomes achieved
• increase senior executive involvement to calibrate ratings across the organisation
• simplify rating scales, with improved definitions capturing the APS Commission’s
integrated leadership capabilities
• encourage a collaborative culture
• ensure transparency in the performance management process.
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Support for the performance management system continued to be strong, with all staff
participating during the year.
Table 11 provides details of our recruitment activities in 2013–14. The year was challenging
with regard to recruitment activities because of the interim arrangements for APS
recruitment. For 33 per cent of positions, recruitment was finalised within 45 days of
applications closing.

Table 11

Recruitment activities, 2013–14

Activity

Number

External recruitment advertisements

20

Applications received

358

Average time from gazette close to offer date

54 days

Recruitment campaigns cancelled

12

Recruitment decisions (gazetted notifications)

12

Processes completed within 45 days

33%

Internal recruitment advertisements

15

Recruitment rounds

35

ENSURE OUR PEOPLE HAVE THE SKILLS THEY NEED TO DO
THEIR JOB
Performance measures

Progress

A range of online training modules delivered, including:

Achieved

• science risk
• accountable and ethical decision-making
• procurement
• security
New learning and development framework developed by September 2013

Achieved

We are committed to the ongoing professional development of all staff members, and
aim to provide our staff with the necessary skills to progress in their role using a variety
of approaches. Our Learning and Development Strategy links learning and development
activities systematically with business needs by engaging staff in the design of
internal training.
We are constantly working to improve our learning and development offerings. In 2013–14,
a dedicated Learning and Development Manager was engaged as a full-time resource to
manage and promote the increasing emphasis and importance the APVMA has placed on
learning and development. The key role of this position is to ensure that the value of the
Learning and Development Strategy is fully achieved.
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The APVMA continued to support a system of mandatory induction training for incoming
staff, and requires full participation in our performance management scheme, which also
identifies individual training needs for staff. All staff participated in the scheme in 2013–14.
The Study Encouragement Scheme continues to support staff in gaining relevant tertiary
qualifications to expand individual and organisational capabilities. We focus on developing
training delivery skills throughout the APVMA through actions such as ‘train the trainer’
courses and supporting staff in undertaking an APVMA-tailored Certificate IV in Training
and Assessment.
In 2013–14, we have concentrated on preparing staff for legislative reform (see case study in
Strategy 1).

FOSTER VALUES AND BEHAVIOURS THAT SUPPORT A ROBUST,
ACCOUNTABLE PUBLIC SECTOR AGENCY
Performance management

Progress

Absenteeism rate at or below APS average

Achieved

Staff at or below 40-day annual leave cap by 31 December 2013

Achieved

Adherence to the APS Code of Conduct

Not achieved

No formal grievances or reviews of action were lodged in 2013–14.
New staff are fully briefed on the APVMA’s expectations with regard to appropriate
behaviours and actions, and adherence to the APS Code of Conduct, to protect our
reputation within the APS and with our external stakeholders. Breaches of APVMA values
and the Code of Conduct are treated seriously, in line with agreed internal policies and
the enterprise agreement. In 2013–14, one breach of the Code of Conduct was determined
following investigation, and a sanction was applied. No other investigations into potential
breaches were undertaken in 2013–14.

DEVELOP A NEW ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT
Performance management

Progress

New enterprise agreement developed, consistent with the APS bargaining
framework

In progress

Following release of the Australian Government Public Sector Workplace Bargaining Policy,
the APVMA has started preparing for the next round of bargaining. The APVMA will work
collaboratively with bargaining representatives to ensure that the next agreement meets
the needs of APVMA staff and management, in accordance with the principles of the policy.
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CHAPTER 3
MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The APVMA is a prescribed agency under the Financial Management and Accountability
Act 1997. The APVMA is also a body corporate with a separate legal identity from the
Commonwealth of Australia. The APVMA CEO is responsible for the governance and
management of the APVMA, with the support of the executive team (see Chapter 1), the
Advisory Board and the Audit Committee (see Appendix A).

PLANNING
Corporate and operational plans
As an independent statutory authority, the APVMA is required to conduct rigorous
corporate planning and reporting. Our planning and reporting requirements are set out in
Part 6 of the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992.
Our central planning document is the corporate plan, which defines the principal
objectives of the APVMA and gives a broad outline of the strategies to achieve those
objectives. Each corporate plan has a life of three years. The minister approved the
Corporate plan 2012–15 in 2012.
In addition, each year an operational plan is developed that sets out the actions needed
to achieve the outcomes in the corporate plan. Our operational effectiveness is measured
through the performance indicators set out in the Operational plan 2013–14 and the
Portfolio Budget Statement 2013–14.

Input to decision-making
We place a high priority on stakeholder interaction and consultation. Stakeholders from
industry, chemical users, government and the community all provide input and are involved
in our decision-making, and development of guidelines and operational policy.
We have established committees and processes to facilitate this involvement (see
Appendix B). We also conduct public consultation to inform proposals, and form internal
and external working groups, focus groups and reference groups to address specific issues.

ACCOUNTABILITY
Internal accountability structures
Corporate risk management
The methodology used for assessment of risk at the APVMA is consistent with the
International Risk Management Standard and best practice. A comprehensive Risk
Management Plan is in place.
Risks are reviewed by the APVMA’s Senior Leadership Team on a regular basis to ensure
that all risks facing the organisation are identified. Risks are assessed and scored, with
consensus sought on the likelihood of the risk occurring and the possible consequences.
For high and unacceptable risks, treatments are then developed and controls are
documented. The risk treatments are regularly monitored to ensure that they are
implemented.
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A Risk Register is maintained to document the risks. The Risk Register is a dynamic
document and is constantly updated to ensure that it reflects the risks facing the
organisation.
The APVMA Audit Committee regularly reviews this framework and the Risk Register.

Fraud control
In 2012–13, we developed the Fraud Control Plan, which covers 2012–14. The plan complies
with the Commonwealth fraud control guidelines. The Fraud Control Plan includes fraud
prevention, detection, investigation, reporting and data collection procedures. The APVMA
takes all reasonable measures to minimise the incidence of fraud, and to investigate and
recover the proceeds of fraud if it occurs.

Quality management systems
We maintain strong controls over our key processes to ensure that legislative obligations
are met. The APVMA Quality Management System (QMS), which is accredited against
AS/NZS ISO 9001:2008, emphasises responsiveness to customers and stakeholders,
consistency of output, efficient resource management and continuous improvement.
The QMS is monitored and reviewed every two months by section managers through
the Quality Improvement Committee. Improvements are made in light of stakeholder
feedback, internal audits of the system, progress of preventive and corrective actions,
leadership strategies, the process approach of the system, factual decision-making and
supplier relations.
Internal audits were completed in 2013–14 on:
• Public Affairs and Communication
• Information Services
• Veterinary and Pesticides Residues
• Veterinary and Pesticides Registration
• Pesticide Chemistry—Evaluation and Reporting
• Application Management and Enquiries—Administration
• Chemical Review Assessments
• Information Technology.
An external auditor, accredited by the Joint Accreditation System of Australia and New
Zealand, audited the QMS in August 2013. This was a surveillance audit, which detected two
minor nonconformances. The APVMA welcomed the findings as an opportunity to continue
to improve the system, to ensure continued compliance with AS/NZS ISO 9001:2008.
During 2013–14, we rewrote the majority of our internal work instructions in preparation for
the commencement of the legislative reforms.
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External accountability structures
APVMA Service Charter
We aim to provide the highest quality of service to all our stakeholders. The APVMA Service
Charter outlines the standards of service that external audiences can expect from dealings
with the APVMA. The charter applies to all stakeholders, including the chemicals industry
the APVMA regulates, other government agencies, chemical users and the community.
The charter was developed in consultation with stakeholders and is available to all
interested parties on the APVMA website or in printed form. A review of the Service
Charter that was planned for completion during 2013–14 will now be completed in 2014–15
so that the requirements of the legislative reforms can be taken into account.

Reporting
Our performance is publicly reported in an annual report that is prepared according to the
Requirements for annual reports for departments, executive agencies and FMA Act bodies,
issued by the Australian Government Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet.
The APVMA Gazette lists all APVMA notices and decisions required under the Agvet Code,
including registrations, reviews and changes to registration status. The APVMA Gazette is
published fortnightly and is available from the APVMA website.

Parliamentary committees and other reviews
The APVMA made a submission to the Senate Rural and Regional Affairs and Transport
References Committee inquiry into implications of the use of fenthion by Australia’s
horticultural industry. The APVMA CEO (Kareena Arthy), Executive Director, Pesticides
Program (Dr Raj Bhula), and Director, Chemical Review (Dr Matthew O’Mullane) attended a
briefing at the request of the committee on 9 December 2013.
The APVMA Executive Director, Pesticides Program (Dr Raj Bhula), and Chief Regulatory
Scientist (Dr Les Davies) gave evidence on 20 March 2014 at a public hearing of the Senate
Rural and Regional Affairs and Transport References Committee inquiry into the future of
the beekeeping and pollination service industries in Australia.

Auditor-General’s reports
The Australian National Audit Office did not conduct any audits of the APVMA in 2013–14,
other than the audit of the APVMA 2013–14 financial statements.

Ombudsman
During 2013–14, there were no reports to Parliament or investigations by the
Commonwealth Ombudsman about the APVMA.

Courts and tribunals
During 2013–14, the APVMA was notified of five matters before the Administrative Appeals
Tribunal. One matter has been withdrawn, and the other four are ongoing. The remaining
four matters are in relation to withdrawals at preliminary assessment (two) and refusal to
grant an application (two). These matters are in the early stages of the tribunal process.
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Office of the Australian Information Commissioner reviews
The Office of the Australian Information Commissioner (OAIC) notified the APVMA of one
new request for review in 2013–14. A previous application for review, which was notified
to the APVMA in February 2012, is still being assessed by the Information Commissioner.
One freedom-of-information applicant lodged a complaint with the OAIC about how the
APVMA handled her internal review. This complaint has yet to be finalised.

Privacy
The APVMA adheres to the Privacy Act 1988. A new privacy policy was implemented on
12 March 2014, incorporating the amendments to the Privacy Act and the new Australian
Privacy Principles. The policy is located on the APVMA website. Our operations were not
subject to any report or determination by the Privacy Commissioner. We have an entry in
the current edition of the Privacy Commissioner’s Personal Information Digest.

Environmental performance
The APVMA has adopted an environmental management system in accordance with
requirements of s. 516A of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act
1999, the Agvet Code and the Greening of Government Program. This enables the APVMA
to minimise the impact of its activities on the environment, in alignment with the principles
of ecologically sustainable development and environmental management.
The environmental management system, which uses ISO 14001:2004 as its framework, is
integrated into the QMS with its auditing and continuous improvement requirements.
The APVMA works to reduce its environmental impact by:
• recycling paper, plastic and kitchen waste to reduce Its impact on landfill
• maintaining water tanks for watering gardens at its premises in Canberra
• meeting the whole-of-government Energy Efficiency in Government Operations target
for energy usage of 7500 megajoules per person
• purchasing 100 per cent recycled paper
• using environmental criteria guidelines to ensure that environmental impacts are
considered for all purchases
• using VM Ware computer hardware to reduce electricity consumption
• using high-efficiency T5 lighting and movement-activated lighting
• using video-conferencing facilities to minimise travel
• using multifunction-device printers that reduce paper waste by secure release and
authentication of all print, copy, scan and fax jobs
• collecting waste food from APVMA kitchens and feeding it to worms at our on-site
worm farms, thereby reducing landfill.
We also strive to continually improve our environment management systems. Our new
electronic document and records management system will facilitate reductions in paper
and printer consumables.
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CHAPTER 4
FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Tables 12–15 give an overview of APVMA financial performance for 2013–14. Full details are
in the audited financial statements on the following pages.

INCOME
The APVMA’s total income for 2013–14 financial year was $28.275 million (Table 12), a
decrease of $2.137 million (7.03 per cent) from the previous year. This decrease is largely is
due to the returning of $2.0 million to the budget as part of the Better Regulation reform
funding agreement.

Table 12 Income, 2013–14
Income source

Income ($’000)

%

5 087

16.80

17 059

56.35

Annual fees (renewal fees)

4 793

15.83

Other receipts from industry

2 031

6.71

(2 000)

n/a

Parliamentary appropriation

981

3.24

Other revenue

324

1.07

28 275

100.00

Receipts from industry
Application fees
Levies

Industry funds returned to the budget

Total income
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Table 13 Agency Resourcing Statement, 2013–14
Actual available
appropriation
for 2013–14
($’000)

Payments
made in
2013–14
($’000)

Balance
remaining in
2013–14
($’000)

2 145

2 145

0

981

981

0

278

278

0

Total

3 404

3 404

0

Special appropriation

26 713

26 713

0

Ordinary annual service
Department expenses
Prior year departmental appropriation
Departmental appropriations
Revenue from independent sources (s. 31)

Special account
Opening balance

20 104

Appropriation receipts

29 327

Payments made

30 852

Total Special Account

49 431

30 852

18 579

Total resourcing and payments

79 548

60 969

18 579

26 713

26 713

0

52 835

34 256

18 579

Less appropriations drawn from special
appropriations above and credited to the
special account
Total net resourcing and payments

EXPENDITURE
Total operating expenses for 2013–14 were $31.997 million (Tables 14 and 15), an increase of
$0.693 million (2.21 per cent) from the previous year.
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Table 14	Expenditure, 2013–14 (including comparison with Portfolio Budget
Statement)
2013–14
actual
expenditure
($’000)

% of
expenditure

2013–14
budget
(per PBS)
($’000)

Employee benefits

21 441

67.01

22 719

Supplier expenses

9 691

30.29

10 441

841

2.63

691

24

0.07

0

31 997

100.00

33 851

Depreciation
Other
Total expenditure
PBS = Portfolio Budget Statement

Table 15 Expenses for Outcome 1
Outcome 1: Protection of the health
and safety of people, animals,
the environment, and agricultural
and livestock industries through
regulation of pesticides and
veterinary medicines

2013–14
budget
($’000)

2013–14
actual
($’000)

2013–14
variance
($’000)

2012–13
actual
($’000)

Ordinary annual service
(Appropriation Bill 1)

981

981

-

1 009

Revenue from independent sources (s. 31)

435

278

157

243

31 695

29 861

1 834

30 714

740

877

(137)

549

33 851

31 997

1 854

32 515

Department expenses

Special appropriation
Expenses not requiring appropriation
Total expenses for Outcome 1

EQUITY
We recorded a net operating deficit of $3.722 million for 2013–14. This was primarily due to
the spending of unspent funding for the Better Regulation reforms that had been received
in previous years as well as the returning of $2.0 million to the budget as part of the reform
funding agreement as mentioned above. As at 30 June 2014, the Better Regulation reform
funding has been fully expensed.
Our equity at 30 June 2014 was $8.798 million.
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AUDIT RESULTS
The APVMA achieved an unqualified audit result, and there were no adverse findings.

FINANCIAL RESERVE
Our revenue can vary significantly from year to year as a result of fluctuations in sales
of pesticides and veterinary medicines, due to changing environmental conditions.
To manage this, we aim to hold a financial reserve (which forms part of our equity).
Without this financial reserve, we would risk periods where our liabilities would exceed
our assets (negative equity).
The financial reserve is based on three months of operating expenses and is currently set
at $7.0 million.

COST-RECOVERY
New cost-recovery arrangements commenced on 1 July 2013, following the development
and subsequent approval of a cost-recovery impact statement (CRIS) during 2012–13.
Implementation of the arrangements outlined in the CRIS was intended to coincide with
the commencement of the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Legislation Amendment
Bill 2012. This was proposed to commence on 1 July 2013; however, amendments to the
Bill in the House of Representatives revised the commencement date to 1 July 2014.
The key changes to the APVMA’s fees and charges from 1 July 2013 were:
• returning application fees to 40 per cent cost-recovery level
• recovering close to 100 per cent of the costs associated with compliance with good
manufacturing pratice
• implementing reductions in the levy rate.
The fees and charges relating to the legislative reforms that will commence on 1 July 2014
include those for:
• pre-application advice and subsequent advice
• electronic conversion of hard-copy applications.
In 2013–14, we continued to provide input into the Australian Government Department of
Agriculture’s first-principles review of the cost-recovery arrangements for the APVMA. This
review seeks to examine and recommend options to strengthen the financial sustainability,
transparency and accountability of the APVMA’s cost-recovery arrangements.

ADVERTISING AND MARKET RESEARCH
No advertising or market research was conducted during 2013–14.
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CONSULTANCIES
In 2013–14, 40 new consultancy contracts were entered into, involving total actual
expenditure (including capitalisation) of $1 495 000. In addition, 19 ongoing consultancy
contracts were active, involving total actual expenditure of $1 623 000..
Selection processes are described in terms drawn from the Commonwealth Procurement
Guidelines. ‘Direct sourcing’ refers to a selection process in which neither a tender nor a
panel is used. In these situations, multiple quotes were obtained, the number of quotes
depending on the value of the procurement. APVMA Finance Procedure 4 (‘Purchasing’)
outlines the number of quotes required:
• Purchase of goods/services

to $2000

One quote

• Purchase of goods/services

$2001 to $10 000

Two written quotes

• Purchase of goods/services

$10 001 to $80 000

Three written quotes

• Purchase of goods/services

$80 000 and over

Tender

Exemptions to these requirements may be approved in some circumstances.
Annual reports contain information about actual expenditure on contracts for
consultancies. Information on the value of contracts and consultancies is available on the
AusTender website (tenders.gov.au).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
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STATEMENT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER AND THE CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

3A

21 441

21 028

Suppliers

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3B

9 691

8 888

Depreciation and amortisation

3C

841

675

Finance costs

3D

16

11

Write-down and impairment of assets

3E

-

694

Losses from asset sales

3F

8

8

31 997

31 304

324

533

Total own-source revenue

324

533

Total Own-Source Income

324

533

31 673

30 771

27 951

29 879

(3 722)

(892)

Changes in asset revaluation surplus

-

983

Total other comprehensive income

-

983

(3 722)

91

NET COST OF SERVICE
Expenses
Employee benefits

Total Expenses
Own-Source Income
Own-source revenue
Other revenue

4A

Net Cost of Services
Revenue from Government
Surplus/(Deficit) Attributable to the Australian Government

4B

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not subject to subsequent reclassification to
profit and loss

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) Attributable to the
Australian Government

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 June 2014

Notes

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

6A

13 633

15 490

Trade and other receivables

6B

ASSETS
Financial Assets

Total financial assets

563

2 403

14 196

17 893

Non-Financial Assets
Land and buildings

7A,C

2 121

2 367

Property, plant and equipment

7B,C

845

653

Intangibles

7D,E

3 062

1 721

Other non-financial assets

7F

306

345

6 334

5 086

20 530

22 979

Total non-financial assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Payables
Suppliers

8A

3 900

3 105

Other payables

8B

1 642

1 496

5 542

4 601

5 436

Total payables
Provisions
Employee provisions

9A

5 752

Other provisions

9B

438

422

Total provisions

6 190

5 858

Total Liabilities

11 732

10 459

Net Assets

8 798

12 520

EQUITY
Contributed equity

373

373

1 123

1 123

Retained surplus

7 302

11 024

Total Equity

8 798

12 520

Reserves

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Asset
Revaluation
Reserves

Retained
Earnings

Contributed
Equity/capital

Total
Equity

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Balance carried forward
from previous period

11 024

11 916

1 123

140

373

373

12 520

12 429

Adjusted opening
balance

11 024

11 916

1 123

140

373

373

12 520

12 429

-

983

-

-

-

983

(3 722)

(892)

Opening Balance

Comprehensive income
Other comprehensive
income
Surplus/(Loss) for the
period

(3 722)

(892)

Total comprehensive
income

(3 722)

(892)

-

983

-

-

(3 722)

91

Departmental capital
budget

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-total transaction
with owners

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7 302

11 024

1 123

1 123

373

373

8 798

12 520

Transactions with
owners
Contribution by owners

Closing Balance at
30 June

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

29 974

32 734

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received
Appropriations
Net GST received

867

911

Other cash received

125

201

Total cash received

30 966

33 846

21 159

21 250

Cash used
Employees
Suppliers

9 528

10 489

30 687

31 739

279

2 107

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment

2

1

Total cash received

2

1

2 138

1 808

Total cash used
10

Net cash flows from operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash received

Cash used
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

2 138

1 808

(2 136)

(1 807)

Contributed equity

—

373

Total cash received

—

373

Net cash flows from financing activities

—

373

Net increase or (decrease) in cash held

(1 857)

673

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
reporting period

15 490

14 817

13 633

15 490

Total cash used
Net cash flows from or (used by) investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period

6A

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SCHEDULE OF COMMITMENTS
as at 30 June 2014

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

GST recoverable on commitments

(935)

(1 052)

Total commitments receivable

(935)

(1 052)

Operating leases1

9 560

10 879

Other commitments

2 800

1 784

Total other commitments

12 360

12 663

Net commitments by type

11 425

11 611

BY TYPE
Commitments receivable

Commitments payable
Other commitments

BY MATURITY
Commitments receivable
One year or less

(182)

(165)

From one to five years

(554)

(544)

Over five years

(199)

(343)

Total commitments receivable

(935)

(1 052)

1 369

1 319

Commitments payable
Operating lease commitments
One year or less
From one to five years
Over five years
Total operating lease commitments

6 008

5 791

2 183

3 769

9 560

10 879

2 712

1 591

Other Commitments
One year or less
From one to five years

88

193

Total other commitments

2 800

1 784

Net commitments by maturity

11 425

11 611

NB: Commitments are GST inclusive where relevant.
1. Operating leases included are effectively non-cancellable and comprise:
Leases for office accommodation.
Lease payments for the rental of the APVMA’s office at Amtech Estate, Symonston are subject to annual
increase of 3.75%. During 11/12 the APVMA signed a new lease agreement, extending the lease term to
October 2020, with a further two 5 year options available.
2. Increase in other commitments is largely due to signifcant increase in uncompleted assessment work
allocated to the Department of Health.
The above schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SCHEDULE OF CONTINGENCIES
as at 30 June 2014

There are no contingent assets or liabilities as at 30 June 2014.
The above schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

ADMINISTERED SCHEDULE OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Other expenses

-

-

Total Expenses

-

-

Notes
NET COST OF SERVICES
Expenses

Income
Revenue
Industry contributions

26 970

28 876

Total revenue

26 970

28 876

Total Income

26 970

28 876

(26 970)

(28 876)

26 970

28 876

-

-

26 970

28 876

Net Cost of Services

15A

Surplus
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Total other comprehensive income
Total Comprehensive Income
The above schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ADMINISTERED SCHEDULE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITES
as at 30 June 2014

Notes

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

16A

ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

5 155

4 847

Total financial assets

5 155

4 847

Total Assets

5 155

4 847

LIABILITIES
Payables
Other payables

5 155

4 847

Total payables

17A

5 155

4 847

Total Liabilities

5 155

4 847

-

-

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

-

-

26 970

28 876

-

-

(26 970)

(28 876)

-

-

Net Assets
This schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

ADMINISTERED RECONCILIATION SCHEDULE
as at 30 June 2014

Notes
Opening assets less administered liabilities as at 1 July
Net cost of services
Income
Expenses
Transfers (to)/from Australian Government:
Appropriation transfers to Official Public Account
Transfers to OPA (Special Account)
Closing assets less liabilities as at 30 June
This schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ADMINISTERED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Industry contribution

29 313

29 166

Total cash received

29 313

29 166

Refunded levies, fees and charges

2 299

155

Total cash used

2 299

155

27 014

29 011

Transfer of funds from OPA to APVMA Special Account

-

-

Total cash received

-

-

26 706

28 786

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received

Cash used

Net cash flows from operating activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received

Cash used
Administered income appropriated to departmental
Total cash used
Net cash flows (used by) financing activities

26 706

28 786

(26 706)

(28 786)

308

225

4 847

4 622

5 155

4 847

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period

16A

This schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTERED COMMITMENTS
as at 30 June 2014

There are no administered commitments as at 30 June 2014.
This schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTERED CONTINGENCIES
as at 30 June 2014

There are no administered contingencies as at 30 June 2014.
This schedule should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
1.1

Objectives of the Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority

The Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority (APVMA) is an Australian Government
controlled entity. The APVMA is responsible for the assessment and registration of pesticides and
veterinary medicines and for their regulation up to and including the point of retail sale.
The APVMA administers the National Registration Scheme for Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals
(NRS) in partnership with the States and Territories and with the active involvement of other Australian
government agencies.
Its role is to independently evaluate the safety and performance of chemical products intended for
sale, making sure that the health and safety of people, animals and the environment are protected.
The APVMA is structured to meet a single outcome:
Outcome 1: Protection of the health and safety of people, animals, the environment, and agricultural
and livestock industries through regulation of pesticides and veterinary medicines.
The APVMA’s activities contributing toward this outcome are classified as either departmental
or administered. Departmental activities involve the use of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses controlled or incurred by the APVMA in its own right. Administered activities involve the
management or oversight by the APVMA, on behalf of the Government, of items controlled or incurred
by the Government.
The continued existence of the APVMA in its present form and with its present programs is dependent
on Government policy and on continuing appropriations by Parliament for the APVMA’s administration
and programs.
1.2

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Report

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements and are required by section 49 of the
Financial Management and Accountability Act 1997.
The Financial Statements and notes have been prepared in accordance with:
a) Finance Minister’s Orders (or FMOs) or reporting periods ending on or after 1 July 2011; and
b) Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB) that apply for the reporting period.”
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with the historical
cost convention, except for certain assets at fair value. Except where stated, no allowance is made for
the effect of changing prices on the results or the financial position.
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars unless otherwise specified.
Unless an alternative treatment is specifically required by an accounting standard or the FMO, assets
and liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when and only when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity or a future sacrifice of economic benefits will
be required and the amounts of the assets or liabilities can be reliably measured. However, assets
and liabilities arising under executory contracts are not recognised unless required by an accounting
standard. Liabilities and assets that are unrecognised are reported in the schedule of commitments and
the schedule of contingencies.
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Unless alternative treatment is specifically required by an accounting standard, revenues and expenses
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when and only when the flow, consumption
or loss of economic benefits has occurred and can be reliably measured.
Accounting policies are consistent with the previous year, unless otherwise stated.		
1.3

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies listed in this note, the APVMA has made the
following judgements that have the most significant impact on the amounts recorded in the financial
statements: the fair value of leasehold improvements have been taken to be the market value of similar
properties as determined by an individual valuer.
No accounting assumptions or estimates have been identified that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next accounting period.
1.4

New Australian Accounting Standards

Adoption of new Australian Accounting Standard requirements
No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date as stated in the standard.
The new standard AASB 13—Fair Value Measurement was applicable to the current reporting period
and had a financial impact on the entity (refer Note 1.11).
Future Australian Accounting Standard Requirements
No new standards, revised standards, interpretations or amending standards that were issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board prior to signoff data and applicable to the future reporting
period except for AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting (applicable for year end 30 June 2015) prescribes
new reporting requirements for the APVMA’s financial statements, including the requirement to report
budgetary information and explain significant variances between budget and actuals at the individual
entity level.
1.5

Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when:
a) the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer;
b) the seller retains no managerial involvement nor effective control over the goods;
c) the revenue and transaction costs incurred can be reliably measured; and
d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the APVMA.
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of contracts
at the reporting date. The revenue is recognised when:
a) the amount of revenue, stage of completion and transaction costs incurred can be reliably
measured; and
b) the probable economic benefits with the transaction will flow to the entity.
The stage of completion of contracts at the reporting date is determined by reference to the
proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of the transaction.
Receivables for goods and services, which have 30 day terms, are recognised at the nominal amounts
due less any impairment allowance account. Collectability of debts is reviewed at balance date.
Allowances are made when collectability of the debt is no longer probable.
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
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Resources Received Free of Charge
Resources received free of charge are recognised as revenue when, and only when, a fair value can be
reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if they had not been donated. Use of
those resources is recognised as an expense. Resources received free of charge are recorded as either
revenue or gains depending on their nature.
Contributions of assets at no cost of acquisition or for nominal consideration are recognised as gains
at their fair value when the asset qualifies for recognition, unless received from another Government
agency or authority as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements (refer to
Note 1.7).
Revenue from Government
Amounts appropriated for departmental output appropriations for the year (adjusted for any formal
additions and reductions) are recognised as Revenue from Government when the APVMA gains
control of the appropriation, except for certain amounts that relate to activities that are reciprocal in
nature, in which case revenue is recognised only when it has been earned. Appropriations receivable
are recognised at their nominal amounts.
1.6 Gains
Resources Received Free of Charge
Resources received free of charge are recognised as gains when and only when a fair value can be
reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if they had not been donated. Use of
those resources is recognised as an expense.
Resources received free of charge are recorded as either revenue or gains depending on their nature.
Contributions of assets at no cost of acquisition or for nominal consideration are recognised as gains
at their fair value when the asset qualifies for recognition, unless received from another Government
agency or authority as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements (Refer to
Note 1.7).
Sale of Assets
Gains from disposal of assets are recognised when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.
1.7

Transactions with the Government as Owner

Equity Injections
Amounts appropriated which are designated as ‘equity injections’ for a year (less any formal
reductions) and Departmental Capital Budgets (DCBs) are recognised directly in contributed equity.
Restructuring of Administrative Arrangements
Net assets received from or relinquished to another Government entity under a restructuring of
administrative arrangements are adjusted at their book value directly against contributed equity.
Other Distributions to Owners
The FMOs require that distributions to owners be debited to contributed equity unless in the nature of
a dividend.
1.8

Employee Benefits

Liabilities for ‘short-term employee benefits’ (as defined in AASB 119 Employee Benefits) and
termination benefits due within twelve months of balance date are measured at their nominal amounts.
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The nominal amount is calculated with regard to the rates expected to be paid on settlement of
the liability.
Other long-term employee benefits are measured as net total of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period minus the fair value at the end of the reporting
period of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly.
Leave
The liability for employee benefits includes provision for annual leave and long service leave.
No provision has been made for sick leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick leave
taken in future years by employees of the APVMA is estimated to be less than the annual entitlement
for sick leave.
The leave liabilities are calculated on the basis of employees’ remuneration at the estimated salary
rates that applied at the time the leave is taken, including the APVMA’s employer superannuation
contribution rates to the extent that the leave is likely to be taken during service rather than paid out
on termination.
The liability for long service leave has been determined by reference to the ‘short-hand method’ as
outlined in the FMO’s as at 30 June 2014. The estimate of the present value of the liability takes into
account attrition rates and pay increases through promotion and inflation.
Separation and Redundancy
Provision is made for separation and redundancy benefit payments. The APVMA recognises a provision
for termination when it has developed a detailed formal plan for the terminations and has informed
those employees affected that it will carry out the terminations.
Superannuation
The majority of staff of the APVMA are members of the Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme
(CSS), the Public Sector Superannuation Scheme (PSS) or the PSS accumulation plan (PSSap).
The CSS and PSS are defined benefit schemes for the Australian Government. The PSSap is a defined
contribution scheme.
The liability for defined benefits is recognised in the financial statements of the Australian Government
and is settled by the Australian Government in due course. This liability is reported by the Department
of Finance and Deregulation’s administered schedules and notes.
The APVMA makes employer contributions to the employee superannuation scheme at rates
determined by an actuary to be sufficient to meet the current cost to the Government. The APVMA
accounts for the contributions as if they were contributions to defined contribution plans.
The liability for superannuation recognised as at 30 June represents outstanding contributions for the
financial year.
1.9

Leases

A distinction is made between finance leases and operating leases. Finance leases effectively transfer
from the lessor to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of leased
non-current assets. An operating lease is a lease that is not a finance lease. In operating leases, the
lessor effectively retains substantially all such risks and benefits.
Where an asset is acquired by means of a finance lease, the asset is capitalised at either the fair value
of the lease property or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the
contract and a liability is recognised at the same time and for the same amount.
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The discount rate used is the interest rate implicit in the lease. Leased assets are amortised over
the period of the lease. Lease payments are allocated between the principal component and the
interest expense.
Operating lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis that is representative of the pattern of
benefits derived from the leased assets.
1.10 Borrowing Costs
All borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.
1.11

Fair Value Measurement

The APVMA reviewed its fair value methodolgies in light of the new principles in AASB 13.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the following fair value hierarchy, based on the data and assumptions used in the
most recent specific appraisals:
• level 1 — represents fair value measurements that reflect unadjusted quoted market prices in
active markets for identical assets and liabilities;
• level 2 — represents fair value measurements that are substantially derived from inputs
(other than quoted prices included within level 1) that are observable, either directly or indirectly;
• level 3 — represents fair value measurements that are substantially derived from
unobservable inputs.
Changes in level 2 and 3 fair values are analysed at the end of each reporting period. As this is the first
reporting period no transfers were recorded.
1.12 Cash
Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents includes:
a) cash on hand;
b) demand deposits in bank accounts with an original maturity of 3 months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value;”
c) cash held by outsiders; and
d) cash in special accounts.
1.13 Financial assets
The APVMA classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
a) financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss; and
b) loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. Financial assets are recognised and derecognised upon trade date.
Effective Interest Method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss where the
financial assets:
a) have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future;
b) are a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument; or
c) are a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the APVMA manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest
earned on the financial asset.
Loans and Receivables
Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment. Interest is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate. The APVMA has no loans.
Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets held at amortised cost—if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred for loans and receivables or held to maturity investments held at amortised cost, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount is reduced by way of an allowance account. The loss is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
1.14 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or other
financial liabilities.
Financial liabilities are recognised and derecognised upon ‘trade date’.
Financial liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent
fair value adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.
Other Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.
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Supplier and other payables are recognised at amortised cost. Liabilities are recognised to the extent
that the goods or services have been received (and irrespective of having been invoiced).
1.15 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position but
are reported in the relevant schedules and notes. They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence
of a liability or asset or represent an asset or liability in respect of which the amount cannot be reliably
measured. Contingent assets are disclosed when settlement is probable but not virtually certain and
contingent liabilities are disclosed when settlement is greater than remote.
1.16 Financial Guarantee Contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for in accordance with AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. They are not treated as a contingent liability, as they are regarded
as financial instruments outside the scope of AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.
1.17 Acquisition of Assets
Assets are recorded at cost on acquisition except as stated below. The cost of acquisition includes
the fair value of assets transferred in exchange and liabilities undertaken. Financial assets are initially
measured at their fair value plus transaction costs where appropriate.
Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised as assets and revenues
at their fair value at the date of acquisition, unless acquired as a consequence of restructuring of
administrative arrangements. In the latter case, assets are initially recognised as contributions by
owners at the amounts at which they were recognised in the transferor APVMA’s accounts immediately
prior to the restructuring.
1.18 Property, Plant and Equipment
Asset Recognition Threshold
Purchases of property, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the statement of financial
position, except for purchases costing less than $5 000 for leasehold improvements and $2 000 for all
other types, which are expensed in the year of acquisition (other than where they form part of a group
of similar items which are significant in total).
The initial cost of an asset includes an estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the item
and restoring the site on which it is located. This is particularly relevant to ‘makegood’ provisions in
property leases taken up by the APVMA where there exists an obligation to restore the property to its
original condition. These costs are included in the value of the APVMA’s leasehold improvements with a
corresponding provision for the ‘makegood’ recognised.
Revaluations
Following initial recognition at cost, property, plant and equipment are carried at fair value. Valuations
are conducted with sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying amounts of assets do not differ
materially from the assets’ fair values as at the reporting date. The regularity of independent valuations
depends upon the volatility of movements in market values for the relevant assets.
Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment is credited to equity
under the heading of asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that it reverses a previous
revaluation decrement of the same asset class that was previously recognised through operating result.
Revaluation decrements for a class of assets are recognised directly through operating result except to
the extent that they reverse a previous revaluation increment for that class.
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Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the asset restated to the revalued amount.
Depreciation
Depreciable property plant and equipment assets are written-off to their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives to the APVMA using, in all cases, the straight-line method of depreciation.
Depreciation rates (useful lives), residual values and methods are reviewed at each reporting date
and necessary adjustments are recognised in the current, or current and future reporting periods,
as appropriate.
Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable asset are based on the following useful lives:
Leasehold improvements
Property, Plant and Equipment

2014
Lease term
3 to 15 years

2013
Lease term
3 to 15 years

Impairment
All assets were assessed for impairment at 30 June 2014. Where indications of impairment exist, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment adjustment made if the asset’s recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Where
the future economic benefit of an asset is not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to generate
future cash flows, and the asset would be replaced if the APVMA were deprived of the asset, its value
in use is taken to be its depreciated replacement cost.
Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
1.19 Intangibles
The APVMA’s intangibles comprise internally developed and externally acquired software for internal
use. These assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its anticipated useful life. The useful lives of the
APVMA’s software are 3 to 10 years (2013: 3 to 10 years).
All software assets were assessed for indications of impairment as at 30 June 2014.
1.20 Taxation
The APVMA is exempt from all forms of taxation except Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and
Services Tax (GST).
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except:
a) where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office; and
b) for receivables and payables where applicable.
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1.21 Reporting of Administered Activities
Administered revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows are disclosed in the administered
schedules and related notes.
Except where otherwise stated below, administered items are accounted for on the same basis and
using the same policies as for departmental items, including the application of Australian Accounting
Standards.
Administered Cash Transfers to and from the Official Public Account
Revenue collected by the APVMA for use by the Government rather than the agency is administered
revenue. Collections are transferred to the APVMA’s Special Account within the Official Public Account
(OPA) maintained by the Department of Finance and Deregulation. Conversely, cash is drawn from the
Special Account to refund administered revenue. These transfers to and from the OPA are adjustments
to the administered cash held by the APVMA on behalf of the Government and reported as such in the
administered cash flows and in the administered reconciliation schedule.
Revenue
All administered revenues are revenues relating to the course of ordinary activities performed by
the APVMA on behalf of the Australian Government. As such, administered appropriations are not
revenues of the individual entity that oversees distribution or expenditure of the funds as directed.
Revenue is generated from fees that are charged for services provided to the agricultural and
veterinary chemical industry. Administered fee revenue is recognised when revenue is earned.

Note 2: Events After the Reporting Period
2.1

Commencement of the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013

Departmental
Following the commencement of the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013
(PGPA Act) on 1 July 2014, the APVMA was one of a small number of FMA Act agencies re-classified
as a corporate Commonwealth entity.
This re-classification resulted in the abolition of the APVMA special account on 1 July 2014. The funds
in the account on 1 July ($18.579 million, refer Note 20) were transferred into a newly created special
appropriation and are available to be drawn down by the APVMA as required.
Administered
As a corporate Commonwealth entity, the APVMA will no longer differentiate it’s transactions
between administered and departmental. From 1 July 2015 all APVMA operations will be classified as
departmental. All assets and liabilities recorded in the administered financial statements at 30 June
2014 will become departmental assets and liabilities on 1 July 2014.
There is no changes to APVMA operations due to this re-classification.
2.2 Internal Restructure
The APVMA is currently in the process of implementing a new organisation structure. The new
structure will begin on 1 October 2014.
It is not anticipated that this change to the organisation structure will have a material effect on the
financial activities of the APVMA.
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Note 3: Expenses
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

16 055

15 897

Defined contribution plans

1 775

1 760

Defined benefit plans

1 147

1 110

1 909

1 636

Note 3A: Employee benefits
Wages and salaries
Superannuation:

Leave and other entitlements
Other employee benefits
Total employee benefits

555

625

21 441

21 028

Note 3B: Suppliers
Goods and services
Consultants
Contractors
Other
Total goods and services

1 694

1 543

6 369

5 850

174

267

8 237

7 660

Goods and services are made up of:
Provision of goods—external parties

409

656

Rendering of services—related entities

3 661

2 985

Rendering of services—external parties

4 167

4 019

Total goods and services

8 237

7 660

1 299

1 132

Other supplier expenses
Operating lease rentals—external parties
Minimum lease payments
Workers compensation premiums

155

96

Total other supplier expenses

1 454

1 228

Total supplier expenses

9 691

8 888

340

266

Note 3C: Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation:
Leasehold improvements
Property, plant and equipment
Total depreciation

212

233

552

499

289

176

Amortisation:
Intangibles—Computer Software
Total amortisation

289

176

Total depreciation and amortisation

841

675
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Note 3: Expenses (continued)
2014
$’000

2013
$'000

Unwinding of discount

16

11

Total finance costs

16

11

Note 3D: Finance costs

Note 3E: Write-down and impairment of assets
Asset Write-Downs from

-

Impairment of non-financial assets

-

14

Provision for doubtful debt movement

-

189

Good manufacturing practice (GMP) licence fees—
written-off

-

491

-

694

(2)

(1)

10

9

8

8

2014
$’000

2013
$'000

Total write-down and impairment of assets
Note 3F: Losses from asset sales
Infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale
Carrying value of assets sold
Total losses from assets sales
Note 4: Income

OWN-SOURCE REVENUE
Note 4A: Other revenue
Resources received free of charge

36

35

Other revenue

288

498

Total other revenue

324

533

Other revenue in 2013 has increased by $140,000 following the reclassification of the minor use
funding received by the APVMA from revenue from Government to other revenue. Minor use funding
in 2014 was $142,000.
REVENUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Note 4B: Revenue from Government
Appropriations:
Departmental outputs
Departmental Special Appropriations
Other revenue
Total revenue from Government

981

1 003

26 970

28 876

142

140

27 951

29 879

Revenue from Government 2013 has decreased by $140,000 following the reclassification of the
minor use funding received by the APVMA from revenue from Government to other revenue. Minor
use funding was $142,000.
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Note 5: Fair Value Measurements
The following table provides an analysis of assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
The different levels of fair value heirarchy are defined below.
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilites than the entity can
access at measurement date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Note 5A: Fair Value Measurements
Fair value measurments at the end of the reporting period by heirarchy for assets and liabilites
in 2014
Fair value measurement at the end
of the reporting period using
Fair value
$’000

Level 1
inputs
$’000

Level 2
inputs
$’000

Level 3
inputs
$’000

2 055

-

-

2 055

Non-financial assets
Leasehold improvements

845

-

590

255

Total non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment

2 900

-

590

2 310

Total fair value measurements of assets in
the statement of financial position

2 900

-

590

2 310

-

-

Assets not measured at fair value in the statement of financial positions
Non-financial assets1

-

-

1. The entity did not measure any non-financial assets at fair value on a non- recurring basis as at
30 June 2014.
The agency’s assets are held for operational purposes and not held for the purpose of deriving a profit.
The current use of the assets is considered the highest and best use.
Note 5B: Level 1 and Level 2 Transfers for Recurring Fair Value Measurements
There have been no transfers between levels of the hierarchy during the year.
The entity’s policy for determining when transfers between levels are deemed to have occurred can be
found in Note 1.
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Note 5: Fair Value Measurements (continued)
Note 5C: Valuation Technique and Inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
Level 2 and 3 fair value measurments—valuation techniques and the inputs used for assets and
liabilities in 2014
Category
(Level 2
or 3)

Fair Value
$’000

Valuation
Techniques1

Level 3

2 055

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost (DRC)

Inputs used

Range
(weighted
average)2

Non-financial assets
Leasehold
improvements

Replacement
Cost New
(price per square
metre)

N/a

Consumed
economic benefit /
Obsolescence of
asset

7.1–7.1%
(7.1%) per
annum

Property, plant
and equipment

Level 2

590

Market
Approach

Adjusted market
transactions

Property, plant
and equipment

Level 3

255

Depreciated
Replacement
Cost (DRC)

Replacement
Cost New

N/a

Consumed
economic benefit /
Obsolescence of
asset

20.0%–4.0%
(6.6%) per
annum

1. There has been no changes to valuation techniques.
2. Significant unobservable inputs only. Not applicable for assets or liabilities in the Level 2 category.
There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect
fair value.
Recurring and non-recurring Level 3 fair value measurements—valuation processes
The entity procured the service of the Australian Valuation Office (AVO) to undertake a comprehensive
valuation of all non-financial assets at 30 June 2013. The entity tests the procedures of the valuation
model as an internal management review at least once every 12 months (with a formal revaluation
undertaken once every three years). If a particular asset class experiences significant and volatile
changes in fair value (i.e. where indicators suggest that the value of the class has changed materially
since the previous reporting period), that class is subject to specific valuation in the reporting period,
where practicable, regardless of the timing of the last specific valuation. The entity has engaged
Australian Valuation Solutions (AVS) to provided written assurance that the models developed comply
with AASB 13.
There is no change in the valuation technique since the prior year.
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Note 5: Fair Value Measurements (continued)
Note 5C: Valuation Technique and Inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
(continued)
Significant Level 3 inputs utilised by the entity are derived and evaluated as follows:
Leasehold Improvements—Consumed economic benefit/Obsolescence of asset
Assets that do not transact with enough frequency or transparency to develop objective opinions
of value from observable market evidence have been measured utilising the cost (Depreciated
Replacement Cost or DRC) approach. Under the DRC approach the estimated cost to replace the
asset is calculated and then adjusted to take into account its consumed economic benefit/asset
obsolescence (accumulated Depreciation). Consumed economic benefit/asset obsolescence has been
determined based on professional judgment regarding physical, economic and external obsolescence
factors relevant to the asset under consideration.
The weighted average is determined by assessing the fair value measurement as a proportion of the
total fair value for the class against the total useful life of each asset.
Property, Plant and Equipment—Consumed economic benefit/Obsolescence of asset
Assets that do not transact with enough frequency or transparency to develop objective opinions
of value from observable market evidence have been measured utilising the cost (Depreciated
Replacement Cost or DRC) approach. Under the DRC approach the estimated cost to replace the
asset is calculated and then adjusted to take into account its consumed economic benefit / asset
obsolescence (accumulated Depreciation). Consumed economic benefit/asset obsolescence has been
determined based on professional judgment regarding physical, economic and external obsolescence
factors relevant to the asset under consideration.
Recurring Level 3 fair value measurements—sensitivity of inputs
Leasehold Improvements & Property, Plant and Equipment—Consumed economic benefit/
Obsolescence of asset
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the entity’s leasehold
improvements and property, plant and equipment asset classes relate to the consumed economic
benefit/asset obsolescence (accumulated depreciation). A significant increase (decrease) in this input
would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement.
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Note 5: Fair Value Measurements (continued)
Note 5D: Reconciliation For Recurring Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
Recurring Level 3 fair value measurements—reconciliation for assets
Non-financial assets
Property,
plant and
equipment
2014
$’000

Total
2014
$’000

2 274

184

2 458

(313)

(83)

(426)

Leasehold
improvements
2014
$’000
Opening Balance1
Total gains/(losses) in accumulated depreciation2
Purchases

94

154

278

Transfer into Level 33

-

-

-

Transfer out of Level 33

-

-

-

2 055

255

2 310

Closing balance
1. Open balance as determined in accordance with AASB 13

2. There have been no transfers between levels of the hierarchy during the year.
3. There have been no transfers between levels of the hierarchy during the year.
The entity’s policy for determining when transfers between levels are deemed to have occurred can be
found in Note 1.
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Note 6: Financial Assets
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

13 424

15 257

Note 6A: Cash and Cash Equivalents
Special Accounts
Cash on hand or on deposit
Total cash and cash equivalents

209

233

13 633

15 490

Note 6B: Trade and Other Receivables
Goods and services
Goods and services—related entities

134

63

Goods and services—external parties

609

346

743

409

For departmental supplementations

-

2 145

Total receivables for goods and services

-

2 145

Total receivables for goods and services
Appropriation receivable

Other receivable
125

154

Total other receivables

GST receivable from the Australian Taxation Office

125

154

Total trade and other receivables (gross)

868

2 708

(305)

(305)

(305)

(305)

563

2 403

563

2 403

Less impairment allowance account:
Goods and services
Total impairment allowance account
Total trade and other receivables (net)
Receivables are expected to be recovered in:
No more than 12 months
More than 12 months
Total trade and other receivables (net)

-

-

563

2 403

259

2 363

304

250

Receivables are aged as follows:
Not overdue
Overdue by:
Less than 30 days
61 to 90 days

-

-

More than 90 days

305

95

Total receivables (gross)

868

2 708
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Note 6: Financial Assets (continued)
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

-

-

-

(210)

(305)

(95)

(305)

(305)

Goods and
services
$’000

Total
$’000

The impairment allowance account is aged as follows:
Not overdue
Overdue by:
Less than 30 days
More than 90 days
Total impairment allowance account
Reconciliation of the impairment allowance account:

Movements in relation to 2014

(305)

(305)

Amounts recovered and reversed

-

-

Amounts written off

-

-

Opening balance

New impaired assets
Closing balance

Movements in relation to 2013
Opening balance
Amounts recovered and reversed

(305)

Goods and
services
$’000

Total
$’000

(116)

(116)

6

6

Amounts written off

-

-

New impaired assets

(195)

(195)

(305)

(305)

Closing balance
Credit terms for goods and services were within 30 days (2013: 30 days).
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Note 7: Non-Financial Assets
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Fair value

2 368

2 274

Accumulated depreciation

(313)

-

2 055

2 274

269

269

(203)

(176)

Note 7A: Land and Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Total leasehold imporvements
Makegood
Fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Total makegood
Total land and buildings (non-current)

66

93

2 121

2 367

All leasehold improvement are subject to revaluation. The carrying amount is included in the
valuation figures above.
No indicators of impairment were found for land and buildings.
No leasehold improvements are expected to be sold or disposed of within the next 12 months.
Note 7B: Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment:
Fair value

1 057

Accumulated depreciation

(212)

-

845

653

Total property, plant and equipment

653

All infrastructure, plant and equipment is subject to revaluation. The carrying amount is included in
the valuation figures above.
No indicators of impairment were found for property, plant and equipment.
No property, plant or equipment is expected to be sold or disposed of within the next 12 months.
Revaluation of non-financial assets
All revaluations were conducted in accordance with the revaluation policy stated at Note 1.
No revaluation increments or decrements were recorded in 2014. The latest revaluation was
conducted on 30 June 2013 by an independent valuer.
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Note 7: Non-Financial Assets (continued)
Note 7C: Analysis of property, plant and equipment
TABLE A—Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of property, plant and
equipment (2013–14)
Leasehold
Improvements
$’000

Other
PP & E
$’000

Total
$’000

2 543

653

3 196

As at 1 July 2013
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment

(176)

-

(176)

Total as at 1 July 2013

2 367

653

3 020

94

405

499

Revaluation recognised in other comprehensive income

-

-

-

Impairments recognised in the operating result

-

-

-

(340)

(212)

(552)

-

(1)

(1)

-

-

-

2 121

845

2 966

Gross book value

2 637

1 057

3 694

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment

(516)

(212)

(728)

Total as aof 30 June 2014

2 121

845

2 966

Additions:
Purchase

Depreciation/amortisation expense
Disposals:
Disposal
Accumulated amortisation of disposed assets
Total as at 30 June 2014
Total as of 30 June 2014 represented by:

122

APVMA Annual Report 2013–14

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 7: Non-Financial Assets (continued)
TABLE B—Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of property, plant and equipment
(2012–13)
Leasehold
Improvements
$’000

Other
PP & E
$’000

Total
$’000

Gross book value

1 932

1 160

3 092

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment

(657)

(319)

(976)

Total as at 1 July 2012

1 275

841

2 116

As at 1 July 2012

Additions:
Purchase
Revaluation recognised in other comprehensive income
Impairments recognised in the operating result

-

360

360

1 358

(292)

1 066

-

(14)

(14)

(266)

(233)

(499)

Other disposals

-

(27)

(27)

Accumulated amortisation of disposed assets

-

18

18

2 367

653

3 020

3 196

Depreciation/amortisation expense
Disposals:

Total as at 30 June 2013
Total as of 30 June 2013 represented by:
Gross book value

2 543

653

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment

(176)

-

(176)

Total as of 30 June 2013

2 367

653

3 020
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Note 7: Non-Financial Assets (continued)
2013
$’000

2014
$’000
Note 7D: Intangibles
Internally developed computer software at cost:
Internally developed—in progress

1 540

591

857

1 020

(573)

(851)

1 824

760

2 332

1 902

(1 094)

(941)

Internally developed—in use
Accumulated amortisation
Total Internally Developed Computer Software
Purchased computer software at cost:
Purchased computer software
Accumulated amortisation
Total Purchased Computer Software
Total Intangibles (non-current)

1 238

961

3 062

1 721

No indicators of impairment were found for any intangible assets.
No intangibles are expected to be sold or disposed of within the next 12 months.
Note 7E: Analysis of intangibles
Table A: Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of intangibles (2013–14)

Item

Computer
software
internally
developed
$’000

Computer
software
purchased
$’000

Total
$’000

As at 1 July 2013
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment
Total as at 1 July 2013

1 611

1 902

3 513

(851)

(941)

(1 792)

760

961

1 721

Additions:
Purchase or internally developed
Amortisation

1 194

445

1 639

(121)

(168)

(289)

(408)

(15)

(423)

399

15

414

1 824

1 238

3 062

Disposals:
Disposal
Accumulated amortisation of disposed assets
Total as at 30 June 2013
Total as of 30 June 2014 represented by:
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Gross book value

2 397

2 332

4 729

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment

(573)

(1 094)

(1 667)

Total as of 30 June 2014

1 824

1 238

3 062
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Note 7: Non-Financial Assets (continued)
Table B: Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of intangibles (2012–13)
Computer
software
internally
developed
$’000

Computer
software
purchased
$’000

Total
$’000

Gross book value

1 058

1 046

2 104

Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment

(805)

(850)

(1 655)

253

196

449

591

856

1 447

(84)

(91)

(175)

(38)

-

(38)

Item
As at 1 July 2012

Total as at 1 July 2012
Additions:
by purchase or internally developed
Amortisation
Disposals:
Disposal
Accumulated amortisation of disposed assets
Total as at 30 June 2013

38

-

38

760

961

1 721

1 611

1 902

3 513

(851)

(941)

(1 792)

760

961

1 721

Total as of 30 June 2013 represented by:
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment
Total as of 30 June 2013
Note 7F: Other Non-Financial Assets
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Prepayments

306

345

Total other non-financial assets

306

345

All other non-financial assets are current assets.
No indicators of impairment were found for other non-financial assets.
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Note 8: Payables
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Trade creditors and accruals

3 900

3 105

Total supplier payables

3 900

3 105

669

576

92

76

Lease incentive

253

292

Lease liability

628

552

1 642

1 496

Note 8A: Suppliers

All supplier payables are expected to be settled within 12 months
Settlement is usually made within 30 days.
Note 8B: Other Payables
Salaries and wages
Superannuation

Total other payables
Total other payables are expected to be settled in:
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No more than 12 months

801

692

More than 12 months

841

804

Total other payables

1 642

1 496
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Note 9: Provisions
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Leave

5 752

5 436

Total employee provisions

5 752

5 436

1 565

1 474

Note 9A: Employee provisions

Employee provisions are expected to be settled in:
No more than 12 months
More than 12 months

4 187

3 962

Total employee provisions

5 752

5 436

Provision for restoration obligations

438

422

Total other provisions

438

422

Provision
for
restoration

Provision for
restoration

422

328

-

83

Note 9B: Other provisions

All other provisions are expected to be settled in more than 12 months.

Carrying amount 1 July 2013
Adjustment following revaluation
Unwinding of discount or change in discount rate
Closing balance 30 June 2014

16

11

438

422

The APVMA currently has one agreement for the leasing of premises that have provisions requiring
the APVMA to restore the premises to their original condition at the conclusion of the lease.
The APVMA has made a provision to reflect the present value of this obligation.
Provision for restoration obligations is subject to revaluation. A increment of $83,314 has been
transferred to the asset revaluation reserve in 2013.
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Note 10: Cash Flow Conciliation
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Cash Flow Statement

13 633

15 490

Balance Sheet

13 633

15 490

-

-

(31 815)

(30 911)

28 093

30 019

841

675

-

14

Revaluation of other provisions

-

(83)

Loss on disposal of assets

8

8

Prior year departmental capital budget

-

(373)

1 840

3 892

39

(172)

Increase / (decrease) in employee provisions

316

48

Increase / (decrease) in supplier payables

795

(729)

Increase / (decrease) in other payables

146

(375)

16

94

279

2 107

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per statement of
financial position to cash flow statement
Report cash and cash equivalents as per:

Difference
Reconciliation of operating result to net cash from
operating activities:
Net cost of services
Revenue from Government
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation / amortisation
Net write down of non-financial assets

Changes in assets/liabilities
(Increase) / decrease in net receivables
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments

Increase / (decrease) in other provisions
Net cash from operating activities
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Note 11: Senior Executive Remuneration
Note 11A: Senior Executive Remuneration Expense for the Reporting Period
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

1 019 498

684 269

94 130

72 380

Short-term employee benefits:
Salary
Annual leave accrued
Other allowances

15 671

-

1 129 299

756 649

191 316

134 417

191 316

134 417

Annual leave accrued

94 130

72 380

Long service leave

45 326

24 881

45 326

24 881

-

-

1 365 941

915 947

Total Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits:
Superannuation
Total post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits:

Total other long-term benefits
Terminations
Total employment benefits
Notes
1. Note 11A was prepared on an accrual basis.

2. Note 11A excludes acting arrangements and part-year service where remuneration expensed as a
Senior Executive was less than $195 000.
3. In 2014 five senior executives met the reporting requirements. (Four senior executives met the
reporting requirements in 2013).
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1

1
1

$255 000 to $284 999

$315 000 to $344 999
6

4

$225 000 to $254 999

Total

-

Less than $195 000

Total remuneration (including parttime arrangements):

Average annual reportable
remuneration1

Senior
Executives
No.

5

$345 000 to $374 999

Total

4

$225 000 to $254 999

Senior
Executives
No.

Less than $195 000

Total remuneration (including parttime arrangements):

Average annual reportable
remuneration1

314 864

209 968

189 172

-

Reportable
salary2
$

309 384

195 411

-

Reportable
salary2
$

26 020

34 744

33 473

-

Contributed
superannuation3
$

2013

47 828

35 332

-

Contributed
superannuation3
$

2014

-

-

-

-

Reportable
allowancess4
$

15 350

80

-

Reportable
allowances4
$

18 315

18 925

-

Bonus paid5
$

-

-

-

Bonus paid5
$

Note 11B: Average Annual Reportable Remuneration Paid to Substantive Senior Executives During the Reporting Period

Note 11: Senior Executive Remuneration (continued)

for the year ended 30 June 2014
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340 884

263 027

241 570

-

Total
$

372 562

230 823

-

Total
$
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5. ‘Bonus paid’ represents average actual bonuses paid during the reporting period in that reportable remuneration band. The ‘bonus paid’
within a particular band may vary between financial years due to various factors such as individuals commencing with or leaving the
entity during the financial year.

4. ‘Reportable allowances’ are the average actual allowances paid as per the ‘total allowances’ line on individuals’ payment summaries.

3. The ‘contributed superannuation’ amount is the average cost to the entity for the provision of superannuation benefits to substantive
senior executives in that reportable remuneration band during the reporting period.

(d) salary sacrificed benefits.

(c) exempt foreign employment income; and

(b) reportable fringe benefits (at the net amount prior to ‘grossing up’ to account for tax purposes);

(a) gross payments (less any bonuses paid, which are separated out and disclosed in the ‘bonus paid’ column);

2. ‘Reportable salary’ includes the following:

1. This table reports substantive senior executives who received remuneration during the reporting period. Each row is an averaged figure
based on headcount for individuals in the band.

Notes:

for the year ended 30 June 2014
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Total

$195 000 to $224 999

Total remuneration
(including part-time arrangements):

Average annual reportable
remuneration1

Total

$195 000 to $224 999

Total remuneration
(including part-time arrangements):

Average annual reportable
remuneration1

Note 11C: Other Highly Paid Staff

3

3

Staff
No.

2

2

Senior
Executives
No.

Note 11: Senior Executive Remuneration (continued)

for the year ended 30 June 2014

168 842

Reportable
salary2
$

174 958

Reportable
salary2
$
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31 892

Contributed
superannuation3
$

32 920

Contributed
superannuation3
$

2014

-

Reportable
allowances4

-

Reportable
allowances4
$

754

Bonus paid5
$

-

Bonus paid5
$

201 488

Total
$

207 878

Total
$
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5. ‘Bonus paid’ represents average actual bonuses paid during the reporting period in that reportable remuneration band. The ‘bonus paid’
within a particular band may vary between financial years due to various factors such as individuals commencing with or leaving the
entity during the financial year.

4. ‘Reportable allowances’ are the average actual allowances paid as per the ‘total allowances’ line on the individuals payment summaries.

3. The ‘contributed superannuation’ amount is the average cost to the entity for the provision of superannuation benefits to other highly
paid staff in that reportable remuneration band during the reporting period.

(d) salary sacrificed benefits.

(c) exempt foreign employment income; and

(b) reportable fringe benefits (at the net amount prior to ‘grossing up’ to account for tax benefits);

(a) gross payments (less any bonuses paid, which are separated out and disclosed in the ‘bonus paid’ column);

2. ‘Reportable salary’ includes the following:

(c) were not required to be disclosed in Tables B.
Each row is an averaged figure based on headcount for individuals in the band.

(b) whose reportable remuneration was $195 000 or more for the financial period; and

(a) who were employed by the entity during the reporting period;

1. This table reports staff:

Notes:

for the year ended 30 June 2014
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Note 12: Remuneration of Auditors
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

36

35

36

35

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

13 633

15 490

Financial statement audit services are provided free of charge
to the agency.
The fair value of the services provided was:
Audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

No other services were provided by the auditors of the financial statements.

Note 13: Financial Instruments

13A: Categories of financial instruments
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade & other receivables
Carrying amount of financial assets

438

104

14 071

15 594

Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Trade creditors and accruals
Other payables
Carrying amount of financial liabilities

3 900

3 105

1 642

1 496

5 542

4 601

13B: Net Income and Expense from Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Lease incentive amortisation
Lease liability increase
Net gain/(loss) from financial assets

39

40

(76)

(69)

(37)

(29)

13C: Fair value of financial instruments
The net fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables approximate
their carrying amounts.
The net fair values for trade creditors and other liabilities are approximated by their carrying amounts.
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Note 13: Financial Instruments (continued)
13D: Credit risk
The APVMA is exposed to minimal credit risk as loans and receivables are cash, trade receivables
and other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the risk that arises from potential
default of a debtor. This amount is equal to the total of trade and other debtors (2014: $743 000 and
2013: $409 000).
To aid the APVMA to manage its credit risk, there are internal policies and procedures that guide
employees on debt recovery techniques that are to be applied.
The APVMA has assessed the risk of default on payment and has allocated $305 000 in 2014
(2013: $305 000) to the impairment allowance account for trade receivables.
The APVMA holds no collateral to mitigate against credit risk.
Credit quality of financial instruments not past due or individually determined as impaired
Not Past
Due Nor
Impaired
2014
$’000

Not Past
Due Nor
Impaired
2013
$’000

13 633

15 490

-

-

134

64

609

345

13 767

15 554

609

345

Past due or
impaired
2014
$’000

Past due or
impaired
2013
$’000

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade & other receivables
Total

Ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired for 2014
0 to 30
days
$’000

31 to 60
days
$’000

61 to 90
days
$’000

90+
days
$’000

Total
$’000

304

-

-

305

609

304

-

-

305

609

Loans and receivables
Trade & other receivables
Total

Ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired for 2013
0 to 30
days
$’000

31 to 60
days
$’000

61 to 90
days
$’000

90+
days
$’000

Total
$’000

250

-

-

95

345

250

-

-

95

345

Loans and receivables
Trade & other receivables
Total
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Note 13: Financial Instruments (continued)
13E: Liquidity risk
The APVMA’s financial liabilities are payables. The exposure to liquidity risk is based on the notion that
the APVMA will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities.
This is highly unlikely due to the level of funds held in reserve as well as funding mechanisms available
to the APVMA (Advance from the Finance Minister). The APVMA manages its budgeted funds to
ensure it has adequate funds to meet payments as they fall due. In addition, the APVMA has policies
in place to ensure timely payments are made when due and has no past experience of default.
Maturities for non-derivative financial liabilities 2014
On
demand
2014
$’000

within
1 year
2014
$’000

1 to 5
years
2014
$’000

>5
years
2014
$’000

Total
2014
$’000

Trade creditors and accruals

-

3 900

-

-

3 900

Other payables

-

771

519

352

1 642

-

4 671

519

352

5 542

On
demand
2014
$’000

within
1 year
2014
$’000

1 to 5
years
2014
$’000

>5
years
2014
$’000

Total
2014
$’000

Trade creditors and accruals

-

3 105

-

-

3 105

Other payables

-

616

322

558

1 496

-

3 721

322

558

4 601

Other liabilities

Total

Maturities for non-derivative financial liabilities 2013

Other liabilities

Total
13F: Market risk

The APVMA holds basic financial instruments that do not expose the Agency to market risks.
The APVMA is not exposed to ‘Currency risk’, Interest rate risk’ or Other price risk’.
Note 14: Financial Asset Reconciliation
Notes

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

14 196

17 893
2 145

Financial Assets
Total financial assets as per statement of financial position
Less: non-financial instrument components
Appropriation receivable

5B

-

Other receivables (GST receivable)

5B

125

154

125

2 299

14 071

15 594

Total other non-financial assets
Total financial assets as per financial instruments note
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Note 15: Income Administered on Behalf of Government
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Revenue
Note 15A: Industry contributions
Levies

17 059

20 154

Annual fee

4 793

4 452

Product application fees

5 087

3 416

Good manufacturing practice (GMP) licence fee
Permits, actives and other fees
Industry funds returned to the budget

1 252

53

779

801

(2 000)

-

26 970

28 876

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Special Accounts

5 155

4 847

Total cash and cash equivalents

5 155

4 847

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

4 875

4 683

244

155

36

9

5 155

4 847

Total industry contributions

Note 16: Assets Administered on Behalf of Government

Note 16A: Cash and cash equivalents

Note 17: Liabilities Administered on Behalf of Government

Note 17A: Other payables
Unearned annual fee
Unearned application fee
Unearned levies
Total other payables
Total other payables are expected to be settled within 12 months:
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Note 18: Administered Financial Instruments
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

5 155

4 847

5 155

4 847

5 155

4 847

5 155

4 847

18A: Categories of financial instruments
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Carrying amount of financial assets
Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Other payables
Carrying amount of financial liabilities
18B: Fair value of financial instruments
The net fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate their carrying amounts.
The net fair values for trade creditors and other liabilities are approximated by their carrying amounts.
18C: Credit risk
The administered activites of the APVMA are not exposed to credit risk as the only administered
financial asset is cash held in the APVMA Special Account.
The APVMA holds no collateral to mitigate against credit risk.
Credit quality of financial instruments not past due or individually determined as impaired
Not Past
Due Nor
Impaired
2014
$’000

Not Past
Due Nor
Impaired
2013
$’000

Past due or
impaired
2014
$’000

Past due or
impaired
2013
$’000

5 155

4 847

-

-

5 155

4 847

-

-

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total
18D: Liquidity risk
The APVMA’s administered financial liabilities are payables. The exposure to liquidity risk
is based on the notion that the APVMA will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations
associated with financial liabilities. This is highly unlikely due to the level of funds held in
reserve as well as funding mechanisms available to the APVMA (Advance from the Finance
Minister). Internal policies and procedures have been put in place to ensure there are
appropriate resources to meet its financial obligations.
The APVMA manages its budgeted funds to ensure it has adequate funds to meet payments
as they fall due. In addition, the APVMA has policies in place to ensure timely payments are
made when due and has no past experience of default.
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Note 18: Administered Financial Instruments
18D: Liquidity risk (continued)
Maturities for non-derivative financial liabilities 2013
On
demand
2014
$’000

within
1 year
2014
$’000

1 to 5
years
2014
$’000

>5
years
2014
$’000

Total
2014
$’000

Other payables

-

5 155

-

-

5 155

Total

-

5 155

-

-

5 155

Other liabilities

Maturities for non-derivative financial liabilities 2012
On
demand
2014
$’000

within
1 year
2014
$’000

1 to 5
years
2014
$’000

> 5 years
2014
$’000

Total
2014
$’000

Other payables

-

4 847

-

-

4 847

Total

-

4 847

-

-

4 847

Other liabilities

18E: Market risk
The APVMA holds basic financial instruments that do not expose the Agency to market risks.
The APVMA is not exposed to ‘Currency risk’, Interest rate risk’ or Other price risk’.

Note 19: Administered Financial Asset Reconciliation
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

5 155

4 847

-

-

Financial Assets
Total financial assets as per administered schedule of assets
and liabilities
Less: non-financial instrument components
Other receivables
Total other non-financial assets
Total financial assets as per financial instruments note

-

-

5 155

4 847
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-

-

-

276

-

276

Section 31
$’000

-

-

-

1 259

-

1 259

Total
appropriation
$’000

-

-

-

3 404

-

3 404

Appropriation
applied in 2014
(current and
prior years)
$’000

-

-

-

(2 145)

-

(2 145)

Variance2
$’000

Appropriations reduced under Appropriation Acts (No. 1,3,5) 2012–13: sections 10, 11, 12 and 15 and under Appropriation Acts (No. 2,4,6) 2012–13:
sections 12, 13, 14 and 17. Departmental appropriations do not lapse at financial year-end. However, the responsible Minister may decide that part or
all of a departmental appropriation is not required and request the Finance Minister to reduce that appropriation. The reduction in the appropriation
is effected by the Finance Minister’s determination and is disallowable by Parliament. In 2014 there was no reduction in departmental appropriations.

-

-

-

2

-

2

Section 30
$’000

2 These variances are due to unspent Departmental Annual Appropriations (refer Table C).

1

Notes:

-

-

-

-

Other services

Total Administered

-

-

-

-

981

-

981

Appropriations
reduced1
$’000

FMA Act

2014 Appropriation

-

Ordinary annual service

ADMINISTERED

Total Departmental

Equity

Other services

Ordinary annual service

DEPARTMENTAL

Annual
Appropriation
$’000

Appropriation Act

Table A: Annual Appropriation (‘Recoverable GST exclusive’)
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-

-

Other services

-

-

-

372

-

372

Section 31
$’000

-

-

-

1 393

-

1 393

Total
appropriation
$’000

-

-

-

4 571

373

4 198

Appropriation
applied in 2014
(current and
prior years)
$’000

-

-

-

(3 178)

(372)

(2 805)

Variance2
$’000

Appropriations reduced under Appropriation Acts (No. 1,3,5) 2011–12: sections 10, 11, 12 and 15 and under Appropriation Acts (No. 2,4,6) 2011–12:
sections 12, 13, 14 and 17. Departmental appropriations do not lapse at financial year-end. However, the responsible Minister may decide that part
or all of a departmental appropriation is not required and request the Finance Minister to reduce that appropriation. The reduction in the
appropriation is effected by the Finance Minister’s determination and is disallowable by Parliament. In 2013 there was a reduction in departmental
appropriations of $6,000.

-

-

-

18

-

18

Section 30
$’000

FMA Act

2 These variances are due to unspent Departmental Annual Appropriations (refer Table C) and unspent Ordinary annual service—Departmental
Capital Budget (refer Table B)

1

Notes:

Ordinary annual service

Total Administered

(6)

1 009
-

-

(6)

-

1 009

Appropriations
reduced1
$’000

-

ADMINISTERED

Total Departmental

Equity

Other services

Ordinary annual service

DEPARTMENTAL

Annual
Appropriation
$’000

Appropriation Act

2013 Appropriation

Table A: Annual Appropriation (‘Recoverable GST exclusive’) (Continued)

Note 19: Appropriations (continued)
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-

-

Section 32
$’000

-

Total Capital
Budget
Appropriations
$’000

-

Payment for nonfinancial assets3
$’000

Payment
for other
purposes
$’000

-

Total
payments
$’000

3 Payments made on non-financial assets include purchases of assets, expenditure on assets which has been capitalised, costs incurred to make good
an asset to its original condition, and the capital repayment component of finance leases.

-

Variance
$’000

Departmental and Administered Capital Budgets are appropriated through Appropriation Acts (No. 1, 3, 5). They form part of ordinary annual
services, and are not separately identified in the Appropriation Acts. For more information on ordinary annual services appropriations, please see
Table A: Annual appropriations.

-

Appropriations
reduced2
$’000

FMA Act

Capital Budget Appropriations applied in 2014

2 Appropriations reduced under Appropriation Acts (No. 1, 3, 5) 2012–13: sections 10, 11, 12 and 15 or via a determination by the Finance Minister.

1

Notes:

Ordinary annual
service—
Departmental
Capital Budget1

DEPARTMENTAL

Annual
Capital
Budget
$’000

Appropriation Act

2014 Capital Budget Appropriations

Table B: Departmental and Administered Capital Budgets (‘Recoverable GST exclusive’)

Note 20: Appropriations (continued)
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-

-

Section 32
$’000

-

Total Capital
Budget
Appropriations
$’000

-

Payment for nonfinancial assets3
$’000

373

Payment
for other
purposes
$’000

-

Total
payments
$’000

3 Payments made on non-financial assets include purchases of assets, expenditure on assets which has been capitalised, costs incurred to make good
an asset to its original condition, and the capital repayment component of finance leases.

373

Variance
$’000

Departmental and Administered Capital Budgets are appropriated through Appropriation Acts (No. 1, 3, 5). They form part of ordinary annual
services, and are not separately identified in the Appropriation Acts. For more information on ordinary annual services appropriations, please see
Table A: Annual appropriations.

-

Appropriations
reduced2
$’000

FMA Act

Capital Budget Appropriations applied in 2013

2 Appropriations reduced under Appropriation Acts (No. 1, 3, 5) 2011–12: sections 10, 11, 12 and 15 or via a determination by the Finance Minister.

1

Notes:

Ordinary annual
service—
Departmental
Capital Budget1

DEPARTMENTAL

Annual
Capital
Budget
$’000

Appropriation Act

2013 Capital Budget Appropriations

Table B: Departmental and Administered Capital Budgets (‘Recoverable GST exclusive’) (continued)
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Note 20: Appropriations (continued)
Table C: Unspent Departmental Annual Appropriation (‘Recoverable GST exclusive’)
2014
$’000

Authority

2013
$’000

Appropriation Act (No. 1) 2012–13

-

245

Appropriation Act (No. 1) 2011–12

-

1 900

Total

-

2 145

1

The 2014 variance amount of $2 145 000 recorded in Table A is the difference between the
unspent appropriation at 30 June 2014 ($ nil) and the unspent appropriation at 30 June 2013
($2 145 000).

Table D: Special Appropriations (‘Recoverable GST exclusive’)

Authority

Type

Purpose

Agricultural and
Veterinary Chemicals
(Administration) Act
1992; Section 58

Unlimited
Amount

(a) to pay or discharge the costs,
expenses or other obligations
incurred by the APVMA in the
performance of its functions;

Appropriation
applied 2014
$’000

2013
$’000

26 713

28 786

26 713

28 786

(b) payment of any remuneration
and allowances payable to any
person under this Act; and
(c) in making any other payments
that the APVMA is authorised
or required to make.
Total
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Note 21: Special Accounts
APVMA Special Account1
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

20 104

18 927

29 313

29 166

14

26

Total increases

29 327

29 192

Available for payments:

49 431

48 119

Balance carried from previous period
Increases:
Levies, fees and charges (Administered)
Other receipts

Decreases:
Refunds of levies, fees and charges (Administered)
Payments made to employees
Payments made to suppliers

(2 299)

(155)

(18 398)

(17 393)

(10 155)

(10 467)

(30 852)

(28 015)

Balance carried to next period and represented by:

18 579

20 104

Departmental Special Account balance

13 424

15 257

Administered Special Account balance

5 155

4 847

18 579

20 104

Total decreases

Total balance carried to the next period

1. Appropriation: Financial Management and Accountability Act 1997; section 21
Establishing Instrument: Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992;
Section 58
Purpose: Amounts standing to the credit of the Account may be debited for the
following purposes:
(a) to pay or discharge the costs, expenses or other obligations incurred by the APVMA in the
performance of its functions;
(b) in payment of any remuneration and allowances payable to any person under this Act;
(c) in making any other payments that the APVMA is authorised or required to make by or
under this Act or any other law of the Commonwealth or any law of a State or Territory that
is expressed to confer functions or powers on the APVMA.
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Note 22: Reporting of Outcomes
The APVMA has a single Outcome
Note 22A: Net Cost of Outcome Delivery
Outcome 1
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

(31 997)

(31 304)

324

533

Departmental
Expenses
Own source income
Administered
Expenses
Own source income
Net (cost)/contribution of outcome delivery

-

-

26 970

28 876

(4 703)

(1 895)

Note 22B: Major Classes of Departmental Expenses, Income, Assets and Liabilities by Outcomes
Outcome 1
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

21 441

21 028

9 691

8 888

841

675

Finance costs

16

11

Write-down and impairment of assets

—

694

Losses from asset sales

8

8

31 997

31 304

27 951

29 879

324

533

28 275

30 412

13 633

15 490

563

2 403

2 121

2 367

Departmental Expenses
Employee benefits
Suppliers
Depreciation and amortisation

Total
Departmental Income
Income from government
Other
Total
Departmental Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Land and buildings
Infrastucture, plant and equipment
Intangibles
Other non-financial assets
Total
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845

653

3 062

1 721

306

345

20 530

22 979

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 22: Reporting of Outcomes (continued)
Note 22B: Major Classes of Departmental Expenses, Income, Assets and Liabilities by Outcomes
(continued)
Outcome 1
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

3 900

3 105

Departmental Liabilities
Suppliers
Other payables

1 642

1 496

Employee provisions

5 752

5 436

438

422

11 732

10 459

Other provisions
Total
Outcomes 1 is described in Note 1.1.

Note 22C: Major Classes of Administered Expenses, Income, Assets and Liabilities by Outcomes
Outcome 1
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Activities subject to cost recovery

26 970

28 876

Total

26 970

28 876

5 155

4 847

5 155

4 847

5 155

4 847

5 155

4 847

Administered Income

Administered Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total
Administered Liabilities
Other payables
Total
Outcomes 1 is described in Note 1.1.

Chapter 4—Financial performance

147

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 23: Compliance With Statutory Conditions for Payments from the Consolidated Revenue Fund
Section 83 of the Constitution provides that no amount may be paid out of the Consolidated Revenue
Fund except under an appropriation made by law. The Department of Finance provided information
to all agencies in 2011 regarding the need to conduct risk assessments in relation to compliance with
the statutory conditions on payments from special appropriations, including special accounts. Non
compliance with statutory conditions on payments may constitute a breach of section 83 of the
Constitution.
On 2 July 2013 the APVMA received further advice from the Department of Finance in relation to
possible breaches of section 83 of the Constitution for what it called certain “generic” payments.
These are payments made by agencies pursuant to the Remuneration Tribunal Act 1973, the Long
Service Leave (Commonwealth Employees) Act 1976 and section 30A of the Financial Management
and Accountability Act 1997.
The APVMA undertook a risk assessment for the 2013-14 financial year. No breaches of Section 83
were identified and the overall risk of a breach was considered low.
The Australian Government continues to have regard to developments in case law, including the High
Court’s most recent decision on Commonwealth expenditure in Williams v Commonwealth [2014]
HCA 23, as they contribute to the larger body of law relevant to the development of Commonwealth
programs. In accordance with its general practice, the Government will continue to monitor and assess
risk and decide on any appropriate actions to respond to risks of expenditure not being consistent with
constitutional or other legal requirements.
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CHAPTER 5
APPENDIXES

APPENDIX A
ADVISORY BOARD AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE
APVMA ADVISORY BOARD
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the APVMA is supported by an Advisory Board.
The Advisory Board does not have decision-making power. It advises the CEO and provides
an expert consultative mechanism, either on its own initiative or at the request of the
CEO, by providing advice and recommendations on issues relevant to the execution of the
functions of the APVMA.
Arrangements for the Advisory Board’s appointment, function and procedure, as well as
its interaction with the CEO, are prescribed by legislation.
The Advisory Board comprises up to nine part-time members appointed by the Minister
for Agriculture for their experience in areas associated with the APVMA’s stakeholder
community. The individual members are appointed on the basis of their abilities to
contribute at the highest level to the national regulation of chemicals in Australia.
The experience of members represents, as far as possible, each key stakeholder sector.
These are the regulation of chemical products at state and territory level, the agricultural
chemical and veterinary medicine industries, primary production, environmental toxicology,
protection of consumer interests, public health, and work health and safety. In addition, the
minister also has the discretion to appoint a member who has experience in a field relevant
to the APVMA’s functions.
The Secretary of the Department of Agriculture, or a person authorised by the secretary,
may attend meetings. The CEO may also invite a person, other than an Advisory Board
member or the secretary, to attend a meeting for the purpose of advising or informing it
on any matter.
The Advisory Board comprises the following members, who were appointed for a
three-year term commencing on 13 November 2012:
Lyn Fragar AO is a public health physician and an adjunct associate professor with the
Australian Centre for Agricultural Health and Safety, University of Sydney. She currently
chairs the Hunter New England Local Health District Board. Dr Fragar has been appointed
as an Advisory Board member for her expertise in public health, and work health and
safety. She has also been appointed to the position of Chair of the Advisory Board.
Sandra Baxendell PSM is the Director of Goat Veterinary Consultancies. She has been a
senior lecturer specialising in animal production at Curtin University, and has also worked
in agricultural production and industry management roles. Dr Baxendell has extensive
Queensland Government experience in a variety of roles, including Regional Director,
General Manager (Chemical Use and Food Safety), Director Product Integrity, and Acting
General Manager Plant Biosecurity and Product Integrity. Dr Baxendell has been appointed
as an Advisory Board member for her experience in the regulation of chemical products
under state or territory law.
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Bronwyn Capanna is the Executive Director of Accord Australasia, the industry association
representing the hygiene, cosmetics and specialty products industry. She has more than
20 years’ experience in industry association management, and has held senior positions as
a regulatory and technical executive in the not-for-profit and private sectors in Australia
and the United Kingdom. She continues to be highly engaged in regulatory reform at a
national and international level. Ms Capanna has been appointed as an Advisory Board
member for her experience in a field relevant to the APVMA’s functions under the optional
provisions in the legislation.
John Hassell operates his own farming business, together with off-farm contracting in
baling, spraying and clover harvesting. He is also a director of Co-operative Bulk Handling
Ltd, Grain Pool Pty Ltd, Bulk West Engineering Pty Ltd and other subsidiaries. Mr Hassell
has previously worked as a farm and laboratory assistant with a range of companies. He is
an ongoing member of the Western Australian Farmers Federation and is also a member
of the Pingelly Land Conservation District Committee. Mr Hassell has been appointed as an
Advisory Board member for his experience in primary production.
David Lawson is a financial counsellor, and runs his own consultancy and general
counselling business. Mr Lawson was previously a sugarcane farmer, and ran a contracting
and farm machinery hire business. He has held a number of senior representative roles
in the sugar industry, and has experience representing consumer interests in the areas of
financial counselling, telecommunications, energy and banking at a state and national level,
including as a representative of the Consumers’ Federation of Australia and as a member of
the APVMA’s Community Consultative Committee. He chairs the management committee
of a school for youth who are disengaged from the state school system. Mr Lawson
has been appointed as an Advisory Board member for his experience in protecting
consumer interests.
Gordon Reidy is the Regional Manager (Asia Pacific Regulatory Development and
Toxicology) for the Sumitomo Chemical Company. Dr Reidy has held a range of toxicologyrelated roles in WorkSafe Australia, AGC Woodward–Clyde Pty Ltd, 3M Asia Pacific and
Reckitt Benckiser. He served on the Drugs and Poisons Scheduling Committee and the
Basel Hazardous Waste Technical Committee. He has also been a board member of the
Australian Consumer Products Industry Association. Dr Reidy has been appointed as
an Advisory Board member for his experience in environmental toxicology, including
knowledge of the effects of chemicals in ecosystems.
Selwyn Snell is the managing director of Barawyn Pty Ltd. He has extensive experience in
agribusiness, including a number of senior roles spanning corporate management, financial
and strategic planning, farming research and development. He is the current Chairman of
Horticulture Australia Ltd. Mr Snell has been appointed as an Advisory Board member for
his experience in the agricultural chemical industry.
Roger Toffolon is the Director of Biosecurity Strategy, Legislation and Performance in
the New South Wales Department of Primary Industries. Mr Toffolon has worked as an
entomology researcher and has held a number of senior roles in the New South Wales
Government as Registrar and Program Leader for Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals,
and Manager of Biological and Chemical Risk Management. He has been appointed as an
Advisory Board member for his experience in the regulation of chemical products under
state or territory law.
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Lisa Wade is Director of Bellmount Consulting Pty Ltd, which provides consulting services
to the agricultural and veterinary industries. Dr Wade was previously a veterinarian working
in mixed practice both in Australia and the United Kingdom. She has experience in the
research and development of a wide range of veterinary therapeutics, and experience with
Australian and international regulatory systems. She has been a member of the Animal
Health Alliance Issues Management Group and chaired the group’s Antimicrobial Resistance
Task Force. Dr Wade has been appointed as an Advisory Board member for her experience
in the veterinary chemical industry.

Meetings and attendance
Advisory Board meetings were held in July, September and December 2013, and February
and April 2014. All meetings were held in Canberra, except the September 2013 meeting,
which was held in Sydney. Summaries of the key outcomes of meetings are published on
the APVMA website.
Attendance at Advisory Board meetings is shown in Table A1.

Table A1 Attendance at Advisory Board meetings, 2013–14
Members

Meetings eligible to attend

Meetings attended

Lyn Fragar

5

5

Sandra Baxendell

5

4

John Hassell

5

5

David Lawson

5

5

Bronwyn Capanna

5

5

Gordon Reidy

5

5

Selwyn Snell

5

4

Roger Toffolon

5

4

Lisa Wade

5

5

Department of Agriculture
representation

5

5

Issues considered
In 2013–14, the Advisory Board advised the CEO in relation to a range of strategic matters,
including implementation of the legislative reforms, development of regulatory guidelines
to support applicants, effective external consultation, business re-engineering, and aligning
regulatory burden with regulatory risk in assessment of applications and compliance.

Presentations
In 2013–14, the Advisory Board received one external presentation from the Australian
Government Department of Agriculture on the development of a national antimicrobial
resistance framework.
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Declarations of interest
Members of the Advisory Board are required under the Agricultural and Veterinary
Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992 to disclose as soon as practicable any direct
or indirect financial interests that could conflict with the proper performance of the
Advisory Board’s function. Any decision made in relation to a disclosure about a matter
that is being considered, or about to be considered, at a meeting must be recorded in the
minutes of the meeting.
Records of disclosures by Advisory Board members are kept by the APVMA. No conflicts
of interest that would conflict with the proper performance of the Advisory Board’s
functions were declared at any meeting in 2013–14.

APVMA AUDIT COMMITTEE
The APVMA Audit Committee is part of the APVMA governance and risk framework.
Its terms of reference are to provide independent assurance and advice to the CEO
in relation to the risk control and compliance framework, the APVMA’s financial and
management responsibilities, and its external accountability responsibilities.
The committee members include an independent chair, a representative from an external
organisation, and APVMA executive and non-executive staff members. Committee
observers can include representatives from the Australian National Audit Office, an internal
auditor and the APVMA Finance Manager.

Meetings and attendance
The committee met four times in 2013–14: in August and November 2013, and February and
May 2014. Attendance at Audit Committee meetings is shown in Table A2.

Table A2 Attendance at Audit Committee meetings, 2013–14
Representative

Member organisation

Meetings eligible
to attend

Meetings
attended

Peter Hoefer

External independent Chair

4

4

Allen Bryce

APVMA Executive Director,
Veterinary Medicines

4

4

Tony de la Fosse

APVMA Executive Director,
Corporate Services

4

3

Claude Gauchat

External organisation
representative

4

3

Jan Klaver

APVMA non-executive

4

4

Dan Webb

a

1

a Dan Webb, APVMA Finance Manager, attended the fourth meeting as Mr de la Fosse’s proxy.
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Issues considered
In 2013–14, the Audit Committee:
• reviewed the previous year’s annual financial statements and Certificate of Compliance
• monitored the schedule for the preparation of annual financial statements for 2013–14
• monitored the financial performance of the APVMA
• monitored and advised on the implementation of the legislative reforms and associated
business reforms
• monitored APVMA progress in implementing the Public Governance, Performance and
Accountability Act 2013
• reviewed the Risk Management Plan and Risk register
• monitored key performance indicators of the committee
• monitored APVMA progress in implementing the Protective Security Policy Framework
• monitored the internal audit program, including audits of the good manufacturing
practice licensing scheme, the Adverse Experience Reporting Program, payroll
processing, quality of science, and IT security penetration testing.

Presentations
In 2013–14, the Audit Committee received external presentations from Sapere Research
Group Ltd on the business process review and reform preparedness.

Declarations of interest
No conflicts of interest that would conflict with the proper performance of the Audit
Committee’s functions were declared at any meeting in 2013–14.
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APPENDIX B
LIAISON COMMITTEES
REGISTRATION LIAISON COMMITTEE
The Registration Liaison Committee (RLC) is a consultative forum for the APVMA,
representatives of the state and territory signatories of the National Registration
Scheme (NRS) for Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals, and other relevant Australian
Government agencies.
The RLC is a forum for the development and operational coordination of the NRS, and for
consultation on the development of operational policies, guidelines and protocols in both
the APVMA and the signatory organisations. The RLC allows for effective alignment of
the agricultural and veterinary chemical control objectives of the APVMA, and the states
and territories.

Terms of reference
The terms of reference of the RLC are to:
• align the outputs of the APVMA’s registration processes and the chemical management
objectives of the states and territories
• develop operational policies for the operation of the NRS, including those dealing with
registration (including labelling), regulation, and appropriate use of agricultural and
veterinary chemicals
• provide feedback on state and territory views on these issues, and particularly their
impact on chemical users and the responsibilities of regulators
• address specific operating policy issues, as necessary
• provide input to operational planning priorities
• provide input to existing chemical review priorities.

Meetings and attendance
RLC meetings were held in Canberra in October 2013 and March 2014. Attendance at RLC
meetings is shown in Table B1.
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Table B1 Attendance at Registration Liaison Committee meetings, 2013–14
Representative

Member organisation

Meetings
eligible to
attend

Meetings
attended

Kareena Arthy (Chair
in October 2013)

APVMA

2

1

Raj Bhula (Chair in
March 2014)

APVMA

1

1

David Power

ACT Environment and Sustainable
Development Directorate

2

1

Joanna Montague
Lina Tze
Roisin Mortimer

Australian Government Department of
Agriculture

1
1
1

1
1
1

Ami Ward
Liz Paul

Australian Government Department of
the Environment

1
1

1
1

Christopher Lee
Matthew Pitt

Australian Government Department of
Health, Office of Chemical Safety

2
1

2
1

Jenene Kidston

New South Wales Department of
Primary Industries

2

2

Andy Hawkins

New South Wales Office of Environment
and Heritage

2

2

Maree Zinzley
Glen Bradbury

New Zealand Ministry of Primary
Industriesa

2
2

1
1

Andrew Tomkins

Northern Territory Department of
Primary Industry and Fisheries

2

0

Dick Watts
Russel Scholl

Queensland Department of Agriculture,
Fisheries and Forestry

2
1

1
1

Kent Andrew

South Australian Department of Primary
Industries and Regions

2

2

Stuart Bowman

Tasmanian Department of Primary
Industries, Parks, Water and Environment

2

1

Sue Duncan
George Downing

Victorian Department of Environment
and Primary Industries

2
2

2
1

Chris Sharpe

Western Australian Department of
Agriculture and Food

2

2

Martin Matisons

Western Australian Department of Health

2

2

a Observer organisation
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Issues considered
RLC agendas provide for updates on participating agencies’ operational activities,
consultation, and consideration of topical issues and projects.
In 2013–14, the APVMA provided the committee with operational reports, including reports
on pesticides and veterinary medicines registration, permits and minor use activities,
adverse experience reporting, compliance, and chemical review matters.
The states and territories, the APVMA, Australian Government partners and New Zealand
observers reported on topics including legislative and policy developments, control of use,
and regulatory activity within their jurisdictions.
The RLC considered a range of matters, including:
• operational policy relating to service provision agreements
• the progress of chemical reviews
• permits and minor use issues
• compliance activities, and operational policy in relation to information sharing on
compliance and enforcement matters
• labelling issues, including the development of label approval procedures and electronic
templates for submitting label information for approval
• legislative changes relating to processes for setting maximum residue limits
• preparation for implementation of legislative reforms, including supporting tools
and resources.

Presentations
In 2013–14, the RLC received external presentations from:
• Grain Producers Australia and Crop Protection Australia on preparations for the
developing mouse plague in South Australia
• Plant Health Australia on the work of the National Working Party on Pesticide
Application, including the International Workshop on Pesticide Application held in
Brisbane in June 2014
• Australian Environmental Agency Pty Ltd on a proposed new risk assessment
methodology for estimating aquatic exposure resulting from pesticide run-off.

Declarations of interest
No conflicts of interest that would conflict with the proper performance of the RLC’s
functions were declared at any meeting in 2013–14.
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MANUFACTURERS’ LICENSING SCHEME
INDUSTRY LIAISON COMMITTEE
The APVMA established the Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison Committee
(MLSILC) to provide a forum to discuss strategic and operational issues relating to the
Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme and the Overseas Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)
Scheme with industry representatives and auditors.

Terms of reference
The terms of reference of the MLSILC are to:
• obtain the views of industry members and auditors on issues of an operational, technical
or strategic nature
• advance the development and review of operating procedures, manufacturing standards
and guidelines relevant to the Australian Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme and the
Overseas GMP Scheme
• provide industry input into APVMA operational planning processes relating to
manufacturing issues
• identify opportunities for regulatory reform within the existing framework
• consider the impact of proposed policy changes on APVMA operations, and implications
for industry
• facilitate communication with industry and other stakeholders.

Meetings and attendance
The committee met three times in 2013–14: in September and November 2013, and April 2014.
Membership and attendance at MLSILC meetings are shown in Table B2.

Table B2	Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison Committee meetings,
2013–14
Meetings
eligible to
attend

Meetings
attended

APVMA

3
3
3

3
2
3

Matthew Sherriff

Animal Medicines Australia Ltd
(formerly Animal Health Alliance
[Australia] Ltd)

3

3

Ian Wheatley

Auditors’ representative

3

3

John Aird

Feed Ingredients and Additives
Association of Australia

3

3

3

3

Representative

Member organisation

Bruce Johnson (Chair)
Kathryn Winterton
Suzanne Stokes (Secretary)

Bill Blackhall
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Veterinary Manufacturers and
Distributors Association
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Issues considered
Issues considered in 2013–14 included:
• progress with auditing and licensing of veterinary medicine product manufacturers
• progress with development of risk-based systems for scheduling audits and quantifying
audit outcomes
• review of ‘release for supply’ arrangements with third-party toll manufacturers
• updates on APVMA regulatory reform activities
• recognition of the Quality and Safety System for Specialty Feed Ingredients and their
Mixtures accreditation
• management and monitoring of inspections of Australian veterinary manufacturers
by the Therapeutic Goods Administration (TGA), conducted under a memorandum of
understanding between the APVMA and the TGA
• monitoring progress of the Mutual Recognition Agreement between Australia and the
European Community.

Declarations of interest
No matters were declared by any member of the MLSILC that would give rise to any
personal material conflict of interest.
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APPENDIX C
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
UNDER THE FREEDOM OF
INFORMATION ACT 1982
The APVMA had 11 requests for information under the FOI Act in hand at the beginning of
the year, and received an additional 75 applications during the year. There were 71 requests
finalised during the year. These figures reflect a decrease in the number of requests
received and completed under the FOI Act during recent years.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Website
Information on the APVMA’s structure, functions, powers and publications can be obtained
from the APVMA website (apvma.gov.au).

Databases and public registers
We maintain databases to record applications for chemical products and active
constituents; and store registration and approval details, details of fees and levy payments,
mailing lists and other information. Staff details and industry and stakeholder contact
details are also stored on databases.
Access to the following public registers is available via the APVMA website, via the free
APVMA mobile app for iPhones or by visiting the APVMA office during business hours:
• Register of Agricultural and Veterinary Chemical Products, known as the Public Chemical
Registration Information System (PubCRIS), for information on numbers and approved
uses of registered pesticide and veterinary medicine products
• Record of Approved Active Constituents for Chemical Products
• Record of Permits.

Files and records
We receive submissions and applications relating to active constituents and chemical
products, including data. We maintain this information in accordance with the National
Archives of Australia record-keeping guidelines and procedures.

Publications
We produce publications on the National Registration Scheme for Agricultural and
Veterinary Chemicals and related matters, including:
• a fortnightly APVMA Gazette
• information sheets
• regulatory updates
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• community briefs
• corporate plans and annual operational plans
• annual reports
• a Service Charter
• media releases
• a Manual of Requirements and Guidelines (agricultural and veterinary)
• a labelling code of practice
• guidelines on chemistry and manufacturing aspects
• efficacy and safety guidelines
• maximum residue limits
• guidelines for recall of pesticides and veterinary medicines
• a review of chemicals
• a code of good manufacturing practice
• information on how to report adverse experiences with pesticides or veterinary
medicines
• agricultural and veterinary public release summaries
• trade advice notices.

Confidential commercial information
Some APVMA documents, particularly individual applications, contain confidential
commercial information and may not be disclosed by the APVMA, except in accordance
with the provisions of s. 162 of the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code or under
the FOI Act.

Public consultation
Special consideration is given to APVMA mechanisms for consultation with the pesticide
and veterinary medicine industries, other relevant specialised industry sectors and
community groups. We have a general policy of making the organisation accessible to
industry associations and community organisations. We consult on a regular basis with a
wide range of groups and organisations with relevant interests, and maintain close contact
with rural and service industries, researchers and other government agencies that have
an interest in pesticides and veterinary medicines. For more detail about the APVMA
consultative framework, see Appendix B.

Information publication scheme
We administer the Information Publication Scheme (IPS) in accordance with s. 8 of the FOI
Act, and ensure that information published on our website is accurate, up to date, complete
and accessible. Our IPS entry is available on the APVMA website.
We have published the IPS agency plan on the APVMA website. The agency plan describes
how we administer and comply with the IPS.
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ACRONYMS AND
ABBREVIATIONS
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Administration Act

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (administration) Act 1992

AERP

Adverse Experience Reporting Program

Agvet Code

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code

APS

Australian Public Service

APVMA

Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

FAO

Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations

FOI Act

Freedom of Information Act 1982

GMP

good manufacturing practice

ICT

information and communication technologies

JECFA

Joint FAO/WHO Expert Committee on Food Additives

MLSILC

Manufacturers’ Licensing Scheme Industry Liaison Committee

MRL

maximum residue limit

PSPF

Protective Security Policy Framework

PubCRIS

Public Chemical Registration Information System

QMS

quality management system

RLC

Registration Liaison Committee

WHO

World Health Organization
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GLOSSARY
2013–14

1 July 2013 – 30 June 2014.

active constituent

The component of a pesticide or veterinary medicine
product that is responsible for its physiological or
pharmacological action.

adverse event

Any undesirable experience arising from the use of a
chemical; adverse events may affect human or animal
health, the environment, or other factors.

agvet

Agricultural and veterinary.

applicant

A person or company who applies to the APVMA to register
a pesticide or veterinary chemical for use in Australia.

clock time

The time from when an application is passed through
preliminary assessment (‘screening’) until it is finalised,
less any time that the APVMA is waiting on a response
from the applicant

compliance

Compliance with any applicable agvet law
(see also noncompliance).

cost-recovery

Fees and charges related to the provision of government
goods and services (including regulation) to the private and
other nongovernment sectors of the economy.

elapsed time

The overall time taken for the APVMA to determine the
outcome of an application for registration. It includes
statutory time and applicant time in addressing deficiencies
with applications.

export slaughter interval

The time that must elapse between the last administration
or feeding of a chemical product to livestock, or last
application to crops, and slaughter of the livestock or
harvesting of crops for export.

extension of use

The agreed use of a pesticide or veterinary chemical for a
purpose other than those specified on the original label.
Registered products must be used only for purposes that
are specified on the label, and the APVMA must grant
permission for any extensions of use.

good manufacturing practice Standards that ensure that products are consistently
manufactured to the quality standards appropriate
for their intended use and in accordance with their
registration specifications.
label

Directions for a product’s safe and effective use, attached
to a container.

legislative reform

The reforms to the work of the APVMA contained in
the Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Legislation
Amendment Act 2013, which received royal assent on
29 June 2013 and will commence on 1 July 2014.
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licence

Authority to manufacture pesticides or veterinary medicines
according to s. 123 of the Agvet Code.

maximum residue limit

The maximum concentration of a residue resulting from
the registered use of an agricultural or veterinary chemical
that is legally permitted or recognised as acceptable in or
on food.

minor use

A use that would not produce sufficient economic return to
an applicant to meet the cost of registering the product for
that use.

nanotechnology

The design, characterisation and application of materials
engineered at a molecular (nanometre) level.

noncompliance

Noncompliance with any applicable agvet law.
Noncompliance may include the sale and use of
unregistered products, supply of restricted products to
unauthorised users, unapproved labels, unfounded claims
in advertising or other media, or active constituents that do
not conform to APVMA standards.

nontarget

Crops, plants or animals that are not the target of the
chemical, but may be affected by its use (see also
spray drift).

pesticides

Substances or mixtures of substances intended for
preventing, destroying, repelling or mitigating any pest.
Also known as agricultural chemical products.

registrant

A person or company who registers a pesticide or veterinary
medicine product for use in Australia.

registration

Official recognition that a pesticide or veterinary medicine is
safe and will work when used according to the label. Before
an agricultural or veterinary chemical product can be legally
supplied, sold or used in Australia, it must be registered by
the APVMA.

regulatory guidelines

A set of guidelines that provide details of how the relevant
agvet legislation is enacted by the APVMA, and how agvet
chemicals can be registered in Australia.

spray drift

The unintentional movement of pesticides from one area to
another with the wind.

statutory time

The legislatively prescribed time frame in which the APVMA
must process applications for registration.

veterinary medicines

Substances or mixtures of substances intended for treating
diseases or conditions in animals.

withholding period

The time that must elapse between the last application of a
chemical and the slaughter, collection, harvesting or use of
the animal or crop for human consumption.
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LIST OF REQUIREMENTS
This annual report has been prepared in accordance with the APVMA’s statutory
obligations. These obligations are outlined in the Requirements for Annual Reports for
Departments, Executive Agencies and FMA Act Bodies revised by the Department of
the Prime Minister and Cabinet 29 May 2014, and the Administration Act. The reporting
requirements have been identified under the legislation or requirements to which they
relate, noting that a number of requirements are common to both.
Ref*

Description

Requirement

Page

8(3) &
A.4

Letter of transmittal

Mandatory

iii

A.5

Table of contents

Mandatory

iv–v

A.5

Index

Mandatory

169

A.5

Glossary

Mandatory

165–166

A.5

Contact officer(s)

Mandatory

ii

A.5

Internet home page address and Internet address for report

Mandatory

ii

9

Review by Chief Executive, APVMA

9(1)

Review by Chief Executive, APVMA

Mandatory

vii

9(2)

Summary of significant issues and developments

Suggested

14–17

9(2)

Overview of agency’s performance and financial results

Suggested

86–90

9(2)

Outlook for following year

Suggested

na

9(3)

Significant issues and developments—portfolio

Portfolio
departments—
suggested

na

10

Agency overview

10(1)

Role and functions

Mandatory

2, 3–4

10(1)

Organisational structure

Mandatory

5

10(1)

Outcome and programme structure

Mandatory

12–13

10(2)

Where outcome and programme structures differ from
PB Statements/PAES or other portfolio statements
accompanying any other additional appropriation bills
(other portfolio statements), details of variation and reasons
for change

Mandatory

18–76

10(3)

Portfolio structure

Portfolio
departments—
mandatory

na

11

Report on performance

11(1)

Review of performance during the year in relation to
programmes and contribution to outcomes

Mandatory

18–76
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Ref*

Description

Requirement

Page

11(2)

Actual performance in relation to deliverables and KPIs set
out in PB Statements/PAES or other portfolio statements

Mandatory

18–76

11(2)

Where performance targets differ from the PBS/PAES,
details of both former and new targets, and reasons for the
change

Mandatory

18–76

11(2)

Narrative discussion and analysis of performance

Mandatory

18–76

11(2)

Trend information

Mandatory

18–76

11(3)

Significant changes in nature of principal functions/services

Suggested

na

11(3)

Performance of purchaser/provider arrangements

If applicable,
suggested

na

11(3)

Factors, events or trends influencing agency performance

Suggested

na

11(3)

Contribution of risk management in achieving objectives

Suggested

80–81

11(4)

Performance against service charter customer service
standards, complaints data, and the agency’s response to
complaints

If applicable,
mandatory

82

11(5)

Discussion and analysis of the agency’s financial
performance

Mandatory

86–90

11(6)

Discussion of any significant changes in financial results
from the prior year, from budget or anticipated to have a
significant impact on future operations.

Mandatory

na

11(7)

Agency resource statement and summary resource tables
by outcomes

Mandatory

87, 88

12

Management and accountability
Corporate governance

168

12(1)

Agency heads are required to certify that their agency
complies with the ‘Commonwealth Fraud Control
Guidelines’.

Mandatory

81

12(2)

Statement of the main corporate governance practices
in place

Mandatory

80

12(3)

Names of the senior executive and their responsibilities

Suggested

6–8

12(3)

Senior management committees and their roles

Suggested

155–161

12(3)

Corporate and operational plans and associated
performance reporting and review

Suggested

2, 80

12(3)

Internal audit arrangements including approach adopted to
identifying areas of significant financial or operational risk
and arrangements to manage those risks

Suggested

81–82

12(3)

Policy and practices on the establishment and maintenance
of appropriate ethical standards

Suggested

na

12(3)

How nature and amount of remuneration for SES officers is
determined

Suggested

na
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Ref*

Description

Requirement

Page

External scrutiny
12(4)

Significant developments in external scrutiny

Mandatory

82–83

12(4)

Judicial decisions and decisions of administrative tribunals
and by the Australian Information Commissioner

Mandatory

82–83

12(4)

Reports by the Auditor-General, a parliamentary
committee, the Commonwealth Ombudsman or an agency
capability review

Mandatory

82

Management of human resources
12(5)

Assessment of effectiveness in managing and developing
human resources to achieve agency objectives

Mandatory

70–76

12(6)

Workforce planning, staff retention and turnover

Suggested

70, 72

12(6)

Impact and features of enterprise or collective agreements,
individual flexibility arrangements (IFAs), determinations,
common law contracts and Australian Workplace
Agreements (AWAs)

Suggested

71, 76

12(6)

Training and development undertaken and its impact

Suggested

74–76

12(6)

Work health and safety performance

Suggested

72–73

12(6)

Productivity gains

Suggested

na

12(7)

Statistics on staffing

Mandatory

70–72

12(8)

Enterprise or collective agreements, IFAs, determinations,
common law contracts and AWAs

Mandatory

71, 76

12(9)
&B

Performance pay

Mandatory

71,
129–133

If applicable,
mandatory

104–112

Mandatory

83

Mandatory

90

Assets management
12(10)(11)

Assessment of effectiveness of assets management
Purchasing

12(12)

Assessment of purchasing against core policies and
principles
Consultants

12(13)(22)

The annual report must include a summary statement
detailing the number of new consultancy services contracts
let during the year; the total actual expenditure on all new
consultancy contracts let during the year (inclusive of GST);
the number of ongoing consultancy contracts that were
active in the reporting year; and the total actual expenditure
in the reporting year on the ongoing consultancy contracts
(inclusive of GST). The annual report must include a
statement noting that information on contracts and
consultancies is available through the AusTender website.

169

Ref*

Description

Requirement

Page

Mandatory

na

Mandatory

na

Mandatory

94–148

Australian National Audit Office access clauses
12(23)

Absence of provisions in contracts allowing access by the
Auditor-General
Exempt contracts

12(24)

Contracts exempted from publication in AusTender
Financial statements

13

Financial statements
Other mandatory information

14(1) &
C.1

Work health and safety (Schedule 2, Part 4 of the Work
Health and Safety Act 2011)

Mandatory

72–73

14(1) &
C.2

Advertising and market research (Section 311A of the
Commonwealth Electoral Act 1918) and statement on
advertising campaigns

Mandatory

89

14(1) &
C.3

Ecologically sustainable development and environmental
performance (Section 516A of the Environment Protection
and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999)

Mandatory

83

14(1)

Compliance with the agency’s obligations under the
Carer Recognition Act 2010

If applicable,
mandatory

na

14(2) &
D.1

Grant programmes

Mandatory

na

14(3) &
D.2

Disability reporting—explicit and transparent reference to
agencylevel information available through other reporting
mechanisms

Mandatory

73

14(4) &
D.3

Information Publication Scheme statement

Mandatory

163

14(5)

Correction of material errors in previous annual report

If applicable,
mandatory

na

E

Agency Resource Statements and resources for Outcomes

Mandatory

87, 86

F

List of Requirements

Mandatory

167–168

* The reference is to the location of the item in the Requirements for Annual Reports for Departments,
Executive Agencies and FMA Act Bodies (issued 29 May 2014) – for example, ‘A.4’ refers to the fourth item in
Attachment A of the requirements.
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INDEX
2,4-D chemicals, 47
2,4-D high-volatile esters, 39
2,4-D low-volatile esters, 40
A
abbreviations, 164
access to information, 69, 162–163
accountability, 76, 80–83
acronyms, 164
active constituents, 38–42
Administrative Appeals Tribunal, 82
Adverse Experience Reporting Program (AERP), 15, 17, 35, 38
advertising and market research, 89
advising agencies, 64–65
Advisory Board, 63, 152–155
AERP (Adverse Experience Reporting Program), 15, 35, 38
Agency Resourcing Statement, 87
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992, 2, 80
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code, 2
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Code Act 1994, 2, 43
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Legislation Amendment Act 2013, 3, 14, 18
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals Legislation Amendment Bill 2012, 89
Agricultural Handler Exposure Database, 34
agricultural products, new, 28
Agriculture Biosecurity permits, 30
Agrochemical Intelligence Project, 57
agvet chemical database, 67
agvet chemical regulation, 65
Agvet Chemical Regulation Committee, 54, 64
Agvet Code, 2
animal health, new products, 28
application processes, 29–30
APVMA Gazette, 82
Arthy, Kareena, 6
Audit Committee, 81, 155–156
Auditor-General’s reports, 82
audits
financial statements, 89, 91–148
internal, 81–82
permits, 44
veterinary medicine manufacturers, 47–49
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Australia New Zealand Food Standards Code, 41
Australian code of good manufacturing practice for veterinary chemical products, 47
Australian Government Department of Agriculture, 65
Australian Information Commissioner, 83
B
Baxendell, Dr Sandra, 152
bees, 36–37, 60, 82
Bhula, Dr Raj, 7
biosecurity, 30
birth defects, 37
Bryce, Dr Allen, 8
Burgman, Professor Mark, 56
business performance (Strategy 7), 16, 66–69
C
Capanna, Bronwyn, 153
case management system, 19, 62
chemical reviews, 39–41, 64
chemicals of regulatory concern (Strategy 3), 15, 35–42
Chief Executive Officer’s report, vii
chlorpyrifos, 40
client service charter, 62, 82
Code of Conduct, 74, 76
Comcare notifications, 73
committees, 155–161
common law arrangements, 71
Commonwealth Disability Strategy, 73
Commonwealth Ombudsman, 82
communication, 17, 19
compliance, 45
industry consultative arrangements, 63–64
legislative reforms, 61
public consultation, 163
Science Communication Symposium, 54, 56
see also stakeholder engagement; website
compliance, 43–49
compliance training, 21, 44
conferences attended, 52–53
confidential commercial information, 163
consents to import, 44
consultancy contracts, 90
contact details, ii
content management system, 62
core business (Strategy 1), 14, 18–22
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corporate governance, 80
Corporate plan 2012–15, 80
corporate profile, 2
corporate risk management, 80–81
cost recovery, 4, 69, 89
Cost-Recovery Impact Statement, 69
courts and tribunals, 82
crop re-entry calculator, 33, 34
D
databases and public registers, 162
Davies, Dr Les, 8
de la Fosse, Tony, 6
decision-making, 80
diazinon, 40
dichlorvos, 40
dimethoate, 40
diquat, 40
disability reporting, 73
E
e-lodgement processes, 29–30, 69
Edman, Donna, 56
electronic document and records management system, 29, 66
emergency use permits, 25
emerging regulatory issues (Strategy 5), 15–16, 50–60
endocrine-disrupting chemicals, 37, 60
Enforcement Committee, 49, 50
enterprise agreement, 71, 76
Environmental Assessment Coordinator, 23–24
environmental exposure modelling, 34
environmental performance, 83
equity, 88
executive management, 5–8
executive team, 6–8
expenditure, 87–88
expenses for Outcome 1, 88
export permits
pesticides, 25
veterinary medicines, 27
exports of veterinary chemicals, 49
F
fees and charges, 4, 89
fenamiphos, 40
fenitrothion, 40
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fenthion, 40, 82
files and records, 162
financial performance
advertising and market research, 89
Agency Resourcing Statement, 87
audit results, 89
auditor’s report, 91–92
consultancy contracts, 90
cost recovery, 4, 69, 89
equity, 88
expenditure, 87–88
expenses for Outcome 1, 88
financial reserve, 89
financial statements, 94–102
income, 86–87
notes to financial statements, 103–148
fipronil, 41
Fragar, Associate Professor Lyn, 152
fraud control, 81
freedom-of-information requests, 69, 83, 162–163
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